
 

 

 
 

 
 

Emergency Powers 
Executive Decisions 
Agenda 
 

 
Wyre Borough Council 

Date of Publication: Date Not Specified 
Please ask for : Democratic Services 

democratic.services@wyre.gov.uk 
 

 

Emergency Powers Executive Decisions meeting on  
Wednesday, 30 September 2020 at 12.00 pm  
in the Chief Executive's Office 
 

1.   Extension to the Emergency Arrangements resulting from the 
COVID-19 Coronavirus Pandemic 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

 Report of the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive. 
 

 

2.   Review of Consultation and Implementation of a Public Space 
Protection Order (PSPO) for Dog Control 
 

(Pages 9 - 280) 

 Report of the Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio Holder 
and Corporate Director Environment. 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of: Meeting Date 

Peter Foulsham, Democratic 
Services and Scrutiny 

Manager 

The Leader of the Council, 
Cllr David Henderson and 
the Chief Executive, Garry 

Payne 

 30 September 2020 

 

Extension to the Emergency arrangements resulting from the COVID-19 
Coronavirus Pandemic 

 
 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
 

To ensure that executive decisions and certain non-executive decisions 
(as outlined in the report below) can be delegated to officers using 
emergency powers invoked during a major incident.  
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 
 

The ability for the council to continue to make all necessary decisions 
during this unprecedented period of disruption owing to the current 
global pandemic. 
 

3. Recommendations 
  
 3.1 

 
 

That the Chief Executive’s decision in April 2020 to declare a major 
incident for Wyre under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and invoke the 
powers under this legislation and those in cases of emergency or 
disaster, as referred to in the Council’s Constitution in Part 7.02/2 
paragraph 5 continues to be effective and is noted. 
 

 3.2 That the delegations set out in paragraphs 5.1 of the report be noted 
until 31 March 2021 at which point a further review will be carried out by 
the Leader and the Chief Executive unless otherwise reviewed early. 
This will allow for a recovery period during which the operation of the 
council can return to normal. 
 

 3.3 
 
 

That the steps taken by the Chief Executive at 5.2 regarding non-
Executive decision-making be noted. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 
 

The COVID-19 virus outbreak requires a significant and unprecedented 
national response. This ongoing situation is already having a profound 
impact on the day-to-day life of individuals and the operation of 
businesses and other organisations in the borough. The council and its 
democratic and decision-making arrangements have also been affected 
and it is with this in mind that the report has been prepared.  
 

 4.2 In April, the Chief Executive declared a major incident in Wyre and this 
report sets out the business continuity arrangements for the discharge 
of the council’s Executive and certain Non-Executive Functions as we 
enter the second wave of the pandemic. 
 

 4.3 In light of the Government’s requirements about gatherings and the 
need for social distancing it is not always appropriate to hold meetings 
where individuals are required to be physically present, be they 
councillors, officers or members of the public. However, decisions will 
still need to be made in order to ensure continuity of service. 
 

 4.4 Changes to legislation referred to in the previous report dated 22 April 
2020, allow for the holding of virtual council meetings and these were 
formally incorporated into the Council’s Constitution at the Full Council 
meeting on 17 September 2020. Unfortunately, despite the successful 
virtual Full Council meeting in September, the implications of switching 
from emergency decision-making to a normal calendar of meetings, 
even virtual ones, as we move into a second wave of the virus is such 
that this will not always be feasible. A review of resource requirements 
and lessons learned from the first wave has been undertaken and this 
report sets out the arrangements for decision-making in the interim 
period until the end of March 2021 unless otherwise reviewed.  
 

 4.5 
 

The aim of the report is to allow for flexibility in decision-making during 
the next six months as the full implications of the second wave are not 
yet known. Each decision-making body has been reviewed and the 
following resource priorities identified: 

 Full Council – following the successful meeting in September, 
virtual meetings to be held but only when a decision is required 
to be made e.g. the Budget meeting. Executive Reports will not 
be produced during the stated period. 

 Cabinet - virtual meetings, using the approach taken to Full 
Council in September, to be trialled from October. The 
emergency measures utilised under the first wave will remain as 
a fall-back option should the need arise and this will be a 
decision for the Chief Executive. Owing to the need to maintain 
the pace of decision-making during the pandemic it is possible 
that a combination of the two approaches will be necessary and 
decisions made on a case-by-case basis, either by the next 
suitable Cabinet meeting or the Chief Executive in consultation 
with the Leader and Deputy Leader under emergency powers.  

Page 4



 Planning Committee – virtual meetings, using the approach 
taken to Full Council in September, to be trialled from October. 
However the emergency measures utilised under the first wave 
will remain as a fall-back option should the need arise and this 
will be a decision for the Chief Executive. 

 All other meetings to be held on a virtual basis unless otherwise 
outlined below. 

 
 4.6 Following the announcement made by the Prime Minister on 21 

September that a second wave of the coronavirus is imminent it is 
unclear at this stage what further restrictions, in addition to the current 
local lockdown measures, may be implemented over the next six 
months and how these may impact on the council and its services. As 
such, this report has been drafted to allow for the resumption of ‘virtual’ 
meetings wherever possible but also to present the extension of 
emergency arrangements as a contingency should the need arise. 
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 

Executive functions 
 
The Leader of the Council is asked to note that the Chief Executive has 
declared that the major incident declared in April 2020 is still in 
existence and the following decision-making powers are delegated to 
the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors: 
 

 Powers to take any decision on behalf of the Cabinet which can 
lawfully be delegated to officers, subject to the decision-taker, 
before taking the decision, having taken appropriate steps to 
consult and seek agreement from the Leader, or, in his absence, 
the Deputy Leader, or in the absence of both, any members of 
the Cabinet as considered appropriate by the decision taker.  
 

 Such powers to last until 31 March 2021 unless otherwise 
reviewed. 
 

 These powers to be used only if the trialled Cabinet meetings 
cease as a result of the second wave or if an urgent decision is 
required as determined by the Chief Executive. 

 
 5.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Non-Executive functions 
 
The Chief Executive, using his emergency powers, has put in place the 
following set of provisions to allow decision-making to continue should it 
not be possible for meetings to be held. These delegations would 
always be subject to declarations of interests by officers so no officer 
will be able to make a decision where they have declared an interest in 
that decision. In addition, the delegations referred to below will be 
subject to any limitation in law on a particular decision-making function 
being delegated to an officer. 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.2.1     Planning Committee 
 
Virtual Planning Committee meetings to be trialled from October following 
the approach taken to Full Council in September. Where this is not 
feasible in the view of the Chief Executive, the following contingency 
arrangements will apply as they did between April and September 2020: 
 

 That authority to determine any planning application, listed 
building consent and tree preservation order application that 
would otherwise have been decided at a meeting of the Committee 
be delegated to the Chief Executive (with the Head of Planning 
Services providing an advisory role) in consultation with the 
Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Planning Committee when 
both are available, and either if only one is available. Where 
relevant, Ward Councillors will also be encouraged to submit 
comments prior to planning applications being determined. 

 

 Planning Committee meetings include previously undertaken site 
visits and it has always been recognised that such visits are an 
important part of members gaining a full understanding of the site 
and the relevant planning issues. The Head of Planning Services 
will arrange for photographs and a video of the sites to be made 
available, and the Chairman and Vice Chairman would be invited 
to separately visit the sites using the relevant maps provided, 
which would show appropriate vantage points.  

 
5.2.2     Licensing Committee 
 
No additional delegations are proposed as there are legal limitations 
that prevent many licensing matters under the Licensing Act 2003, 
being delegated to officers. Any Licensing Act matter that needs to be 
decided will be dealt with by a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee, 
convened virtually. This approach has already been successfully trialled 
in the period April to September 2020.  
 
Any urgent matters in respect of taxi licensing will be dealt with by the 
Head of Service or Corporate Director under existing delegated powers.  
New applications for driver badges, the most common committee 
referrals, are not being dealt with at the moment, so only urgent conduct 
matters involving existing licensees will be determined by officers. 
 
5.2.3     Audit Committee 
 
Virtual Audit Committee meetings to be trialled following the approach 
taken to Full Council in September. Where this is not feasible in the view 
of the Chief Executive, the following contingency arrangements will apply 
as they did between April and September 2020: 
 
 

Page 6



 
That authority be delegated to the s.151 Officer, or Head of 
Governance, in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee or with 
the Vice Chairman if the Chairman is unavailable, to take decisions or 
make approvals as required.  
 
5.2.4     Employment and Appeals Committee 
 
No delegations are proposed. Given the nature of this committee it 
would not be appropriate to delegate authority to officers.  
 
5.2.5     Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
A reduced number of virtual meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (O&S) will be trialled following consultation between the 
Chairman and the Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager. 
Meetings will only be held to consider specific work areas that support 
the key decision-making of the council e.g. the annual review of 
proposed Fees and Charges, Treasury Management and the statutory 
review of the Crime and Disorder Partnership. 
 
Normal call-in procedures will apply from October 2020. 
 

  5.2.6     Council 
 
No specific delegation proposed. Following the successful meeting in 
September, virtual meetings are to be held but only when a decision is 
required to be made e.g. mayor-making, the annual budget meeting and 
approval of the localised council tax support scheme. Where reports 
would only be for noting, no meeting will take place and Executive 
Reports will not be produced during the stated period. 
 
If a situation arises that would normally require a decision of the Council 
as a matter of urgency then the Chief Executive can instead use the 
delegated emergency powers referred to in this report. 
 

 

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 
There are no financial implications arising directly from this 
report. 
 

Legal 

The delegations referred to in this report ensure that the 
Council can continue to make decisions and carry out its 
functions during the coronavirus pandemic. 
 

 
  

Page 7



 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist 
officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There 
are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues 
marked with a x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety x  asset management x 

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

sustainability x  ICT x 

health and safety x  data protection x 

 
Processing Personal Data 

 
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also 
required.  If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection 
and processing of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a 
new working arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed 
and signed off by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance 
with the Data Protection Act 2018.  
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Peter Foulsham 01253 887606 Peter.foulsham@wyre.gov.uk 
24 

September 
2020 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

None   

 
 
List of appendices 
 
None 

Page 8



 
 

Report of: Meeting Date 

Cllr Bridge, Street Scene, 
Parks and Open Spaces 
Portfolio Holder and Mark 

Billington, Corporate 
Director Environment 

Delegated to the Chief 
Executive under Emergency 

Powers 
30 September 2020 

 

Review of Consultation and Implementation of a Public Space Protection 
Order (PSPO) for Dog Control 

 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
 

To summarise the consultation feedback following the review of the 
Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) relating to dog controls, agree 
changes and to seek approval for the Senior Solicitor to make the Order 
in accordance with regulations published by the Secretary of State. 

   
2. Outcomes 

 
 2.1 

 
 

The making of the new Order will enable authorised officers to continue 
to enforce across the borough in relation to dog fouling and dog control 
measures. 
 

3. Recommendations 
 

 3.1 
 
 

That Cabinet agree to the making of the PSPO (six control measures) as 
shown in Appendix A.  
 

 3.2 
 
 

That dog control measures are applied to Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park 
on the condition that Lancashire County Council (LCC) undertake a 
communication campaign, provide signage on site and continue to 
support a programme of patrolling and enforcement at their expense 
utilising the councils enforcement partners and that they handle customer 
enquiries. 
 

 3.3 To authorise the Senior Solicitor to correct any minor drafting errors that 
may be identified and make minor amendments including deletions and 
insertions that may be necessary to ensure the PSPO and supporting 
maps is accurate. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 
 

On 18 October 2017, Cabinet approved a PSPO relating to a range of 
dog control measures across the borough following a period of statutory 
consultation. 
 

 4.2 The PSPO statutory provisions arising from the Anti-social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014, require PSPOs to be reviewed every three 
years. 
 

 4.3 A public consultation exercise was undertaken during summer 2020; the 
statutory consultees were notified direct along with nationally interested 
parties e.g. Dogs Trust / Kennel Club and local community and voluntary 
groups e.g. Friends of Parks, the YMCA and grassroots sports clubs 
alongside wider consultation on the council’s website and other media 
channels for residents and other stakeholders. 
 

 4.4 Dog fouling and dog related anti-social behaviour is a concern to local 
residents and elected members, clearly evident from the Life in Wyre 
Surveys, ongoing reports to the council, observation by council officers 
working on site and Friends of Parks Groups.  The table below shows the 
reported incidents over recent years. 
 

Year No Dog Fouling Incidents 

2016/2017 417 

2017/2018 356 

2018/2019 381 

2019/2020 303 

 
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 

Consultation response - the council received 195 responses, which have 
proved very helpful in assessing the continued need for dog control, the 
scope of the need for dog control measures, and forming a better 
understanding on public views. 
 

 5.2 
 
 

The level of response and wide range of views expressed illustrates what 
an important issue responsible dog ownership and the impact on wildlife 
/public open space is to both dog owners and non-dog owners. The 
responses received reflect users from a wide geographical spread within 
the borough and some from outside Wyre and capture both dog owners 
and non-dog owners; with 70% either currently owning (67%) or caring 
for a dog either in a private or professional capacity (3%). 
 

 5.3 The reports in the appendices provide a full summary of the findings 
and raw data comments. The reports are in two sections, firstly 
capturing the consultation on the measures currently adopted 

Page 10



(Appendix B) and, secondly the feedback on the proposed inclusion of 
measures at Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park (Appendix C). 
 

 5.4 In general the responses to key questions dealing with the continuation 
of the current control measures and suggestions for changes in relation 
to unfenced (not enclosed) sports pitches were well supported, as can 
be seen in the Table below.   
 
Question summaries excluding comments. (for the 
comprehensive list of questions please see Appendix a16 
The questionnaire under Appendix B)  

Response % 

Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the 
extension of the order/offence in relation to… 

Yes No  

Dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 
control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 

23% 77% 

The requirement to put dogs on leads by direction from an 
authorised officer? 

21% 79% 

The requirement to have dogs on leads in certain areas? 37% 63% 

Should dogs be banned from the cemeteries? System error. No 
response entries 

The practice of other authorities is that the exclusion of dogs 
on unfenced marked pitches applies only when an organised 
activity is taking place. Do you agree with this proposed 
change? 

74% 26% 

Do you think the ban on the two bathing beaches should be 
applied all year round? 

24% 76% 

Do you think the ban on the two bathing 

beaches should remain seasonal (1 May to 30 

September) but be limited to 10:00-20:00? 

56% 44% 

Have you any comments or concerns regarding the extension 
of the order that restricts the number of dogs one person can 
exercise at a time in certain areas?  

36% 64% 

Do you have comments or concerns regarding the extension 
of the order, where it is an offence to not have the means to 
pick up after the dog under your control when asked by an 
authorised officer?   

13% 87% 

Do you agree with the level of the Fixed Penalty for non-
compliance remaining at £100? 

76% 24% 

 
Please note the above percentages have been rounded. 

 
 5.5 The requirement to apply a borough wide PSPO to pick up dog foul and 

to have the means to pick up when requested by an authorised officer 
was heavily supported.   
 

 5.6 This reflects the ill feeling towards dog fouling, the impact it can have on 
health, affect quality of place/enjoyment of an environment and mess it 
can create. It is recognised that some respondents have concerns about 
the level of enforcement action in relation to dog fouling. On a positive, 
the number of reports of dog fouling incidents has fallen over the last 
three years and since working with an external enforcement partner the 
number of fixed penalty notices issued for dog fouling has increased (Full 
Council Reports by the Street Scene, Parks and Open Spaces Portfolio 
Holder, provide regular updates on fixed penalty notices issued).   

Page 11



 
 5.7 However, catching irresponsible dog owners / walkers allowing their dog to 

foul and not clearing up is notoriously difficult owing to the large 
geographical area that needs to be covered and the times that some dog 
owners walk their dogs. It is human nature that many people comply 
when they can be observed by others, especially when uniformed officers 
are within close proximity. Enforcement is intelligence led by complaints 
and information from the public. 
 

 5.8 Authorised officers patrol reported hot-spot areas and respond to 
intelligence from local residents of times / locations for known offenders. 
However the officers cannot be everywhere all of the time, so welcome 
feedback / reports from the general public to work with the council to 
combat dog fouling and ensure that the small minority of offenders 
become more responsible. The council needs local residents and visitors 
to be willing to assist in this process and provide statements for court where 
necessary.   
 

 5.9 In order to increase the pressure on irresponsible owners, a new 
requirement was included in 2017 which required those in charge of a 
dog(s) to be equipped with suitable means when walking their dog(s) to 
pick up dog faeces. Rather than having to catch a person in the act of 
not picking up, this means an offence is committed if a person does not 
have a means of picking up the faeces should the dog defecate. This 
continues to be supported by 87% of respondents. 

 

 5.10 Many responders’, have made reference to litter being more prevalent 
than dog fouling, in particular on beaches, suggesting that people leave 
a greater mess and are contributing to a bigger problem for the quality of 
bathing water and beaches. It is acknowledged that this is also a 
concern, and sadly during the current pandemic, appears to be a national 
issue. Enforcement officers patrol and regulate both contraventions.  The 
council is committed to a cleaner, greener environment. 
 

 5.11 It is recognised that some respondents have questioned the provision of 
litterbins. Over recent years there has been a standardisation of bins and 
removal of the small singular dog bins, which were not fit for purpose with 
new dual purpose litter bins. Street and park litter bins can accept both 
litter and bagged dog foul and the council continues to promote this 
message. There are over 900 bins across the borough. The absence of 
a litterbin is not a reasonable defence against the offence of failing to 
clear up after a dog. Dog owners / keepers should bag the waste and 
carry it to the next nearest bin or take it home with them. The same 
applies to all litter. 
 

 5.12 A number of people responded suggesting that the council should provide 
free ‘poo’ bag dispensers or vending machines on popular sites as offered 
on the continent. This has been evaluated previously, but it is questionable 
as to whether it is making the minority more responsible as they are not 
accepting responsibility to provide bags themselves and become reliant on 

Page 12



the council, whereas other responsible dog owners happily provide their 
own and pick up. It raises the question of what would happen if they went 
to areas without a dispenser or the dispenser was empty, or if the dog 
fouled prior to getting to a site with a dispenser.  Similarly, reports from 
other Local Authorities have suggested that the dispensers become a 
focus for vandalism and littering. 
 

 5.13 There remains strong support (79%) for the requirement for an authorised 
officer to request a dog to be put on a lead in certain areas; this provides 
reassurance in areas where there may be a clash with other users and if a 
dog is not under close control. This is considered more favourable by some 
than the requirement to have dogs on a lead in nominated areas; whilst still 
a majority support this (63%) some respondents feel that it restricts 
opportunities to exercise dogs. These areas are where there is likely to be 
a safety concern e.g. highways and car parks or conflict is likely with other 
users or wildlife requiring close control at all times. 
 

 5.14 It is recognised that dogs in cemeteries can be a very emotive issue and 
these areas should be respected. However many families wish to take 
dogs to visit their loved ones whilst paying their respects. Over the last 
three years, officers have noticed and received reports of problems with 
dog fouling or owners using the cemeteries as a general exercise area.  
Unfortunately there was a glitch in the consultation software system and 
the responses in relation to whether dogs should be banned from 
cemeteries were not captured. It is therefore suggested the current 
measures remain; requiring dogs to be on a lead under close control and 
restricted to pathways.  
 

 5.15 The current Order includes areas where dogs are excluded, ranging from 
multi-use play areas, tennis courts, playing fields, bowling greens, skate 
parks, pitch and putt sites, picnic areas, Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) and the bathing beaches. 53% of respondents had no 
concerns or comments regarding the extension of this order.  There has 
always been strong support for play areas; however the beaches and 
playing fields that are not enclosed have been subject to queries over the 
last three years. Hence separate questions were asked to gauge 
feedback on this issue specifically. 
 

 5.16 For playing fields with marked pitches that are not enclosed / unfenced; 
the consultation asked for feedback on allowing access to dogs when not 
in use for organised activity.  This practice is commonplace across other 
Local Authority areas and reportedly easier to manage and provides a 
more balanced approach for all users of the land. This was supported by 
almost three quarters of respondents; the main concern being about the 
level of fouling and reports of groups having to spend considerable time 
checking pitches ahead of use. This however already has to take place. 
It is recommended this amendment is made and to support this change 
enhanced signage and signage for groups to display when in use will be 
developed alongside regular enforcement patrols.  
 

Page 13



 5.17 The exclusion of dogs to two sections of beach on a seasonal basis (May 
– September) continues to split views. The bans have been in place for 
a number of years in the amenity beach areas recognising that these are 
the areas safer for bathing and patrolled by the lifeguards in the bathing 
season. 
 

 5.18 The localised seasonal beach ban equates to a seasonal ban on just 
1.43km of beach, with a further 11.07km open access / no restrictions. 
The council recognises that children and dogs should be able to socialise 
under supervision, but equally some families may choose to come to the 
beach to be away from dogs. By limiting the ban to the amenity areas 
only, this leaves wide expanses either side that dogs can roam freely. 
 

 5.19 The consultation asked for feedback on whether the exclusion of dogs 
on the two bathing beaches should be applied all year round or restricted 
seasonally with a timeframe of 10.00 – 20.00. 
 

 5.20 The majority of respondents (76%) were against the exclusion applying 
all year round, favouring the summer months only; with many indicating 
it is quieter and not used for bathing outside this time; whilst some dog 
owners, clearly aware that not everyone is comfortable with dogs agreed 
that this would be acceptable as it is such a small area. 

 5.21 The suggestion was put to restrict the exclusion to a timeframe of 10.00-
20.00, based on anecdotal evidence and feedback from users that the 
beaches are quieter outside these times, with families and bathers not 
necessarily using at this time. There was a slight majority for this, with 
many commenting that a timeframe was a fairer approach. However 
respondents suggested a range of alternative timeframes based on their 
own interpretations of when families would use these sections of beach.  
It is therefore suggested the current conditions remain in place. They 
have been in place for many years now, locals are aware, the bathing 
water quality has improved, it prevents confusion, allows safe access for 
bathers around the different tide conditions and is easier to manage and 
it keeps in line with our neighbouring councils’ bathing beach restrictions. 
 

 5.22 The consultation questions on beaches returned many comments in 
relation to wider litter issues on beaches; this has been addressed 
above. 
 

 5.23 64% of respondents agreed that a maximum of four dogs exercised by 
one person should be continued in the designated areas. On reviewing 
the feedback, it seems that some respondents have included 
comments in this section in reference to the proposed changes at 
Fleetwood Nature Park. This will be discussed further in section 5.47. 
 

 5.24 76% agreed with the level of the fixed penalty for non-compliance; a 
slight majority were in favour of a higher penalty. It is felt this remains 
proportionate. 
 

 5.25 It is essential that enforcement works hand-in-hand with education. The 

Page 14



council will continue to promote responsible behaviour change 
campaigns, including ‘bag it and bin it – any bin will do’, alongside other 
anti-littering messages. We will work with partner agencies, both 
nationally and locally and local schools to help promote this message. 
 

 5.26 Following the last review, the council created a Dog Friendly Wyre 
facebook page which encourages sharing of information on places to 
walk or eat out with your dog, with local businesses advertising 
services, such as private fields / indoor areas to rent to exercise your 
dogs individually or in groups, dog training / behavioural advice / dog 
walking companies to dog friendly establishments in the borough e.g. 
cafes and the sharing of health concerns, events. This currently has 
over 800 followers. 
 

 5.27 It should be noted that the comments across all areas are very mixed 
with some suggestions that the council are discriminating against 
responsible dog owners and clearly ‘anti-dog’, even restricting business 
practices, whilst others suggesting the actions are not restrictive 
enough. This illustrates that this continues to be a very complex area 
and it is difficult to achieve the full consensus of everyone as opinions 
will vary widely depending on individual / organisational interests / 
experiences with dogs. In making this Order the approach taken is one 
that is necessary and proportionate in response to the problems caused 
by the activities of dogs and those in charge of them. The Order seeks 
to balance the interests of those in charge of dogs against the interests 
of those affected by the activities of dogs. 
 

 5.28 Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park (FMNP) 
There are currently no dog control orders on FMNP at Fleetwood. This 
land is owned and under the jurisdiction of LCC. LCC officers wish to 
introduce a range of control measures for the site bringing it in line with 
measures for other public spaces in Wyre following concerns about the 
impact on wildlife at the site and as a result of complaints about 
irresponsible dog owners / walkers. 
 

 5.29 LCC have suggested a range of measures for the site that continue to 
allow dogs access to much of the site, with the restrictions suggested to 
kerb the detrimental impacts dogs and dog walkers are having on the 
wildlife on parts of the reserve. 
 

 5.30 FMNP sits on the site of the former Fleetwood power station. The site lay 
derelict for a number of years before it was acquired by LCC in the 1980s.  
Using funding from English Partnerships Derelict Land Grant the 20 
hectare site was opened to the public in the late 1990s. 
 

 5.31 It is not a nature reserve by accredited status, but has the title Nature Park 
as this recognises the high biodiversity interest the site has / had. With 
limited public access during its working days as a power station the diverse 
nature of the site provided for a range of habitats to develop. Cooling 
lagoons, estuarine environments and herb rich grasslands developed 

Page 15



providing a host of habitats for breeding birds, wildflowers, insect colonies 
and other invertebrates. The site is recognised as a county Biological 
Heritage Site. FMNP of today, presents a very different picture; it is now 
an established green space serving a large urban population that has in 
recent years grown resulting in significant pressures on site. 
 

 5.32 LCC officers report that like many urban fringe open spaces FMNP has its 
fair share of challenging issues to deal with. Fly tipping, motorbikes, illicit 
evening drinking and drug taking, BBQs, fires and fireworks all happen in 
the park. The County Council and its contracted ranger deal with this on a 
regular basis. They report in addition to this, dogs, dog walkers and the 
sheer number of dogs is become a challenging issue across the site; 
suggesting that over the last five years they have seen an increase in 
reports and concerns about the levels of dog use, dog related issues and 
inconsiderate dog owners (and dog walkers). They have received feedback 
that parents with young children will no longer visit FMNP and older dog 
owners are keeping away as a result of safety concerns – particularly the 
fear of being knocked over and the level of dog foul. 
 

 5.33 The proposals made do not stop dogs and dog owners or professional dog 
walkers from using the site; the purpose is to ensure that one particular 
type of user does not dominate, to the detriment of others or the biological 
importance of the site.   
 

 5.34 In the summer of 2018 Fleetwood Town Council led a consultation on site 
about the future of FMNP.  Without exception the issue and concerns 
about dogs, professional dog walkers and dog related "issues" came out 
as key concerns. 
 

 5.35 In the summer of 2018 LCC employed a "contract ranger" to provide a 
level of regular attendance on site, to help assure visitors, kerb anti-social 
activity, encourage responsible behaviour and provide maintenance 
cover. The ranger has a number of years' experience of working at FMNP 
and has observed behaviours of all types with no noticeable improvement 
during this period. 
 

 5.36 When FMNP was first developed there was no need for a dog waste bin.  
With the start of development at Leeward Avenue visitor numbers have 
increased and bins have been provided. Four additional bins have had to 
be provided illustrating the heavy use by dog walkers although on a 
positive note it should be recognised that that the bins are being used. 
 

 5.37 LCC report that in the time the Nature Park has been open to the public, 
biodiversity interest has decreased. The species rich grassland areas 
close to the car parks have seen an increase in grass species and a 
decline in herbs / wildflowers. Trampling (human and canine) and 
increases in nutrients are most likely to be the cause. Ground nesting 
birds, sky lark as an example, are now down to one pair on the 
accessible open areas. 
 

Page 16



 5.38 The new lagoon was a renowned site for Black-tailed Skimmer and Red-
veined Darter, (dragon flies) and the presence of dogs using the lagoon 
as a play area is having a damaging effect on both the adult insects and 
the aquatic larvae. 
 

 5.39 In the period 2015 to 2020 LCC have received over 30 reports of dog 
related incidents on site; including a broken leg, 10 dogs walked by one 
person and a huskie dog out of control jumping up at an elderly visitor. 

  
5.40 

 
The Section 2 report in Appendix C provides the full summary reports 
and raw data comments. The table below illustrates the headline 
findings. 
Lancashire County Council have asked if 
respondents agree with the control measures that… 

 
Yes 

 
No  

Dogs be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on 
the map 001 at all times? 

41% 59% 

Dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (see Map 002) 41% 59% 

A maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of 
one person is applied across the whole site (see Map 
003) 

65% 35% 

There will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have 
the means to pick up foul across the whole site (map 004 
/005) 

98% 2% 

An authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a 
lead (see Map 006) 

76% 24% 

 

  
5.41 

 
A majority of respondents were against the proposal to exclude dogs 
from parts of the site including the lagoons, suggesting that there are not 
enough areas for dogs to be allowed to run freely and the lagoons 
provided a place to cool down when hot. Many indicated they had never 
seen dogs out of control and that greater efforts should be made to tackle 
those that are rather than penalise everyone. The feedback from LCC 
and the exercise by Fleetwood Town Council suggests different. 
 

 5.42 Parts of the site will still allow dogs to be off the lead and this approach 
provides relief to the wildlife negatively impacted by trampling and dog 
activity. There appears to be a misconception by some that dogs cannot 
go on the beaches at Fleetwood; as stated earlier the restriction only 
applies to a small section at Marine beach from May to September. 
LCC have recently invested £10,000 in a new 700m all season perimeter 
trail suitable for wheelchairs, mobility scooters and visitors with mobility 
issues to assist with site access for all. 
 

 5.43 The responders in support were in favour of supporting wildlife and 
suggested that signage could be used to clearly display why the ban 
exists and what wildlife people could expect to see and that they are 
helping to protect. This will be suggested to LCC. LCC have confirmed 
access to some parts of the water will still be available but prefer limited 

Page 17



access for safety and ecology and advisory signage will support this 
approach. 
 

 5.44 Natural England commissioned a study to assess the recreational activity 
and interactions with birds on the north-west coast (Footprint Ecology, 
(2020) recreational activity and interactions with birds on the north-west 
coast). Whilst this part of the estuary was not assessed, Rossall Point 
and Flukehall in Wyre were chosen along with eight other NW sites and 
key headlines published in the report on their website on 26 August 2020 
include: 

 Dog walking was the activity that resulted in a behavioural 
response; for example dog walking caused 77% of major flights 
and flushed 89% of the birds seen. 

 They found significant differences between dog walkers 
comparing dogs off leads to dogs on leads. 

 Birds typically responded to the presence of people when they 
were in close proximity, with birds tending to take flight when 
people were around 50m away or closer. 

 
This supports the findings of LCC officers who have witnessed similar 
activity and results at FMNP. 
 

 5.45 The proposal for dogs on a lead on certain parts of the site, generated 
the same response to the exclusion, with the common thread being it 
was considered unfair and restrictive. Others were in support, suggesting 
it should be applied to the whole site, especially during the breeding 
season. 
 

 5.46 There was majority support (65%) for a limit on the number of dogs that 
could be walked under the control of one person. Much of the feedback 
was that four was actually too many for one person to be in full control of 
at all times and others indicating issues on site with dog walking 
businesses. Of those that commented and were against the measure, 
many of them were professional dog walkers explaining their ability to 
maintain control of more than four dogs and the negative impact it could 
have on their business. Whilst professional dog walkers should be 
insured and only walk the number of dogs cited on their policy, there has 
been guidance produced for professional dog walkers that has been 
endorsed by known industry bodies, for example, Dogs Trust, RSPCA 
and Pet Industry Federation that recommends no more than four should 
be walked together.  
 

 5.47 The support for the requirement to pick up foul and have the means to 
pick was almost unanimously supported (98%) and the ability for an 
authorised officer to request a dog out of control is put on a lead was also 
strongly supported. 
 

 5.48 LCC have committed to put in place a communication campaign to 
promote the changes in advance of any enforcement, provide clear 
signage across the site, seek to make clear the exclusion zones and will 

Page 18



commit to paying for enforcement patrols on site using Wyre approved 
partners. 
 

 5.49 Signage will be reviewed and amended across the borough if necessary, 
this will continue to be supported with wider digital communications. LCC 
be required to put in place approved signage and a communication 
campaign to inform users of the changes to their site. 
 

 5.50 Parish and Town Councils will be approached to provide financial support 
to provide additional / upgraded signage at their sites. 
 

 5.51 Council officers, along with partners, will continue to use other tools 
available to them to tackle cases of dogs / dog owners reportedly behaving 
irresponsibly in a public place. This may range from acceptable behaviour 
contracts, community protection notices, to signposting for dog training. 
 

 5.52 It is considered that the continuation of dog control measures would have 
a positive effect on the lives of residents and the wider community 
making it a safer, cleaner and more attractive environment. The Life in 
Wyre Surveys have illustrated that irresponsible dog ownership and fouling 
are issues of great concern to the local community. 
 

 5.53 Equality Impact Screening has been reviewed in relation to the PSPO. 
This did identify the fact that the enforcement of the PSPO is likely to 
involve work with vulnerable people and disabled people. However this 
should not result in any group being discriminated against. For example, 
it continues to include exemptions for people with accredited guide or 
assistance dogs; recognising the need to access areas and possible 
limitations for them and anyone with a disability or physical impairment 
making them unable to pick up dog waste. Similarly Authorised Officers 
would assess the mental capacity of an individual at the time or on 
provision of supporting evidence and seek alternative support / 
engagement to address an issue on an individual basis from partner 
agencies. 

   

 

Financial and legal implications 

 

 
Finance 

It is anticipated that there will be costs associated with new 
and updated signage for public space protection orders in 
the parks and other areas where they need to be displayed 
and these costs will be met from existing budgets. 
 
LCC will be expected to cover the costs for signage at the 
Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park and Town and Parish 
Councils will be asked to contribute towards their sites if they 
request additional signage. 
 

Page 19



 
Legal 

The Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
(“the Act”) came into effect on 20 October 2014. 
Section 59 of the Act gives local authorities the power to 
make PSPOs which are intended to deal with anti-social 
behaviour and nuisance in a particular area that is 
detrimental to the local community’s quality of life by 
imposing conditions on the use of that area. 

 

Before making a PSPO, councils must consult with the 
local police (section 72(3) and 72(4) of the Act). 
The Act also stipulates that councils must consult with the 
local community on any proposed PSPO. PSPO’s must be 
reviewed at least every three years. Consultation 
opportunities have been widely publicised within 
communities, councillors, business partner agencies, the 
media and websites and social media in addition to the 
statutory consultees. 
 
Anyone who lives in or regularly works or visits the area 
can appeal a PSPO in the High Court within six weeks of 
issue. The PSPO will be publicised locally. 

 
With regard to breaches of a PSPO, it is an offence for 
anyone, without reasonable excuse, to do anything s/he is 
prohibited from doing by virtue of the order. Furthermore, it 
is an offence for anyone, without reasonable excuse, to fail 
to comply with a requirement in the PSPO. Section 67 of 
the Act specifies that anyone found guilty of an offence 
can be fined up to £1,000 by the Magistrates’ Court. 
Section 68 of the Act provides that, in the alternative, a 
constable or authorised officer of the Local Authority may 
serve a fixed penalty notice on those in alleged breach 
offering them the opportunity to discharge liability by 
payment of Fixed Penalty Notice in an amount set by each 
local authority up to £100. Fixed penalty notices in Wyre 
for anti-social behaviour offences are currently set at £100. 
 
 

Page 20



 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with 
a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers 
on those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no 
significant implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with a 
x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety   asset management x 

equality and diversity   climate change  

sustainability   data protection x 

health and safety   asset management x 

 
Processing Personal Data 

 
In addition to considering data protection along with the other risks/ implications, the 
report author will need to decide if a ‘privacy impact assessment (PIA)’ is also required.  
If the decision(s) recommended in this report will result in the collection and processing 
of personal data for the first time (i.e. purchase of a new system, a new working 
arrangement with a third party) a PIA will need to have been completed and signed off 
by Data Protection Officer before the decision is taken in compliance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018.  
 

report author telephone no. email date 

Ruth Hunter 01253 
887478 

Ruth.Hunter@wyre.gov
.uk 

 

 
 

List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

None   

 
 
List of appendices 

Appendix A – PSPO  (including Schedules 1-6) 
 

Appendix B – Consultation Summary Report Section 1, supporting raw data 
comments appendices a1-a10 and questionnaire a16  

 
Appendix C - Consultation Summary Report Section 2 FMNP, supporting raw 
data comments appendices a11-a15 

 
Appendix D - Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 21

mailto:Ruth.Hunter@wyre.gov.uk
mailto:Ruth.Hunter@wyre.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 

 

WYRE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

DOG CONTROL AND DOG FOULING 

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2020 

 

Wyre Borough Council (“the Council”) in exercise of its power under section 59 of the 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”) and of all other enabling 
powers being satisfied that the conditions set out in section 59 of the Act have been 
met hereby makes the following Order:- 

 

1. The effect of this Order is to impose the following prohibitions and/or 
requirements in the public places described in the Schedules to this Order and 
where appropriate shown edged in red / colour on the plans annexed to this 
Order. 
 

Offences 

2. Fouling of Land by Dogs 
 
(a)  If a dog defecates at any time on  land referred to in Schedule 1 of this 

Order and the person who is in charge of the dog at the time fails to 
remove the faeces from the land forthwith, that person shall be guilty of 
an offence unless:- 
 
(i) That person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 
(ii) The owner/occupier or other person or authority having control of 

the land has consented (generally or specifically) to that person 
failing to do so; or 

(iii) That person is subject to the exemptions listed in Article 8. 

 

3. Means to pick up dog faeces 
 
(a) A person in charge of a dog on land referred to in Schedule 2 of this 

Order, shall be guilty of an offence, if, at any time, he does not comply 
with a direction given to him by an Authorised Officer of the Council to 
produce  a device for or other suitable means of removing dog faeces 
and transporting it to a bin  (whether or not the dog has defecated) 
unless:- 
 
(i) That person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 
(ii) The owner/occupier or other person or authority having control of 

the land has consented (generally or specifically) to that person 
failing to do so; or 

Page 23



(iii) That person is subject to the exemptions listed in Article 8. 

 

 
4. Dog on lead by direction 

 
(a) A person in charge of a dog shall be guilty of an offence, if , at any time  

on land referred to in Schedule 3 of this Order, he does not comply with 
a direction given to him by an Authorised Officer of the Council to put 
and keep the dog on a lead under close control unless:- 
 
(i) That person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 
(ii) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of 

the land has consented (generally or specifically) to that person 
failing to do so. 
  

(b)  For the purpose of this Article: 
(i) An Authorised officer of the Council may only give a direction 

under this Article to put and keep a dog on a lead if such restraint 
is reasonably necessary to prevent a nuisance or behaviour by 
the dog likely to cause annoyance or disturbance to any other 
person or the worrying or disturbance of any other animal or bird 
on any land to which this article applies. 

 

5. Dogs on leads 
 
(a)  A person in charge of a dog shall be guilty of an offence, if, at any time  

on land referred to in Schedule 4 of this Order, he does not keep the dog 
on a lead under close control unless:- 
 

(i)  That person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 

(ii) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control 
of the land has consented (generally or specifically) to that 
person failing to do so. 

 

6. Dogs Excluded 
 
(a)  A person in charge of  a dog shall be guilty of an offence, if, at any time 

he takes the dog onto, or permits the dog to enter or remain on land 
referred to in Schedule 5 of this Order unless:- 

 
(i) That person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 
(ii) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of 

the land has consented (generally or specifically) to that person 
doing so; or 

(iii) That person is subject to the exemptions listed in Article 8. 

Page 24



 

 
7. Maximum number of dogs 

 
(a)  A person in charge of  more than one dog shall be guilty of an offence if, 

at any time he takes more than four dogs on land referred to in Schedule 
6 of this Order unless: 
 
(i) That person has a reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or 
(ii) The owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of 

the land has consented (generally or specifically) to doing so. 

 

8. Exemptions  
 
(a)      Nothing in Articles 2, 3 and 6 shall apply to a person who – 

 
i. is registered as a blind person in a register compiled under section 29 of 

the National Assistance Act 1948; or 
ii. is deaf, in respect of a dog trained by Hearing Dogs for Deaf People 

(registered charity number 293358) and upon which he relies for 
assistance; or 

iii. who has a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and 
long term adverse effect on the ability to carry out normal day to day 
activities including affecting his mobility, manual dexterity, physical 
coordination or ability to lift, carry or otherwise move everyday objects in 
respect of a dog trained by a prescribed charity or such other 
charity/approved body as  is considered appropriate by the Council and 
upon which he relies for assistance or 

iv. is training an assistance dog for one of the prescribed charities or such 
other charity/approved body as is considered appropriate by the Council. 

v. is not a person falling within the criteria mentioned in paragraphs i to v 
above but who the Council considers should be exempt due to the 
impairment of that particular person. 
 

(b) Nothing in the Order shall apply to the normal activities of a working dog 
whilst the dog is working. This includes dogs that are being used for work 
in connection with emergency search and rescue, law enforcement and 
the work of HM Armed Forces and farm dogs that are being used to herd 
or drive animals. 

For the purpose of this Order –  

 A person who habitually has a dog in his possession shall be taken to be in 
charge of the dog at any time unless at that time some other person is in charge 
of the dog; 

 Placing the faeces forthwith in a receptacle on the land which is provided for 
the purpose, or for the disposal of waste, shall be sufficient removal from the 
land; 

Page 25



 Being unaware of the defecation (whether by reason of not being in the vicinity 
or otherwise), or not having a devise for or other suitable means of removing 
the faeces shall not be a reasonable excuse for failing to remove the faeces; 

 An “Authorised Officer of the Authority” means an employee, partnership 
agency / organisation or contractor of Wyre Borough Council who is authorised 
in writing by Wyre Borough Council for the purpose of giving direction under the 
Order. 

 Each of the following is a “prescribed charity”. 
 Dogs for the Disabled (registered charity number 700454), 
 Support Dogs Limited (registered charity number 1088281), 
 Canine Partners for Independence (registered charity number (803680). 

 

9. Penalty 
 
A person who is guilty of an offence under this Order shall be liable on summary 
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale. 
 
 
 

10. In Force 
 
This Order shall come into force on        for a period of three years.  
 
 
 

Dated this      day of               2020. 

 

The Common Seal of Wyre Borough Council was hereto affixed in the presence of: 

 

 

 

Authorised Signatory  

Page 26



SCHEDULES 

 

SCHEDULE 1 – FOULING OF LAND BY DOGS 

 

Subject to the exception in paragraph 3 below, Schedule 1 applies to all land which is 
within the administrative area of Wyre Borough Council and which is – 

 

1. Open to the air (which includes land that is covered but open to the air on at 
least one side); and 
 

2. To which the public are entitled or permitted to have access with or without 
payment 
 

3. Excepted from the description in paragraph1 above is land that is placed at the 
disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 
1967. 
 

 

  

Page 27



 

SCHEDULE 2 – MEANS TO PICK UP DOG FAECES 

 

 

 

Subject to the exception in paragraph 3 below, Schedule 2 applies to all land which is 
within the administrative area of Wyre Borough Council and which is – 

1. Open to the air (which includes land that is covered but open to the air on at 
least one side); and 
 

2. To which the public are entitled or permitted to have access with or without 
payment. 
 

3. Excepted from the description in paragraph 1 above is land that is placed at the 
disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 
1967. 
 

Page 28



 

 

 

Schedule 3 
Dogs on Leads by Direction 

Page 29



SCHEDULE 3 – 

DOGS ON LEAD BY DIRECTION 
 

Description of Land to which Schedule 3 applies: 

 

1. The areas of land  listed below, which are open to the air and to which the pubic 
are entitled or permitted to have access (with or without payment) within the 
Borough of Wyre 
 

Garstang/Catterall sites: Map Ref 

Canterbury Way Garstang GC1 

Derbyshire Avenue Garstang GC2 

Garstang Riverside Area GC3 
  

Over Wyre sites  

Bilsborrow Recreational Ground OW1 

Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field Hambleton, dog exercise 
area only 

OW2A 

Lancaster Avenue Great Eccleston OW3 

Pennine View Playing Fields Great Eccleston OW4 

Preesall Playing Fields OW5 

Shorrocks Avenue Playing Field St Michaels OW6 

Stalmine Playing Field OW7 
  

Thornton/Cleveleys Area sites  

Bourne Way Playing Fields TC1 

Branksome Avenue  TC2 

Church Road Playing Field TC3 

Croasdale Drive Playing Field TC4 

Hargreaves St./Holly Road TC5 

Jubilee Gardens TC6 

Kenyon Park TC7 

King Georges Playing Field TC8 

North Drive Park TC9 

Pheasants Wood TC10 

The Towers TC11 

Wyre Estuary Country Park TC12 

Cleveleys Beach from Café Cove to Wyre boundary (out of ban 
season only) 

TC13A 

  

Poulton/Carleton sites:  

Caldicott Way/Donnington Road PLF1 

Civic Centre Playing Field PLF2 

Compley Ave POS PLF3 

Cottam Hall Playing Field PLF4 

Farnham Way PLF5 

Jean Stansfield/Vicarage Park PLF6 

Tithebarn Park PLF7 

Page 30



Fleetwood sites: Map Ref 

Eskdale Avenue Park FWD1 

KGV Playing Field FWD2 

Memorial Park FWD3 

Mount Gardens FWD4 

Rossall Ecology Park FWD5 

Roundway FWD6 

Fleetwood Beach east side of slipway opposite end of 

Promenade Road eastward to the west wide of the former pier 

(out of ban season only) 

FWD7A 

Fleetwood Promenade from opposite Carr Road to the Five 

Bar Gate Rossall Beach 

FWD8 

Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park – refer to map for exact area 

(subject to LCC for providing patrols and enforcement) 

FWD9A 

 
 

2. This Order does not apply to any land that is placed at the disposal of the 
Forestry Commissioners under section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 1967. 
 

Page 31



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 348479:445322

Date: 12/05/2017

GC1 Canterbury Way Garstang

P
age 32



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 348676:445630

Date: 12/05/2017

GC2 Derbyshire Avenue Garstang

P
age 33



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 349462:445445

Date: 18/05/2017

GC3 Garstang Riverside Area

P
age 34



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 351243:440153

Date: 12/05/2017

OW1 Bilsborrow Recreation Ground

P
age 35



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 337829:442280

Date: 18/05/2017

OW2A Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field Hambleton dog excercise area only

P
age 36



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 343439:440165

Date: 12/05/2017

OW3 Lancaster Avenue Great Eccleston

P
age 37



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 343084:440037

Date: 12/05/2017

OW4 Pennine View Playing Field Great Eccleston

P
age 38



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 336323:448206

Date: 18/05/2017

OW5 Preesall Playing Field

P
age 39



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 346312:441545

Date: 12/05/2017

OW6 Shorrocks Avenue Playing Field St Michaels

P
age 40



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 337326:445487

Date: 18/05/2017

OW7 Stalmine Playing Field

P
age 41



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333233:444014

Date: 12/05/2017

TC1 Bourne Way Playing Field Thornton-Cleveleys

P
age 42



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332885:443180

Date: 12/05/2017

TC2 Branksome Avenue Thornton-Cleveleys

P
age 43



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333407:442636

Date: 12/05/2017

TC3 Church Road Playing Field Thornton

P
age 44



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332775:443620

Date: 12/05/2017

TC4 Croasdale Avenue Playing Field Thornton-Cleveleys

P
age 45



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334018:443042

Date: 12/05/2017

TC5 Hargreaves St/Holly Road Thornton

P
age 46



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331356:443551

Date: 12/05/2017

TC6 Jubilee Gardens Cleveleys

P
age 47



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334850:442321

Date: 12/05/2017

TC7 Kenyon Park Thornton

P
age 48



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333396:442463

Date: 12/05/2017

TC8 King Georges Playing Field Thornton

P
age 49



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332402:443993

Date: 12/05/2017

TC9 North Drive Park Cleveleys

P
age 50



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332870:443973

Date: 12/05/2017

TC10 Pheasant Wood Thornton-Cleveleys

P
age 51



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332622:443101

Date: 12/05/2017

TC11 The Towers Thornton-Cleveleys

P
age 52



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335706:442252

Date: 19/05/2017

TC12 Wyre Estuary Country Park Thornton

P
age 53



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331368:443150

Date: 12/06/2017

TC13A Cleveleys Beach from Cafe Cove to Wyre Borough Boundary (out of ban season only)

P
age 54



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334104:440528

Date: 18/05/2017

PLF1 Caldicott Way/Donnington Road Carleton

P
age 55



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334922:440056

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF2 Civic Centre Playing Field Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 56



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334509:438673

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF 3 Compley Avenue Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 57



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334007:439272

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF4 Cottam Hall Playing Field Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 58



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334227:440416

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF5 Farnham Way Carleton

P
age 59



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335052:439412

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF6 Jean Stansfield and Vicarage Park Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 60



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334511:439879

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF7 Tithebarn Park Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 61



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331734:446271

Date: 12/05/2017

FWD1 Eskdale Avenue Park 

P
age 62



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332328:445561

Date: 12/05/2017

FWD2 King George V Playing Field

P
age 63



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332926:447388

Date: 18/05/2017

FWD3 Memorial Park

P
age 64



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333390:448214

Date: 23/09/2020

FWD4 Mount Gardens

P
age 65



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331371:446132

Date: 12/05/2017

FWD5 Rossall Ecology Park

P
age 66



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331390:445801

Date: 12/05/2017

FWD6 Roundway

P
age 67



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333343:448396

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD7A Fleetwood Beach east side of slipway eastwards to the west side of the former pier (out of ban season only)

P
age 68



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C)
Centre of map: 332087:446357

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD8 Fleetwood Promenade from opposite Carr Road to the Five Bar Gate Rossall Beach

P
age 69



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333631:446597

Date: 23/09/2020

FWD9A Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park

P
age 70



 

 

 

Schedule 4 
Dogs on Leads  

Page 71



SCHEDULE 4- DOGS ON LEAD 

 

Description of Land to which Schedule 4 applies: 

1. Subject to the exception in paragraph 3 below, each and every length of road 
(which term includes pavements or footways and car parks) within the administrative 
area of the Council except public footpaths and bridleways; and 
 
2. Public Open Space Areas, Parks, Recreational/Amenity Areas, Gardens as 
described below. 
 
3. Excepted from the description in paragraph 1 above is land that is placed at the 
disposal of the Forestry Commissioners under section 39(1) of the Forestry Act 
1967. 
 
 

Garstang/Catterall sites: Map Ref 

Catterall Playing Field  GC4 

Kepple Lane Playing Field Garstang  GC5 

Moss Lane Playing Field Garstang  GC6 

  

Over Wyre sites  

Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field Hambleton  OW2B 

Inskip Recreation Area  OW10 

Preesall Cemetery  OW11 

Smallwood Hey Pilling  OW12 

Churchtown Recreation Ground  OW13 

Forton Playing Field  OW14 

Pilling Memorial Hall Recreation Ground  OW15 

Woburn Way Claughton on Brock  OW16 

Scotts Green Winmarleigh  OW17 

  

Thornton/Cleveleys sites:  

Cleveleys Promenade from Five Bar Gate to Wyre Boundary  TC14 

Hawthorne Park  TC15 

Skippool Amenity Site  TC16 

Swan Drive Open Space TC17 

Tarnway  TC18 

Thornton Little Theatre  TC19 

  

Poulton/Carleton sites:  

Carrabine Park PLF8 

Wyre Civic Centre Grounds PLF9 

Derby Road/Shirley Heights PLF10 

Garstang Rd Cemetery PLF11 

Moorland Road Cemetery PLF12 

Poulton Health & Fitness Centre PLF13 

Tomlinson Gardens PLF14 

Page 72



 
 

Fleetwood sites: Map Ref 

Euston Park  FWD10 

Fleetwood Cemetery  FWD11 

Mariners Close Open Space FWD12 

Martindale Park FWD13 

Marine Gardens amenity area (including lakes, pitch & putts) FWD14 

Land between Fleetwood Prom and golf course from Rossall 
Picnic site to Fairway including bridleway 

FWD15 

Marine Hall Gardens FWD16 

Rossall Point Picnic Site FWD17 

Fleetwood Promenade from former pier site to opposite Carr 
Road 

FWD18 

Westview Park FWD19 

Victoria Street (Pocket Park) FWD20 

Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park – refer to map for exact area 
(subject to LCC providing signage,  patrols and enforcement) 

FWD9B 

 
 
 

Page 73



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 349790:443284

Date: 24/09/2020

GC4 Catterall Queen Elizabeth II Playing Field

P
age 74



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 348537:444825

Date: 16/05/2017

GC5 Kepple Lane Playing Field Garstang

P
age 75



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 348982:445071

Date: 16/05/2017

GC6 Moss Lane Playing Field Garstang

P
age 76



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 337827:442283

Date: 18/05/2017

OW2B Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field Hambleton

P
age 77



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 346404:437942

Date: 19/05/2017

OW10 Inskip Recreation Area

P
age 78



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 336835:446172

Date: 16/05/2017

OW11 Preesall Cemetery

P
age 79



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 340344:448283

Date: 17/05/2017

OW12 Smallwood Hey Pilling

P
age 80



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 348715:443050

Date: 16/05/2017

OW13 Churchtown Recreation Ground

P
age 81



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 349029:451171

Date: 16/05/2017

OW14 Forton Playing Field

P
age 82



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 340945:448435

Date: 22/05/2017

OW15 Pilling Memorial Hall recreation ground

P
age 83



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 350029:442531

Date: 16/05/2017

OW16 Woburn Way Claughton on Brock

P
age 84



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 347500:448164

Date: 16/05/2017

OW17 Scotts Green Winmarleigh

P
age 85



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331549:443604

Date: 19/05/2017

TC14 Cleveleys Promenade from Five Bar Gate Rossall Beach to Wyre Boundary

P
age 86



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333935:441859

Date: 16/05/2017

TC15 Hawthorne Park Thornton

P
age 87



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335690:441097

Date: 16/05/2017

TC16 Skippool Amenity Site

P
age 88



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332810:442118

Date: 19/05/2017

TC17 Swan Drive Open Space

P
age 89



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334853:441576

Date: 16/05/2017

TC18 Tarnway Thornton

P
age 90



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333628:442271

Date: 19/05/2017

TC19 Thornton Little Theatre

P
age 91



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333792:440248

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF8 Carrabine Park Carleton

P
age 92



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335067:439905

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF9 Wyre Civic Centre Grounds

P
age 93



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334688:439965

Date: 18/05/2017

PLF10 Derby Rd/Shirley Heights

P
age 94



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 336343:439238

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF11 Garstang Road Cemetery

P
age 95



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335379:439814

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF12 Moorland Road Cemetery

P
age 96



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335148:440058

Date: 19/05/2017

PLF13 Poulton Health and Fitness Centre

P
age 97



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335094:439528

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF14 Tomlinson Gardens

P
age 98



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333917:448458

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD10 Euston Park

P
age 99



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331925:447783

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD11 Fleetwood Cemetery

P
age 100



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332214:446328

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD12 Mariners Close Open Space

P
age 101



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331327:446822

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD13 Martindale Park

P
age 102



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332527:448250

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD14 Marine Gardens Amenity Area (including lakes, pitch and putts)

P
age 103



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331358:447467

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD15 Land between Fleetwood Prom and golf course from Rossall Picnic Site to Fairway including bridleway

P
age 104



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333363:448349

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD16 Marine Hall Gardens

P
age 105



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331861:447983

Date: 18/09/2017

FWD17 Rossall Point Picnic Site

P
age 106



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333317:448330

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD18 Fleetwood Promenade from former pier site to opposite Carr Road

P
age 107



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332142:446824

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD19 Westview Park

P
age 108



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333861:448095

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD20 Pocket Park (Victoria St)

P
age 109



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333677:446501

Date: 23/09/2020

FWD9B Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park

P
age 110



 

 

 

Schedule 5 
Dogs Exclusion 

Page 111



SCHEDULE 5 –  

DOGS EXCLUSION 
 

Description of Land to which Schedule 5 applies:  

 Any clearly demarcated children’s play areas fenced or not; 

 Enclosed (fenced off) Marked sports pitches / sports areas– exclusion at all 
times 

 Not enclosed (not fenced off) marked sports pitches / sports areas – exclusion 
applies only when organised activities are taking place, including training. 
Other controls still applicable. 

 Bowling greens 

 MUGAS 

 Tennis courts 

 Pitch and Putt Courses 

 Crazy Golf Courses 

 Catterall, Queen Elizabeth II playing field – picnic area & reading area – Map 
Ref GC4 

 Areas designated as being of Special Scientific Interest 

 Cleveleys Beach from Café Cove to Wyre Boundary (seasonal) May – 
September – Map Ref TC13B 

 Fleetwood Beach east side of slipway (opposite end of promenade road) 
eastward to west side of former pier (seasonal) May – September – Map Ref 
FWD7B 

 Scorton Playing Field – Map Ref OW18 

 Broadwater Wood Fleetwood – Map Ref FWD21 

 Fleetwood Nature Park lagoons – Map Ref FWD9C 
 

Schedule 

1. Children’s play areas shall include: 
 

Any area formally laid out for the provision of play for children and young 
people.  Such an area may be enclosed or open plan but provides fixed, 
permanent equipment used for playing.  Such sites may also include Skate 
Parks, Goal Ends and Multi-use Games Areas (MUGA’s).  Where a play area 
is enclosed, the area of exclusion will include all areas of equipment, together 
with any hard surface or grassed areas included within the perimeter fencing 
or barriers.  Where the play area is open plan the area of exclusion shall 
include all areas of equipment and their safety surfacing, together with any 
associated hard surfaces.  On open plan sites the exclusion will extend 4 
metres from any outer edge of hard standing area forming part of the play 
area. 
 

 

2. Marked Sporting Pitches /  Areas shall include: 
 

Any area of grass or hard surfacing designated for the use of outdoor sports 
or formal recreational activity and includes football, rugby, hockey and cricket 
pitches, basketball, netball and tennis courts and bowling greens.  The area of 
exclusion will be dependent on the designated activity as follows:- 

Page 112



 

(a)  Football, Rugby and Hockey Pitches; 
The areas of exclusion will extend across the entire marked-out playing 
surface extending outwards to provide a safety zone of 1.5 metres 
beyond any marked touch and/or goal line. For sports pitches not 
enclosed or fenced off the exclusion applies only when organised 
activities are taking place, including training. Other controls still 
applicable.  
 

(b)  Cricket Pitches; 

The area of exclusion will include the entire cricket table and the 
associated wickets (including any artificial cricket wicket) together with 
the entire outfield as defined by the marked outfield boundary, 
extending outwards to provide a safety zone of 2 metres beyond the 
marked boundary. 
 

(c)  Basketball, Netball and Tennis Courts; 
 

The area of exclusion will include the entire hard surface, defining the 
court. Should the area be fenced the exclusion will apply to the entire 
enclosed area at all times. When the area is open the exclusion will 
include all marked playing areas, extending outwards to provide a 
safety zone of 3 metres beyond the marked area. 

 
(d)  Bowling Greens 

 
The area of exclusion will include the entire playing surface together 
with all associate gutters and perimeter paths. Exclusion applies at all 
times, whether in use or not. 

 

Page 113



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 349790:443284

Date: 24/09/2020

GC4 Catterall Queen Elizabeth II Playing Field

P
age 114



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331368:443150

Date: 12/06/2017

TC13B Seasonal Dog Ban May to September Cleveleys Beach from Cafe Cove to Wyre Borough Boundary

P
age 115



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333343:448396

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD7B Seasonal Dog Ban (May to September) Fleetwood Beach east side of slipway eastward to west side of former pier

P
age 116



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 350130:448717

Date: 19/05/2017

OW18 Scorton Playing Field

P
age 117



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332544:445660

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD21 Broadwater Wood

P
age 118



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333545:446590

Date: 23/09/2020

FWD9C Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Schedule 6 
Maximum Number  

Page 121



SCHEDULE 6 – 

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF DOGS 

 

Description of Land to which Schedule 6 applies: 
 

Thornton – Cleveleys sites: Map Ref 

King Georges Playing Field  TC8 

Wyre Estuary Country Park  TC12 

Church Road Playing Field  TC3 

Bourne Way Playing Field  TC1 

 
 

 Fleetwood sites: Map Ref 

King George V Playing Field  
 

FWD2 

Fleetwood Cemetery FWD11 
 

Memorial Park FWD3 
 

Land between Fleetwood Promenade 
and the Golf Course from Rossall Point 
Picnic Site to Fairway including 
bridleway 

FWD15 
 

Fleetwood Promenade from opposite 
Carr Road to the Five Bar Gate Rossall 
Beach 

FWD8 
 

Marine Gardens Amenity Area 
(including lakes, pitch & putts) 

FWD14 
 

Marine Hall Gardens FWD16 
 

Rossall Point Picnic Site FWD17 

Fleetwood Promenade from former pier 
site to opposite Carr Road 

FWD18 
 

Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park – refer to 
map for exact area (subject to LCC 
providing signage,  patrols and 
enforcement) 

FWD9D 

 
 

 Poulton sites: Map Ref 

Civic Centre Playing Field PLF2 
 

Cottam Hall Playing Field PLF4 
 

Jean Stansfield/Vicarage Park PLF6 
 

Garstang Road Cemetery  
 

PLF11 

Page 122



Moorland Road Cemetery  
 

PLF12 

 
 
 

 Over Wyre sites: Map Ref 

Preesall Cemetery  
 

OW11 

Preesall Playing Field  
 

OW5 

Bilsborrow Recreational Ground  
 

OW1 

Pennine View Playing Field Gt 
Eccleston 

OW4 

Shorrocks Avenue Playing Field St 
Michaels 

OW6 
 

Stalmine Playing Field  
 

OW7 

Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field 
Hambleton  
 

OW2A 
OW2B 

 
 
 
 

Page 123



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333396:442463

Date: 12/05/2017

TC8 King Georges Playing Field Thornton

P
age 124



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335706:442252

Date: 19/05/2017

TC12 Wyre Estuary Country Park Thornton

P
age 125



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333407:442636

Date: 12/05/2017

TC3 Church Road Playing Field Thornton

P
age 126



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333233:444014

Date: 12/05/2017

TC1 Bourne Way Playing Field Thornton-Cleveleys

P
age 127



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332328:445561

Date: 12/05/2017

FWD2 King George V Playing Field

P
age 128



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331925:447783

Date: 17/05/2017

FWD11 Fleetwood Cemetery

P
age 129



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332926:447388

Date: 18/05/2017

FWD3 Memorial Park

P
age 130



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331358:447467

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD15 Land between Fleetwood Prom and golf course from Rossall Picnic Site to Fairway including bridleway

P
age 131



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller
of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C)
Centre of map: 332087:446357

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD8 Fleetwood Promenade from opposite Carr Road to the Five Bar Gate Rossall Beach

P
age 132



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 332527:448250

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD14 Marine Gardens Amenity Area (including lakes, pitch and putts)

P
age 133



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333363:448349

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD16 Marine Hall Gardens

P
age 134



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 331861:447983

Date: 18/09/2017

FWD17 Rossall Point Picnic Site

P
age 135



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333317:448330

Date: 19/05/2017

FWD18 Fleetwood Promenade from former pier site to opposite Carr Road

P
age 136



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 333545:446590

Date: 23/09/2020

FWD9D Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park

P
age 137



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334922:440056

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF2 Civic Centre Playing Field Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 138



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 334007:439272

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF4 Cottam Hall Playing Field Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 139



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335052:439412

Date: 12/05/2017

PLF6 Jean Stansfield and Vicarage Park Poulton-le-Fylde

P
age 140



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 336343:439238

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF11 Garstang Road Cemetery

P
age 141



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 335379:439814

Date: 16/05/2017

PLF12 Moorland Road Cemetery

P
age 142



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 336835:446172

Date: 16/05/2017

OW11 Preesall Cemetery

P
age 143



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 336323:448206

Date: 18/05/2017

OW5 Preesall Playing Field

P
age 144



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 351243:440153

Date: 12/05/2017

OW1 Bilsborrow Recreation Ground

P
age 145



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 343084:440037

Date: 12/05/2017

OW4 Pennine View Playing Field Great Eccleston

P
age 146



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 346312:441545

Date: 12/05/2017

OW6 Shorrocks Avenue Playing Field St Michaels

P
age 147



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 337326:445487

Date: 18/05/2017

OW7 Stalmine Playing Field

P
age 148



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 337829:442280

Date: 18/05/2017

OW2A Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field Hambleton dog excercise area only

P
age 149



This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the Permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller

of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Lancashire County Council - OS Licence 100023320 (C) 

Centre of map: 337827:442283

Date: 18/05/2017

OW2B Bob Williamson Park/Playing Field Hambleton

P
age 150



Dog control Public Space Protection Order Summary Report 2020 

Introduction  

From 17 July to 18 August 2020 Wyre Council undertook a review of the public space protection orders 
(PSPO) for dog control, across the borough, with its residents and stakeholders.  
 
The consultation for Wyre’s Public Spaces Protection Orders is based on:   
 

 the level of support for the current dog control order measures and to gain feedback on specific 
aspects of these measures  

 the level of support for the initiation of additional measures  

 the statutory requirement to review PSPO’s every three years. The current orders were agreed in 
2017. 

 
Lancashire County Council requested that additional consultation with regards to Fleetwood Nature 
Reserve, land owned by the County Council, be conducted. This results report will present the overall 
findings, but will demonstrate the findings for the Nature Reserve in its own section (Section 2) so that it 
can be easily shared with the County Council.  
 
Approach 
The agreed approach for this consultation was to use an online questionnaire. This approach enables an 
appropriate amount of explanatory and supporting information to be included in a structured 
questionnaire, helping to ensure that residents are aware of the background and context to each of the 
proposed areas by including maps. It is therefore the most suitable methodology for consulting on issues 
such as the adoption of Public Spaces Protection Orders. The consultation was available in print by request.  
 
Promotion and communication 

The consultation was promoted in the following ways:  

 E-alerts, sent to subscribers of the council’s email marketing service. These featured hyperlinks to 
further information about the consultation and the questionnaire itself.  

 Information was provided on the news section of the council’s website where the media get their 
information from.  

 A link to the Public Spaces Protection Order consultation was also included on the ‘Have Your Say’ 
section of the council website home page for the duration of the consultation.  

 Emails were sent to a range of support organisations and stakeholders.  

 The council’s Facebook and Twitter accounts were used to signpost people to the consultation 
information and questionnaire.  

 Through the Lancashire Police and Crime Commissioner’s office 

 Through Lancashire County Council’s Environment Directorate 

 The Parish and Town Councils were invited to respond 
 
Consultation respondents 

In total 195 responded to the PSPO consultation, 193 of these were via the council’s consultation portal 

and 2 representations were received by email.   

All the questionnaire submissions that had at least one question completed were included in the analysis. It 
was important to include all responses even if only part answered as this was still feedback on the proposal. 
However, this does mean that the demographic information outlined may not cover all respondents, as 
some may not have completed this section.  Where respondents chose not to answer a particular question, 
their no response was counted but excluded from the total percentage calculations per question. 

Page 151



Figure 1

  
Figure 1 shows the age breakdown of the consultation respondents. The least represented groups were 16-
24 and 75+ year olds, with 2% and 5% respectively fitting into these age categories. The group represented 
the most was the 55-64 year olds, with 48% of the overall respondents belonging to these age categories. 
This is in line with normal expectations as the over 45’s tend to participate in greater numbers and make up 
a larger proportion of Wyre’s population.  
 
There was a significantly higher representation of female respondents (70%) to male respondents (30%). 

With 18% of respondents reporting to have a long term disability. 

The majority of people responded as individuals (n=187/96%) with parish/town councils (n=3) business 

(n=1), community group (n=1) and Other (n=3). 

Table 1 shows the geographic distribution of respondents organised into the following postcode groups:  

Table 1 

Postcode area Number of respondents  

FY5 88 

FY6 29 

FY7 47 

PR2/3 9 

Other FY, LA and BB 10 

 
There were 9 responses without postcodes and the other representations were small in number or from 

other Fylde Coast postcodes and two from a Lancaster and a Blackburn /Pendle postcode.  

As can be seen in Table 2 the majority of respondents own or care for a dog. 

Table 2 

Dog ownership status  Percentage 
of respondents 

You currently own or care for a dog 67.02% 

You operate a business, care for/walk other people’s dogs. You might also own dogs. 3.19% 

You have recently owned or cared for a dog (in the past year) 0.00% 

You have previously owned or cared for a dog at some point 12.77% 

You have never owned or cared for a dog 17.02% 

 

2

19

32 35

48 45

5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 

Age

Page 152



Consultation results 

Respondents were asked for their views on extending the existing PSPO’s, along with suggested 
amendments and changes following the intelligence and feedback gained from the public and organisations 
since these were put in place.  Consultees were given the opportunity to comment further on the proposals 
by sharing their opinions and experience of dog fouling in public places. In this aspect the results will help 
the council understand further what issues the public are facing and will be used as a consideration for 
future initiatives. 
 
Summary of results – Section 1 

Question summaries excluding comments. (for the comprehensive list of questions 
please see Appendix a16 The questionnaire)  

Response % 

Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order/offence 
in relation to… 

Yes No  

Dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in control of a dog/s to pick up 
the poo and put it in a bin? 

23% 77% 

The requirement to put dogs on leads by direction from an authorised officer? 21% 79% 

The requirement to have dogs on leads in certain areas? 37% 63% 
Should dogs be banned from the cemeteries? System error. 

No response 
entries 

Dog exclusion areas? 47% 53% 

The practice of other authorities is that the exclusion of dogs on unfenced marked 
pitches applies only when an organised activity is taking place. Do you agree with this 
proposed change? 

74% 26% 

Do you think the ban on the two bathing beaches should be applied all year round? 24% 76% 
Do you think the ban on the two bathing beaches should remain seasonal 
(1 May to 30 September) but be limited to 10:00-20:00? 

56% 44% 

Have you any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order that restricts 
the number of dogs one person can exercise at a time in certain areas?  

36% 64% 

Do you have comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order, where it is an 
offence to not have the means to pick up after the dog under your control when asked 
by an authorised officer?   

13% 87% 

Do you agree with the level of the Fixed Penalty for non-compliance remaining at £100? 76% 24% 

Please note the above percentages have been rounded. 

Summary of Results – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Park  

Following numerous complaints of dogs out of control on Fleetwood Nature Park, Jameson Road, and due to the 

negative effect on wildlife, Lancashire County Council wanted to engage the public regarding the following.  

Question summaries excluding comments and maps. (for the comprehensive list of 
questions please see Appendix a16 The questionnaire) 

Response % 

Lancashire County Council have asked if respondents agree with the control measures 
that… 

Yes No  

Dogs be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the map 001 at all times? 41% 59% 
Dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (see Map 002) 41% 59% 

A maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person is applied across the 
whole site (see Map 003) 

65% 35% 

There will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have the means to pick foul across 
that whole site (map -004 /005) 

98% 2% 

An authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006) 76% 24% 

Page 153



Section 1 
 

Respondents were asked… 

Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the offence relating to dogs fouling 
on land, and, the requirements of anyone in control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 

76.96% (n=147) selected No in that they had no further 

concerns or comments regarding an extension of the order 

for the above question.  

The 23.04% of respondents (n=44) that answered ‘Yes’ 

were invited to leave comments, of which 41 of them did. 

The majority of reoccurring themes relate to enforcement, 

that most dog walkers are responsible, and having more 

bins. A selection of comments are highlighted below. The 

full list of comments can be viewed in appendix 1:   

 

 The bi law should be upheld and the notice should not read you may be prosecuted to you WILL be 
prosecuted. 

 The council need to create a bigger presence and issue more fines to dog owners who do not pick 
up poo the amount of dog foul about is awful. 

 More enforcement of this is required - many public areas in and around Preesall and Knott End 
have significant dog fouling problems particularly at the weekends and early morning/evening. 

 The extension to the order has to be extended, and, if possible enforced further. The incidence of 

dog fouling is increasing as more people have dogs (many obtained during lockdown). 

 More wardens and more poo bins 

 Dog fouling continues to be a problem, as a responsible dog owner I clean up for my dogs and at 
times feel the need to clean up for others to protect my children. 
 

Respondents were asked… 

Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order in relation to the 

requirement to put dogs on leads by direction from an authorised officer?    

79.47% (n=151) selected ‘No’ in that they had no further 

concerns or comments regarding an extension of the 

order for this requirement.  

The 20.53% (n=39 respondents) that selected ‘Yes’ were 

invited to leave their comments, of which 36 

respondents did. The main reoccurring themes were 

disagreement of having to put dogs on a lead and the 

acknowledgement that under certain circumstances it 

would be acceptable to be required to put a dog/s on 

leads. A few respondents wanted clarity of who is/are 

authorised officers. A selection of comments to reflect the above are highlighted below. The full list of 

comments can be viewed in appendix 2:   

23%

77%

Yes

No

23%

77%

Yes

No

Page 154



 Only if a dog is a danger to the public or other dogs 

 Should there be an issue over safety to the dog or owner then I would have no objection to being 
asked to put dogs on a lead. 

 I believe the dogs on leads by direction is a fair order which gives dog owners sufficient chance to 

exercise their dogs off lead at times and in places where it is safe to do so, for both dogs and other 

users of an area. It is entirely acceptable if a dog were to be causing a nuisance for an authorised 

officer to ask the dog to be put on the lead. My only concern is that sometimes it is not clear who 

an authorised officer is and on occasions this could be open to abuse by a council employee who 

may simply dislike dogs and ask for this to be done when the dog is not causing a nuisance. On 

balance I support this order. 

 There are so few areas where you can properly exercise your dog and further extensions will 

restrict further these areas.  

 Dogs need free exercise to enable socialisation with other dogs to enable better mental health. 

 My dog needs to run and play, he can’t do this on a lead. 

 
Respondents were asked… 

Do you have you any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order regarding the 

requirement to have dogs on leads in certain areas? 

63.49% (n=120) selected No in that they had no further 

concerns or comments regarding an extension of the order 

for this requirement.  

The 36.51% (n=69 respondents) that selected ‘Yes’ were 

invited to leave their comments, and 31 of them did. 

Opinions regarding the requirement to put their dogs on 

leads were mixed. A number of respondents agreed that 

under certain circumstances it would be fine to be required 

to put the dog/s on leads. A selection of comments to reflect 

the above are highlighted below. The full list of comments can be viewed in appendix 3:   

 While dogs should obviously be kept on a lead at times they must also be allowed off the lead to 
exercise and socialise as failure to do this can lead to some dogs becoming frustrated and 
potentially aggressive so it’s imperative that areas are set aside for them to exercise and socialise 
safely. 

 I certainly don't think that there is any requirement for further areas requiring dogs to stay on 
leads, if anything possibly a reduction should be considered. 

 In certain areas is fine. However, I do NOT think there's a need to extend those areas 

 All areas should be available, except fenced off children's play parks. People leave far more waste 
than dogs. 

 
Respondents were asked… 

Please note the following question was included in the consultation, however due to an unidentifiable 
glitch in the system no results were available.  

Following the last round of consultation, dogs were allowed in the council cemeteries, with a requirement 
to be on a lead at all times. 

These are not formal exercise areas, but have recently appeared to be used as such, with an increase in 
reports of owners not picking up after their dog, causing distress to visitors and complaints.  

37%

63%

Yes

No

Page 155



Should dogs be banned from the cemeteries?  

Respondents were asked… 

Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order in relation to dog 
exclusion areas? 

53.44% (n=101) selected No in that they had no further 

concerns or comments regarding an extension of the 

order for this requirement.  

The 46.56% (n=88 respondents) that selected Yes were 

invited to leave their comments, and 81 of them did. The 

comments were mostly of the opinion that restrictions 

should be reduced, or are against the exclusion of dogs in 

areas. A selection of comments to reflect the above are 

highlighted below. The full list of comments can be viewed in appendix 4:   

 Responsible dogs and owners should not be limited to where they can enjoy exercise. It greatly 
reduces our spaces. The amount of rubbish left behind by humans is far greater than by the 
minority dog owners. The devastation following lock down has evidenced this. More poo bins and 
higher fines for those not adhering is enough.  

 Too many exclusions 

 depends if you are thinking of increasing more exclusion areas, as stated dogs need run play and 
exercise 

 Well trained dogs should be allowed in most places except maybe children fenced play areas.  

 Dog ownership provides companionship to many and an opportunity to visit local parks, beaches 

etc for exercise and meeting other like minded people. I believe all local parks and beaches should 

be open to all and patrolled if there is an issue. 

 
Respondents were asked… 

Marked sports pitches, currently fall under the exclusion, however, many of these sites are not in use all of 

the time. When they are not being used for organised activity, unfenced pitches are reportedly being used 

for exercising dogs. 

The practice of other authorities is that the exclusion of dogs on unfenced marked pitches applies only 

when an organised activity is taking place. 

Do you agree with this proposed change? There will still be a requirement for people to pick up after 

their dogs and further signage will make this clear.    

73.77% (135) selected Yes that they agreed with the proposed 

change.   

26.23% (n=48 respondents) selected No. 

All respondents were invited to leave comments for this 

question, and 89 (45.64%) of the 195 did. 

The respondent’s comments were mostly highlighting the 

reasons why they didn’t think that dogs should be allowed on 

sports pitches, and mainly health reasons were given.  Those 

that supported it did so responding as responsible owners. A selection of comments to reflect the above 

are highlighted below. The full list of comments can be viewed in appendix 5:   

47%53%
Yes

No

74%

26%
Yes

No

Page 156



 My observation is that people exercising dogs on playing fields frequently let their dogs off their 

leashes-and in such circumstances, definitely do NOT pick up after their dogs. Is it fair that whoever 

then uses the field for a game or other activity should have to contend with the subsequent fouling. 

 A dog walking space should not be in areas where regular activity takes place by our young people. 

It is not always possible to pick up all traces of dog poo plus dogs will also urinate in these spaces 

making them unhygienic for any kind of sport. 

 People make pick up after their dog but some faeces will still remain and there is the possibility of 

worms from untreated dogs. Children then roll on the grass that has been used for urine as well. 

Allowing dogs on even when owners pick up encourages other less responsible owners to also 

allow their dogs to foul the area. 

 even when owners do pick up after their dogs, the area remains soiled. Pitches cannot be cleaned 

before use for sports. 

 There is no reason why responsible dog owners shouldn’t be allowed to use unfenced spaces when 

not in use. There should be punishment of some sort for irresponsible dog owners though as they 

spoil it for others. 

 logical amendment in line with most LAs 

 

Respondents were asked… 

Do you think the ban on bathing beaches should be applied all year round? 

The majority of responses were against the ban being 

applied all year round i.e. 72.31% (n=141). 

All participants were invited to leave comments and 

56.41% (n=110) did.  

Mostly these comments further supported why there 

should not be a ban on the bathing beaches all year 

round. The majority of respondents gave the reasons of 

low usage by the public and bathers during the winter 

months. There were also a high number of comments 

regarding other users, not dogs, being the main reason for litter and rubbish. Those that supported the ban 

all year round which were fewer in number, did so from a protection of wildlife and fauna perspective and 

many felt that there could be further confusion which part of the beach should be used and when. A 

selection of comments to reflect these points are highlighted below. The full list of comments can be 

viewed in appendix 6:   

 It's dead 6 months of the year. Why not allow local dog walkers to enjoy their town’s beauty spots. 

 Beaches out of season are often quiet and provide excellent exercise areas for dogs. Wind and rain 

may deter bathers but rarely deter dog walkers. 

 The beaches are mainly used by dog walkers once the summer season is over. I understand limiting 

the areas dogs can go on during the summer months though. Sadly it is people/fishermen who 

leave most of the rubbish on our beaches not dogs. 

 I walk my dogs on the beach most days, I have no problem in not walking them on the small portion 

of the beach where they are not allowed. Some people do not like dogs and there should be an 

area where they can go and use the beaches without fear of being molested by dogs, any 

responsible dog owner should agree with this - being a "responsible dog owner" is more than just 

picking up your dog's poo, it is also about good interaction with other people. 

24%

76%

Yes

No

Page 157



 There are nesting birds in the shingle at Rossall and VERY rare plants including sea kale and yellow 

horned poppy in this area. Plus the biological database habitat species of honeycomb worm on the 

grounds. These are should be top priority if we are to protect our biodiversity. 

 
Respondents were asked… 

Do you think the ban on the two bathing beaches should remain seasonal (1 May to 30 
September) but be limited to 10:00-20:00? 

The results were more balanced for this question 

with 56% (n=100) saying that they agreed the ban 

should remain seasonal but be limited to 10:00 – 

20:00, and 44% (n=79) selected that they didn’t 

think the ban should remain. 

There were 90 responses (47.69%). Of the majority 

that agreed with the time limitation and then went 

on to leave comments the general expressions were that it was fair, and enabled dog walkers to use the 

beaches when they are at their most quiet, and they said, this is when many walkers take their dogs out. 

There were a slightly higher number of comments left where the respondent didn’t agree with the 

proposal, and there was a mixture of reasons. People were concerned that specific times may serve to 

confuse people, some that it should just remain. There were those that felt that there should be no ban at 

all, and others indicated that time was not the issue. A number of respondents also mentioned better 

monitoring and enforcement. Please see appendix 7 for the full comment list. 

 It would be fair to all 

 This would be a perfect compromise 

 Many dog walkers exercise their dogs early and late. 

 As long as people are picking up their poo. Most people have left the beach by then. 

 I agree a time restriction during the ban - if it actually needs to be in place at all, however 10am till 

6pm seems more reasonable and is adopted by other councils down south. There’s confusion with 

the public and visitors, keeping it the same all the time would stop this 

 The timing makes no difference. Dog excrement is a pollutant that is not time restricted. 

 No limitation. It's no use turning up to use the Marine Beach only to find the early morning dog 

turds. Better enforcement, more fines please. Keep our public areas clean! 

 It should stay as it is. People know the rules. Why change them? 

 No beach ban is necessary seasonal or otherwise, look how much waste is left by humans in 

comparison 

Respondents were asked… 

Have you any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order that restricts the number of 

dogs one person can exercise at a time in certain areas?  

There were 79 responses to this question. The responses were split by opinion across general themes, 

mostly comments agreed with 4 dogs per person or referred to specific number less than 4, mostly the 

suggestion was 2 dogs.  A fair number commented that the issue was about a person having control of the 

dogs, and not the number of dogs exercised. Some mentioned introduction of a licensing scheme for 

professionals as dog walkers were referred to as being disadvantaged and restricted by the numbers. The 

full comments are listed in appendix 8. 

56%
44% Yes

No

Page 158



Respondents were asked… 

Do you have comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order, where it is an offence to not 

have the means to pick up after the dog under your control when asked by an authorised officer?   

15 people (7.69%) commented on this question. The main themes of the comments were around the 

concern that owners can exhaust their bag supply whilst out. A number suggested that enforcement 

officers could give bags. Many comments supported the order. 

The full list of comments are listed in Appendix 9  

 

Respondents were asked… 

Do you agree with the level of the Fixed Penalty for non-compliance remaining at £100?   

76.06% (n=143) of the 195 respondents agreed with 

the level of fixed penalty for non-compliance. 45 

(23.94%) people disagreed 

37 respondents further commented on the order. The 

comments were split with slightly more people 

intimating that the fine should be higher, than  the 

number of respondents saying it should be lower. 

Some expressed that a fairer system of enforcement could be employed first e.g. warnings. 

The full list of comments are listed in appendix 10. 

 
 

76%

24%
Yes

No

Page 159



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A1 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

1.  Who are the authorised officers? 

2.  I think considering the state the local beaches have been left in recently, dog poo is the 

least of our troubles. Only a very small minority don’t pick up, I don’t agree with the 

extension, ban the humans leaving litter! 

3.  The order should be renewed. But it is no good renewing it if you don't enforce it. I go 

onto the beach nearly every day and I see people ignoring the no dogs on the beach rule 

almost every day. When I pointed it out to you employees they tell me it is not their job 

to point out the rule to the dog owners, and neither is it their job to contact your office 

and inform the enforcement officer of the situation. I do think you do need to enforce 

the bylaw if you are going to renew it. 

4.  Yes, I am disgusted by those dog owners who still refuse the follow the guidelines and 

rules, that minority need to be caught and dealt with. 

5.  There are still too many dog owners not cleaning up after their animals. The Order 

should also include horses. I walk along the promenade between Rossall school and 

Rossall Point and see too many deposits from both dogs and horses. I have never 

encountered any problems with dogs off the leash and think most people who exercise 

their dogs are responsible owners. 

6.  More bins required, particularly at Stanah. 

7.  More enforcement required and ramifications for those irresponsible owners who do 

not pick up their dogs mess. Equally, more bins would be very useful Over Wyre, 

especially throughout Preesall and Knott End. 

8.  I think it would be a good idea to have a dog poo bag dispenser at busy areas. Maybe a 

pay to use machine? For people who have forgotten theirs or have run out of bags. 

9.  The council need to create a bigger presence and issue more fines to dog owners who do 

not pick up poo the amount of dog foul about is awful. 

10.  The bi law should be upheld and the notice should not read you may be prosecuted to 

you WILL be prosecuted. 

11.  The proposals seem to target multiple dog owners, when in fact most poo appears to be 

left by irresponsible single dog owners. Limiting numbers of dogs exercised by one 

person or enforcing lead only will not solve the problem. 

12.  Fleetwood Nature Reserve - I wonder how a person with several dogs off the lead can be 

aware of when their dogs defecate. I frequently see owners with dogs running around 

whilst they are busy on their phones. They are totally unaware of what they are doing, I 

have even rescued a poor aged dog who had strayed from its owner for well over 15 

minutes before another walker helped me find the owner; they were totally unaware it 

Page 160



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

had strayed away. More than 2 dogs off a lead become a pack which can often be 

unpleasant and intimidating for other walkers. Dog fouling on the paths and bridge is 

often a problem but more so when the dark nights come. 

13.  More wardens and more poo bins 

14.  We have 2 dogs and we pick our poo up and our dogs are well behaved and come back 

to us when called I think you should tackle the owners that don't care what their dogs 

do. 

15.  There appears to be little or no enforcement of the rules; both Fleetwood Nature 

reserve and the Wyre Country Park reek of dog poo nearly all the time. 

16.  The extension to the order has to be extended, and, if possible enforced further. The 

incidence of dog fouling is increasing as more people have dogs (many obtained during 

lockdown). 

17.  More bins, walking from Thornton to Cleveleys down Victoria Road East, the last bin is 

Four Lane ends near the traffic lights, going up to Cleveleys. The next bin is well into 

duck pond. In my opinion if more bins were about dog owner would pick up and bin. 

Also in park space Blackpool Council supply bags near bins in their shared public space. 

18.  That dog owners should pick up the poo and put it in the bin. Maybe cameras in place to 

enforce the fining system 

19.  As a responsible dog owner I feel that there should be firm measures to tackle those 

who don’t pick up that give us all a bad name. My friends agree. 

20.  Most dog walkers I know are responsible and do pick up after their dogs. We as a 

community pick up after ourselves to keep it clear for all of us. 

21.  For the people who let their dogs foul on land, the people who are responsible dog 

owners get penalised 

22.  Too many dogs not under control disturbing wildlife including ground nesting birds and 

rare plants such as orchids 

23.  Dog fouling continues to be a problem, as a responsible dog owner I clean up for my 

dogs and at times feel the need to clean up for others to protect my children. 

24.  This one reply is for all the questions. I have never seen an enforcement officer and the 

local rangers turn a blind eye. In Lancs county heritage site 34NW06 report it states that 

The site is of substantial interest for its flowering plants supporting 6 species on the red 

data list of vascular plants and is of county significance for birds. Cleveleys grows Sea 

kale which is classed as rare and appears on a Wyre sign at Rossall. Last time I looked it 

was covered in dog poo. Ringed plovers nest are on the shingle and near to the beach is 

honeycomb worm classed as a BAP a biodiversity action plan priority species, now used 

as a dog pee area. Stricter rules all round should be enforced I believe in education but 

Page 161



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

with enforcement behind it. In this world of dwindling resources I ask you to act and let 

those who enjoy nature do so in peace and with respect. 

25.  I support the proposal. 

26.  There’s a huge increase in the amount of fouling on pavements that isn’t cleaned up. 

Horse owners also shouldn’t be allowed to do this on pavements either as that happens 

regularly. 

27.  It appears that Dog Walkers are constantly being penalised, when all they are doing is 

providing a service for disabled, elderly and full time workers who choose to own a dog 

but for whatever reason cannot walk the dogs themselves. Anyone who has ever owned 

a dog knows how a dog can help disabled, elderly and lonely people, the only reason this 

is now possible is because of the dog walkers. I have met several dog walkers, that walk 

dogs on Fleetwood Reserve, they all pick up their dog mess, however I have witnessed 

plenty of dog owners NOT picking up after their dogs as a lot of them are taking no 

notice of their dog/s. I have been shouted abuse at when I have offered these dog 

owners a poo bag. I have also witnessed dog walkers picking up dog mess that their dogs 

haven’t done. It seems to me that the dog owners and walkers are blaming dog walkers 

as they are easy scapegoats. If these honest, reliable, tax payers, caring dog walkers are 

penalised in this way, they will end up not working providing a fantastic service, most of 

these lovely trustworthy people will be forced to claim universal credit, which would be 

a massive drain on the community. Rather than wasting all this money and resources on 

changes for dog walkers, maybe the council would be better putting these resources 

where they are most needed. Hundreds of thousands of pounds are spent everyday 

moving fly tipping, maybe the money would be better spent here, in fact if a dog walker 

hadn’t been behind a person that was fly tipping and taken a picture, someone else 

would have got away with another criminal offence. Please stop penalising people that 

are just trying to earn a crust. 

28.  Most dog owners pick up their pet's poo, and you will often find (myself included) that 

other dog owners will pick up poo left by other dogs where the owner has not picked up. 

The majority of dog owners/walkers are following the rules about picking up poo. It is a 

shame that we are being penalised by the few who do not. 

29.  There is nobody watching and checking people’s behaviour. 

30.  I am very concerned that dogs are being allowed to be exercised on public playing fields. 

I was annoyed that the owners of 3 dogs were using the football field at Preesall to 

exercise their dogs. Please could you put this in the restricted places that dogs are not 

allowed . 

31.  Fines for not picking poo should be increased. 

Page 162



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

32.  Professional dog walkers using vans for multiple dogs, especially in small community 

areas should be licensed so that they can be better controlled as to where they are 

allowed to walk multiple (often 8 or 9) dogs. Often these professional walkers do not 

pick up after the dogs in their charge and visit a small area up to three times a day. This 

unfairly puts pressure on areas used by local dog walking residents, and can give the 

impression that residential users of their local area are causing a dog fouling problem, 

when it is often people in these vans causing the problem. As a regular user of my local 

park (over 22 years) and as someone with a disability I rely on this area to walk my dogs 

and do not want to be penalised because of inconsiderate action by commercial dog 

walkers. 

33.  More enforcement of this is required - many public areas in and around Preesall and 

Knott End have significant dog fouling problems particularly at the weekends and early 

morning/evening. 

34.  People should pick up dog poo if they own a dog. 

35.  Sometimes people do not clean up areas where children are. Those people that do pick 

up the dirt do not always put it in the bins as there may not be one nearby so they just 

leave it anywhere. 

36.  Ref Fleetwood Nature Park, dog owners regularly pick up dog poo but then hang the bag 

on the steel railings adjacent to the model flying club. 

37.  This must include taking the waste home if the bin is full or otherwise unavailable. 

38.  Dog muck on Esplanade and sea wall between Preesall and Knott End. 

39.  I walk daily on the Lower Walk between the old hospital site at Rossall and Fleetwood 

ferry. Despite the enforcement order and new bins, some dog owners are still not 

cleaning up after their dogs. Can you please have more visits by enforcement officers 

and fines handed out. The odd blitz could drive the message home that this behaviour is 

completely unacceptable. Some more bins at the Rossall end would help. Also, all the 

painted warnings on the floor seem to have worn off. I thought they were a good idea, 

could they be re-done? 

40.  Although much better of late those people purporting to be "professional" dog walkers 

and those people who exercise more than two dogs are unable to watch all their dogs at 

any one time and of course fouling occurs ... excrement not deliberately left just the act 

is not witnessed. 

41.  When walking through the nature reserve I have never seen anyone fail to clean up after 

their dog. 

 

  

Page 163



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A2 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

1.  Mainly on Cleveleys promenade, there are frequently dogs off their leashes running amok 

& annoying other dogs that are on leashes as well as other promenade users. There are 

also a countless number of dogs-both on & off their leashes in the dog exclusion area on a 

daily basis. I am frequently on the promenade & I have NEVER seen ANYONE monitoring 

or patrolling on the promenade or beach to stop anyone from disobeying the PSPO. If you 

have these laws in place, you MUST police it in some way or else it’s worthless. 

2.  Mainly on Cleveleys promenade, there are frequently dogs off their leashes running amok 

& annoying other dogs that are on leashes as well as other promenade users. There are 

also a countless number of dogs-both on & off their leashes in the dog exclusion area on a 

daily basis. I am frequently on the promenade & I have NEVER seen ANYONE monitoring 

or patrolling on the promenade or beach to stop anyone from disobeying the PSPO. If you 

have these laws in place, you MUST police it in some way or else isn’t worthless. 

3.  Dogs should be allowed off leads when it is safe and sensible to do so. 

4.  Only if a dog is a danger to the public or other dogs. 

5.  I am happy to put my dogs on lead when advised to do so, however, they are only let off 

where it's allowed to do so. In on lead areas, having this reinforced might be a good idea 

though, considering many people with nervous, reactive and recuperating dogs use these 

as a safe area and the last thing they want is loose dogs running up. 

6.  Unfair bias against dogs. 

7.  Dogs need their freedom but if not under control then on a lead. 

8.  This is one of the only areas that is safe to take dogs in the local area where they can get 

the required amount of exercise and are not at threat or danger from cars on the roads. I 

have two springers and keeping them on a lead is detrimental to their health as they need 

to run for miles and this isn’t possible whilst on a lead. 

9.  As I understand it, the law states that dogs must be kept on a lead on public land? I 

believe this includes footpaths, public spaces such as parks and playgrounds? There is 

seemingly a misconception that a park is an area where owners can let their dogs run free, 

this is certainly the case in Preesall and Knott End. Preesall Park is a dogs free for all, the 

Park also has football pitches that are used by many football groups, dogs are allowed to 

run free on these pitches, it is also a dogs toilet. Jubilee gardens in Knott End is another 

area where people let their dogs run free, it is a small public park with flower beds and 

seating areas. I am a member of the Knott end and Preesall bloomers group and we 

regularly have to remove dog mess and litter from this area before we can garden and 

recently I was snapped at by a loose dog whilst here, no damage was caused to me but 

the potential was there. The dog has never snapped at anybody before but it has now! 

Page 164



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

10.  Dogs should be free to be off lead here. They need to be able to run and isn’t a perfect 

area for this. 

11.  yes depends which area dogs do need to run and exercise 

12.  Dogs need free exercise to enable socialisation with other dogs to enable better mental 

health. 

13.  Some dogs need the ability to run off, therefore it may be more appropriate to find a 

space that the public know there will be dogs running off their lead, so to avoid if they 

don’t like this. 

14.  There is very little places for dogs to run free this is something that is paramount to their 

mental and physical wellbeing, I’ve walked my dogs on there without any incident off lead 

for many years, if the people who don’t want to walk their dogs where others are off lead 

I suggest they walk on the street where all dogs must be on a lead 

15.  See below (the respondents comments were on the Nature Reserve later on in the survey 

and so will be captured there). 

16.  Dog owners seem to think that this nature reserve is an extension of their own gardens 

and treat it as such. It is a nature reserve. 

17.  Some dogs require a run off lead, it is good for their mental health and fitness. I feel they 

should only put their dog on a lead if it does not have good recall (ability for dog to come 

back when owner calls), has aggressive issues towards other animals or people, and 

should be kept on a lead when areas are busy. On an empty field for example there should 

be no issue as long as they pick up after their dog. 

18.  Yes, as a dog walker in a village, the only open space (Scott’s green) is no dogs off lead. I 

feel that this space would be better served by a put your dogs on leads by a direction from 

authorised officer on the whole most people on the green are respectful and this would 

serve as sufficient. However, with the blanket ban, it is discouraging the locals from using 

this space, which I feel is a massive shame. 

19.  My dog needs to run and play, he can’t do this on a lead. 

20.  I support the proposal. 

21.  There must be areas that dogs can run free , under control from owners. 

22.  Dogs often spend most of their life indoors on their own while the owner is at work, the 

only time they get to themselves is going on a walk and stretching their legs and enjoying 

their only bit of freedom we give them. Are we really going to restrict their freedom even 

more by not allowing them off lead to stretch their legs? 

Page 165



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

23.  Dogs required time off lead to explore their surroundings, grow their nose portfolio and to 

socialise with other dogs on a more relaxed environment. Certain breeds require more 

exercise than others therefore the option of being off lead helps let them burn off the 

excessive energy. 

24.  There are so few areas where you can properly exercise your dog and further extensions 

will restrict further these areas. 

25.  I cannot believe how it was allowed in the first place! Why in a nature reserve would you 

think of allowing dogs off leads! They run in the ponds chasing the ducks and swans it is 

disgusting!! The owners are also unaware of where the dog has done isn’t business as it 

has been out of sight. 

26.  Dogs must be allowed areas where they are free to exercise off the lead. 

27.  I believe the dogs on leads by direction is a fair order which gives dog owners sufficient 

chance to exercise their dogs off lead at times and in places where it is safe to do so, for 

both dogs and other users of an area. It is entirely acceptable if a dog were to be causing a 

nuisance for an authorised officer to ask the dog to be put on the lead. My only concern is 

that sometimes it is not clear who an authorised officer is and on occasions this could be 

open to abuse by a council employee who may simply dislike dogs and ask for this to be 

done when the dog is not causing a nuisance. On balance I support this order. My local 

area is NORTH DRIVE PARK CLEVELEYS. I would like to see this order retained for this park 

which I use daily and is vital for me to access as with my mobility issues. I need an area to 

access that also has seating so I can walk the dogs a bit, sit a bit and walk again. A lot of 

elderly people with mobility issues and dogs use this area for the same reason. We do 

encourage others to use the park responsibly. 

28.  Officers should be in uniform. Make themselves known and engage with dog walkers. Too 

many hide away, gather evidence and then the engagement between officer and dog 

walker is often negative front the get go. 

29.  Could this be extended to cover requests from other people? 

30.  It should be a sensible owners decision. 

31.  I have an issue for what you are intending by this order. There is no question that dog 

owners should not be allowed to leave poo on the ground. But most dog owners who use 

this space do that. What you are talking about doing will massively impact a number of 

people who use these facilities to gather and socialize. While the person who is dreaming 

up this appalling rule might not get it as they are not a dog owner. They will be impacting 

lots of people and also their dogs. There are a number of reasons why this order is a 

horrid idea. The dogs benefit from going into the clean water on hot days. The owners and 

dogs benefit from allowing their dogs to run off the lead with other dogs, create better 

behaviours in dogs community spirit. 

Page 166



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

32.  I do find they can be over zealous sometimes with people. For instance my dog is under 

full control even when off lead. 

33.  I am very concerned at this requirement. I have exercised and socialised my dog at the 

nature reserve for several years. A vast majority of the dogs which are exercised here are 

externally friendly and well trained. It is important for dogs to be active and receive off 

the lead socialisation with other breads of dog in order to prevent any aggression or other 

poor behaviour traits. Requiring dogs to be on the lead at all times will simply lead to 

unhappy dogs and owners. Owners enjoy being able to chat with one another whilst the 

dog run and play together. It is extremely concerning that the council would want to in act 

such measures as these, there is no harm in dogs socialising and playing off the lead while 

owners are being attentive at all times. It is disgusting that the council want to prevent 

dogs being social and friendly to other dogs. 

34.  Please will you include Garstang TCs resolution from last night’s TC meeting (17/8/20) in 

the consultation exercise 056(2020-21) Wyre Council “3 Year Review of Public Spaces 

Protection Orders (PSPOs)“ Control of Dogs and Dog Fouling, Cllrs Hynes and Webster 

Resolved: The Town Council approved Cllr Hynes comments: The High Street Riverside 

area is already marked down on the schedule, as a Dogs on lead area, which the TC feel is 

appropriate for this section of Garstang. Many families picnic here and in the summer is 

very popular with youngsters playing along the edge of the river. At the moment, many 

people are not adhering to this and dogs are not on leads and many a times have caused 

chaos amongst happy families enjoying their picnic, running into the river knocking 

children over and also attacking ducks. Signage is desperately needed to educate the 

owners that this a Dogs on lead area. I would suggest 3 signs would be needed -1 coming 

from the Millennium Green, and 2 either side between the carpark and duck area. 

Additionally, once the signs are in place, Garstang Town Council request that the signs are 

enforced and the dog fouling is addressed, by asking the enforcement officer to show his 

presence. 

35.  The instruction would be, I am certain, complied with by the majority. Not known of it in 

the last three years but it might be used as a tool in exceptional circumstances in the 

future. 

36.  Should there be an issue over safety to the dog or owner then I would have no objection 

to being asked to put dogs on a lead. 

 

  

Page 167



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A3 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

1.  I certainly don't think that there is any requirement for further areas requiring dogs to stay 

on leads, if anything possibly a reduction should be considered. 

2.  There are too few areas where our dogs can be exercised safely. 

3.  In certain areas it is fine. However, I do NOT think there's a need to extend those areas. 

4.  Fleetwood Marsh nature reserve is just that and the wild animals should have precedence 

over walkers and dog owners. We have had 5 swans since spring but none have produced 

young and I wonder if it the number of dogs who chase the swans in the ponds are 

deterring them from breeding. We have had Great crested grebes, reed buntings, Peregrine 

falcon, shoveller ducks, tufted ducks, moorhens, coots and many more beside bats and 

common newts. Too many think it is fine to allow their dogs to chase birds in the ponds. I 

think dogs should be on the lead during breeding season, after all this is a nature reserve 

not a dog toilet. 

5.  All areas should be available, except fenced off children's play parks. People leave far more 

waste than dogs. 

6.  As above. 

7.  Limiting the area that dogs are not allowed off lead will be very detrimental to a lot of dogs 

wellbeing, including mine. There are now no other areas where dogs are allowed off lead. 

8.  On numerous occasions, particularly since COVID 19 restrictions on travel whilst walking 

with very young children I have encountered dogs off the lead and out of control, owners 

seem to feel they have the run of all the beaches now. Dogs have leapt at the children 

knocking them off their feet and on two occasions I have had to shield the children from 

snarling aggressive dogs. Many owners have more than one dog off the lead and are not in 

control, the extendable leads are a particular nuisance on narrow roads and paths, the lead 

as well as the dog forming a hazard to both old and young. I feel that dogs should be on a 

lead at all times and owners should not be allowed to exercise more than two dogs at a 

time. 

9.  Dogs should be kept on a lead in all public areas at all times especially where other people 

are present. 

10.  Unnecessary. 

11.  As above dogs need to run and play. 

Page 168



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

12.  The areas where dogs can be exercised off lead and allowed to play and run together are 

reducing more and more but no alternatives are being provided. High energy dogs (of any 

breed) need mental and physical stimulation that cannot be net when on lead. In addition, 

that unspent energy coupled with the added tension of being on lead increases the anxiety 

levels of dogs (it is very common for on lead dogs to be more reactive). If these proposals 

do go ahead then please consider securely (solid, not like the other metal fences with gaps) 

fencing and gating the off lead area as this clear segregation will; a) benefit both dog 

owners and non owner groups b) allow those wishing to exercise off lead to have a secure 

area to somewhat compensate for the greatly reduced size c) remove the issues between 

dog owners who don’t want off lead dogs socialising with their on lead dogs by creating a 

clearly defined area where everyone knows dogs are off lead. In the absence of an 

American-style dog park (which would be lovely!) providing this enclosed space for off lead 

play would help all groups. 

13.  It would stop dogs swimming in the pond. 

14.  All dogs should be on leads and the number per person strictly limited. 

15.  I support the proposal. 

16.  I would like the authority to consider having seasonal lead orders, for example like the 

beach at Cleveleys this could be applied to Fleetwood Marsh which would protect the newly 

hatched birds and those adults/children who are brought by parents/ carers to feed the 

ducklings etc if they are nervous of dogs. My dogs need walking rain or shine, the issue is 

non dog walking adults and children using the Marsh has been exacerbate by the nice 

weather and covid 19. Usually on wet/ windy days it is only the hardened dogs walkers that 

you will see on the Marsh. My dogs have good recall however it would be difficult to keep 

them when off lead in the boundaries proposed without fencing, the authority could 

considered having a fenced area where children/adults are fully informed that there will be 

dogs off lead. I was diagnosed with Cardiomyopathy(enlarged heart) caused by a missed 

infection by medics 3 years ago and was under the care of Blackpool Victoria Hospital at this 

time we welcomed 2 dogs into our family I have walked daily (however at nearly 60 years I 

don't run). My young dogs need time to off lead and these proposed restrictions will make 

that very difficult for me to get the right balance of exercise for us all, 8 months ago I was 

discharged from the cardiac unit as my heart has returned to a normal size and this is 

directly due to my use of Fleetwood Marsh and Cleveleys and Rossall beach. 

 

17.  While dogs should obviously be kept on a lead at times they must also be allowed off the 

lead to exercise and socialise as failure to do this can lead to some dogs becoming 

frustrated and potentially aggressive so it’s imperative that areas are set aside for them to 

exercise and socialise safely. 

Page 169



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

18.  I think dogs should be kept on leads in all public areas at all times except for designated 

areas where dogs can be exercises off a lead. I have a spinal disability and consequent poor 

balance and find it difficult to find anywhere to walk without having dogs running at me 

which can very easily cause me to fall. Unfortunately dog owners do not comply with the 

by-laws and it is impossible for the Council to police the issue. 

19.  Clearer signage would be helpful particularly on the prom. 

20.  If this is going to be a law, then there needs to be fences and gates put up where dogs must 

be on a lead plus or are not allowed. I have to say I have never witnessed a dog run after 

the ducks or any birds I have however seen families and young children throwing stones at 

the birds. 

21.  See above. There are so few open spaces left where you can exercise a dog and further 

restrictions would be unfair. 

22.  It should be ALL areas. 

23.  Question is not English!! 

24.  I support this order in places where it is primarily for safety reasons. Pavements etc… dogs 

were always allowed off lead on the Promenades but now this is on lead. I am happy 

however to support this order for the safety of my dogs as due to the number of cyclists 

that use the promenade as a race track it is not safe FOR THE DOGS to be off lead. It's a 

shame there is not an order controlling the cyclists and their actions on the promenade 

areas. They have nearly mowed me down several times. As long as this order is balanced by 

access to sufficient off lead areas for exercise (ie the beaches) I would support it. 

25.  Catterall Parish Council wants to include ALL the play equipment under dogs on leads. That 

being the children's play area, older play area, wheeled play area, reading corner, 

landscaping areas, Multi Use Games Area and central football pitch. Map included. 

26.  Yes because it will be a nightmare to know where and when 

27.  As above. Also if this does go through you can expect a very hard time as this “survey” has 

been does in a way to hide any obligations. If this does come in you can expect a serious 

backlash from a number of owners. 

28.  I am concerned this rule will be extended to too many areas leaving nowhere left in the 

Wyre area. 

Page 170



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

29.  At the Fleetwood nature reserve for example in the summer months there is no shade 

provided by trees or shelters so the water is the only way that dogs can cool down. If 

people were to have the dogs on the leads it would cause many accidents because the 

owners would be slipping on the rocks while their dog is trying to get to the water. I 

understand that the lake is not there just for dogs to use but in my many years of going to 

the reserve I have seen that the swans, ducks etc are not bothered by dogs entering the 

water and any that are simply swim to the other side or under the bridge for the five 

minutes the dogs cool down. By all means stop people from throwing balls in for their dogs 

but surely it’s in the health and well-being of the dog to allow it to paddle and cool down 

for a few minutes? Could half the lake be assigned to families and picnickers and the other 

side for dog owners that way the reserve can be used by everyone all year round otherwise 

you’ll be excluding a lot of people from being able to take their dog their as it’s hot and they 

need to cool off and with restrictions everywhere else there really isn’t anywhere else to 

take them? Speaking of picnickers they create and leave an awful lot of mess and it’s us dog 

owners/walkers that clear it up when they leave. The children at the reserve are constantly 

throwing rocks at the swans etc on an almost daily occurrence. Are these people going to 

have restrictions imposed because they create a lot more mess and damage than dog 

owners do? Also unless you physically build a fence around that lake there is no way you’ll 

be able to stop a dog in summer from entering the water to cool off. I’ve seen people with 

Labradors that head straight for it because that’s the nature of the breed. After years of the 

dog being allowed to cool off it’s not going to suddenly understand there’s an invisible line 

it can’t cross and it can’t do so and to fine the owner £100 each time is totally unfair. People 

are afraid to take their dogs out because of enforcement officers waiting to pounce. 

30.  Not really enforceable 24/7 

31.  First of all I'd say that WBC's attitude to dog ownership is quite appalling. The signs 

suggesting dog ownership is the same level of public nuisance as fly-tipping is a disgrace. 

My specific issue is with the Fleetwood nature reserve. I have been taking my dogs there for 

twelve years and have them under control. I've rarely seen dogs out of control, certainly 

fewer times than I've seen youths and children out of control. The recent COVID problem 

has now brought out the lycra brigade who treat it as a leg of the Tour de France. In a 

shared space I see no more reason to put a dog on a lead than a young child. Both are 

capable of making sudden movements and it is up to cyclists to be aware and act 

accordingly. 

 

  

Page 171



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A4 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

1.  There should be more of them. Try finding a grassy place you can take your family in 

Wyre that is not a dog toilet! 

2.  I agree with the dog exclusion area on Cleveleys beach. I do wonder why these rules are 

not being enforced and fines taken. When my husband and I and friends walk on the 

prom a few times a week we see several dogs all the time on the banned section of the 

beach. At this time of year and especially now with so many people coming to the beach 

with children the dogs should not be on the beach. Some people take absolutely no 

notice of the signs or the flags banning them. If people see dogs on the beach they will 

think, well if there are dogs on now ours can go on. Have the Council any intention of 

policing the beach especially at weekends and Bank holidays? If not what is the point of 

having a ban? The fines that would be taken would surely pay for a dog warden. 

3.  Areas excluding dogs must be clearly signposted. 

4.  Banning all dogs from the beach - we have a rescue dog ex puppy farm, and walking on 

the beach has been such a delight for her. This poor girl has been cruelly exploited by 

humans who now want to confine her to concrete paths. The problem with dogs going 

on beaches is not all dogs, it’s a few rubbish owners. 

5.  No dog should ever be on or in an area used by children or vulnerable or disabled 

persons. 

6.  Closure of beach is too long. 

7.  Do not exclude from nature park or beaches on Fleetwood other than those already 

designated. Dogs should be free to run safely and if they are excluded from nature park 

or other parts of Fleetwood then you are severely hindering freedoms of choice I feel 

and the place we live in shouldn't all be restricted. Lots of dog owners are conscientious. 

It's only a few who aren't. Don't punish everyone else for the bad ones, rather educate 

and fine those bad owners. 

8.  There are areas where the dog exclusion zones are not warranted. For instance, part of 

the pitch and put golf course on the front half of this course is never used and therefore 

dogs would be able to be exercised on the completely unused half! 

9.  Bring back the dog ban for the Cemeteries, there are dogs off their leads, weeing on 

headstones and poo on graves. It is disgusting. 

10.  I think it is unhelpful to put all dog owners together. There is no bad dog, only bad 

owners. I think the law should not to ban all dogs, but have dogs on a lead, and 

extended leads if at all. 

11.  Again there are too few areas where our dogs can be exercised safely. 

Page 172



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

12.  Well trained dogs should be allowed in most places except maybe children fenced play 

areas. 

13.  There is no need to extend dog exclusion areas at all and for people with limited mobility 

or no transport it would become very difficult to give their dogs appropriate exercise. 

14.  Too many exclusions. 

15.  Too restrictive. 

16.  Responsible dogs and owners should not be limited to where they can enjoy exercise. It 

greatly reduces our spaces. The amount of rubbish left behind by humans is far greater 

than by the minority of dog owners. The devastation following lock down has evidenced 

this. More poo bins and higher fines for those not adhering is enough. 

17.  This is one of the only areas that is safe to take dogs in the local area where they can get 

the required amount of exercise and are not at threat or danger from cars on the roads. I 

have two springers and keeping them on a lead is detrimental to their health as they 

need to run for miles and this isn’t possible whilst on a lead. 

18.  As per previous comments. Dogs are the UK's favourite pet and legislation is in place 

that they are looked after correctly. For many not being allowed to stretch their legs and 

exercise properly will have a negative impact on their health and wellbeing, which is a 

contradiction of the welfare legislation. Walking my Labrador on pavements would not 

give him the amount of exercise he needs. We respect the other areas where we are no 

longer allowed to be off lead, please don't take this area away too. 

19.  There is limited areas that we can walk our dogs and it’s a nice area for responsible dog 

owners to walk their dogs and also for dogs to socialise. 

20.  Why shouldn’t dogs be able to use areas for exercise. What gives humans the right to 

dictate who and what should be able to exercise. It’s a free world and dogs have as 

much right as others to exercise. 

21.  This doesn’t appear to be enforced. 

22.  These should be extended especially on the seafront, why should dogs have the run of 

all of the seafront except for the one small area at Cleveleys. 

23.  In America many of their public parks have fenced off areas where dogs are allowed to 

run free, away from the general public, with their owners present. Maybe this is 

something that could be looked for future plans? I know it’s much easier to enforce laws 

in the states as their police are armed. 

24.  Dogs should not be restricted. They are better behaved than humans. 

Page 173



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

25.  Depends if you are thinking of increasing more exclusion areas, as stated dogs need run 

play and exercise. 

26.  Why in the Covid crisis where social distancing is so important would the council 

implement a rule that would force dog owners who wish to let their dogs off a lead be 

restricted to a confined area where the limited space would make social distancing 

impossible. The reason at the moment dog walkers go to the nature reserve is because it 

is safe for dogs to run free and the owners have enough space to keep a safe. There are 

very few areas that dogs are allowed off the lead and this restriction would be a blow to 

the local dog owners. 

27.  This nature reserve has long been home to dog owners and dog walkers alike. The dogs 

love to meet to run and play together, this keeps them happy, keeps morale high, keeps 

them exercised. 

28.  Again as above, there is no reason for dogs to be excluded from a place where they have 

been exercised without any problems for years. 

29.  Why should my dog be excluded from areas that other reckless people can go and leave 

litter, drug litter, cans and bottles. Go on cotton Hall field about 8 .00 at night when the 

teenagers have been on there, the litter is terrible. My dog cannot leave that amount of 

litter! 

30.  See specific comments regarding the changes at Fleetwood Nature Reserve and the 

Beach. 

31.  This is a special place. Not a dog toilet 

32.  It has clearly been proven that people are the issue leaving rubbish on the beaches and 

not the dogs. During covid the state the general public have left our proms and beaches 

is disgusting. Beaches are a great sensory play area for dogs and good for their health. 

I’m happy that during the summer months perhaps keep them on lead during prime 

hours 12-4 maybe. But when the beaches are quiet early morning and late afternoon 

they should be allowed to use the beaches provided any mess is picked up. 

33.  There should be no exclusions except on sports fields. 

34.  Why should my dog be excluded from areas that other reckless people can go and leave 

litter, drug Litter, cans and bottles. Go on cotton Hall field about 8 .00 at night when the 

teenagers have been on there the litter is terrible. My dog cannot leave that amount of 

litter! 

Page 174



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

35.  I support the proposal but would like to see the area expanded to the entire Fleetwood 

Nature Park. 

36.  I believe that there is proposal to restrict allowing dogs off lead at Fleetwood Nature 

Park. I agree with this as the number of dogs exercised off lead here has resulted in 

marked reduction in ground nesting birds and also waterbird species. It is after all a 

nature park and used to be a great birdwatching site. 

37.  I would like the authority to consider having seasonal lead orders, for example like the 

beach at Cleveleys this could be applied to Fleetwood Marsh which would protect the 

newly hatched birds and those adults/children who are brought by parents/ carers to 

feed the ducklings etc if they are nervous of dogs. My dogs need walking rain or shine 

the issue is non dog walking adults and children using the Marsh has been exacerbated 

by the nice weather and covid 19, usually on wet/ windy days it is only the hardened 

dogs walkers that you will see on the Marsh. My dogs have good recall however it would 

be difficult to keep them when off lead in the boundaries proposed without fencing, the 

authority could consider having a fenced area where children/adults are fully informed 

that there will be dogs off lead. I was diagnosed with Cardiomyopathy(enlarged heart) 

caused by a missed infection by medics 3 years ago and was under the care of Blackpool 

Victoria Hospital at this time we welcomed 2 dogs into our family I have walked daily 

(however at nearly 60 years I don't run) my young dogs need time to off lead and these 

proposed restrictions will make that very difficult for me to get the right balance of 

exercise for us all, 8 months ago I was discharged from the cardiac unit as my heart has 

returned to a normal size and this is directly due to my use of Fleetwood Marsh and 

Cleveleys and Rossall beach. 

38.  I am firmly against dog exclusion areas as this prevents them from playing, socialising 

and learning how to behave with other dogs and new people. There is no justification for 

having dog exclusion areas just like there would be no excuse for having child exclusion 

areas. 

39.  Areas to exercise dogs off lead are becoming few and far between. Dog owners get as 

much joy from seeing our pets running and playing with other dogs as parents do seeing 

their kids happy. I admit a minority of dog owners ruin it for the rest of us by not picking 

up after their pets or not muzzling dogs that can become aggressive. The majority of 

dogs and their owners get along just fine. 

40.  There are already many places where dogs are banned in Fleetwood, including the 

beach. There needs to be somewhere where dogs can be allowed 

Page 175



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

41.  Dogs should be excluded from areas that are designated as Nature Reserves due to the 

disturbance and negative impact that they have on the wildlife. Dogs should be excluded 

from Rossall and Fleetwood Beaches April to September so that ground nesting waders 

can breed in peace without disturbance from dogs. 

42.  I have concerns about the suggested use of dog exclusion areas at Fleetwood Marsh. 

43.  Fleetwood Nature Reserve. 

44.  I believe the council are trying to stop dog walking on the estuary because of complaints 

from cyclists who say there is an aggressive dog problem, this is not the case cyclists are 

the aggressor and they seem to think they own right of way, I to have been a cyclist and 

respect all people who enjoy the outdoor but if the council want to alienate 50% of their 

electorate this is not a good idea. 

45.  That’s fine but there should be more signs and it should be very clear. Unfortunately a 

lot of people don’t seem to be aware of which parts this covers. 

46.  Same as my comments below. If you were to fence certain areas this would limit the 

exercise areas. In the hot weather this is a place I bring my dogs to cool off and blow off 

steam. 

47.  Clear signage to clearly show when a dog exclusion starts and finishes. 

48.  As I previously said if you don’t want dogs in certain areas then these areas must be 

cornered off with fences or gates, what a waste of time and money! 

49.  Dogs must be allowed areas where they are free to exercise off the lead. 

50.  I feel owners should be able to responsibly take their dogs on beaches for part of each 

day perhaps with a restriction between 10:00 to 18:00 on some beaches April to the end 

of September. Owners & dogs need to exercise freely for optimum health. 

51.  Most of the beach is closed to dog owners from May to October and making further dog 

exclusion areas would further restrict where I can exercise my dogs. 

52.  If the dogs are on leads it would not be a problem. 

53.  Please see my previous comment. 

Page 176



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

54.  I currently take my dog to the nature reserve at Fleetwood. I have been told of the new 

rules coming in to keep dogs on leads and stop them going into the water. I must add 

that there are no notices about these proposals which I think is a very devious way to 

obtain money from innocent dog owners. The majority of people pick up after their dogs 

and are careful to control their dogs when others are around. There is no where else to 

take dogs for a good run which is beneficial to their health and well-being and allow 

them to cool off in the water because of the restrictions on the beach. Maybe put some 

gates at each end to add some control and fence the ducks and swans nest at the bridge 

so that they stay on the side which dogs do not use. I feel very strongly about this and 

wonder what adequate alternatives will be provided by the council which will offer large 

spaces for dogs to run around and water to cool off if the proposals are enforced. Again, 

I think this is a money making opportunity for the council to try and catch people out as 

no notices are displayed about these proposals 

55.  It's disheartening when I can't take dog on a deserted beach. Yet youths can drink 

alcohol, use drugs and leave all the rubbish including broken bottles behind. Also tourists 

think don't need to use bins and leave their rubbish behind including dirty nappies. 

Someone has to move it or will end up in the sea causing problems for wildlife. 

56.  I am very concerned that dogs are being allowed to be exercised on public playing fields. 

I was annoyed that the owners of 3 dogs were using the football field at Preesall to 

exercise their dogs. Please could you put this in the restricted places that dogs are not 

allowed. 

57.  It is possible and easy enough to clean up after them in areas where they are currently 

banned eg certain areas of the beach and the pitch n put. 

Page 177



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

58.  I currently take my dog to the nature reserve at Fleetwood. I have been told of the new 

rules coming in to keep dogs on leads and stop them going into the water. I must add 

that there are no notices about these proposals which I think is a very devious way to 

obtain money from innocent dog owners. The majority of people pick up after their dogs 

and are careful to control their dogs when others are around. There is no where else to 

take dogs for a good run which is beneficial to their health and well-being and allow 

them to cool off in the water because of the restrictions on the beach. Maybe put some 

gates at each end to add some control and fence the ducks and swans nest at the bridge 

so that they stay on the side which dogs do not use. I feel very strongly about this and 

wonder what adequate alternatives will be provided by the council which will offer large 

spaces for dogs to run around and water to cool off if the proposals are enforced. Again, 

I think this is a money making opportunity for the council to try and catch people out as 

no notices are displayed about these proposals. 

59.  Children’s play area, pitches, fenced areas no problem with. In other areas if you have a 

ban order then clear simple signage and markings on the paths etc need to be put in 

place. As a new dog owner I have no idea there is an order in place at Fleetwood estuary 

park. 

60.  I feel that sports areas should be dog exclusion zones at all times. 

61.  Why should dogs be excluded from any area? There is no good reason for this. 

62.  Dogs need to be able to run off their energy to prevent aggression and to introduce 

socialisation. If you continue to reduce areas where dogs can be exercised off the lead, 

the areas left will become overcrowded with dogs creating even more problems. In 

particular Fleetwood promenade, Fleetwood picnic area and Fleetwood Nature reserve 

should be left as areas for dogs to run free. The part of the nature reserve requiring dogs 

to be put on a lead does not help to preserve wildlife, and makes no sense as dogs do 

not understand imaginary lines where they cannot run. 

63.  I note that the dog exclusion areas are closest to the access and parking points of the 

facilities. This has the effect of restricting or even excluding those with mobility issues 

from exercising their dogs if they are unable to walk to the areas designated for dogs off 

leads. 

64.  See above comment. Please don’t judge majority of responsible dog owners against a 

few who just don’t feel responsibility to clean up and make sure their dog is controlled. 

Page 178



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

65.  Children’s play areas have this order. I can understand why and whilst it does not affect 

me personally I can see that sometimes young families with dogs are forced to tie their 

dogs up outside the play area while they go in, or break the order and take the dog in. 

The only trouble with tying the dog up outside the area is that it can come loose and go 

running around the local park unsupervised causing more trouble than had the family 

been allowed to take the dog into the area on a lead. 

66.  More enforcement required - dogs are regularly seen in the children's play area in 

Preesall. 

67.  Please extend the number of exclusion zones particularly around beach and country side 

areas. Also restrictions on pavements. 

68.  There are enough already...it is already extremely difficult to find open spaces to 

exercise a dog freely. 

69.  Dog ownership provides companionship to many and an opportunity to visit local parks, 

beaches etc for exercise and meeting other like minded people. I believe all local parks 

and beaches should be open to all and patrolled if there is an issue. 

70.  The area proposed is a common area for dogs to run off lead and restricts where they 

can be off lead massively. Plus it's going to be near impossible to stop them crossing 

from one area to another. 

71.  People only use the beaches when the sun shines, dogs and owners use it 365 days a 

year regardless of weather. 

72.  As above. Just because you don’t have dogs, you don’t get it. 

73.  Excluding dogs from a nature reserve is absurd. I really feel the need to emphasise the 

importance of socialisation in order to prevent aggression and other poor behaviour 

traits. A vast majority of the owners are very attentive and all the dogs are incredibly 

well behaved. I see no reason why the council wish to enact measures which will simply 

ruin the ability for dogs to socialise and exercise together. Furthermore, the less open 

space available for individuals to walk dogs will undoubtedly lead to more cases of 

neglect and abandonment which is horrible to think about, but without the access to 

open spaces many families will be unable to exercise and socialise their dogs. 

74.  I think all the beaches on the Fylde Coast should be permanently dog and horse free. 

Page 179



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

75.  Again for example at the Fleetwood nature reserve if you restrict areas that the dogs can 

be let off lead to exercise you are going to create problems by having nervous dogs and 

aggressive dogs pushed into a smaller area. At the moment the nature reserve is plenty 

big enough to avoid other dogs and owners. If there weren’t so many restrictions 

everywhere else in the area then people wouldn’t have to rely on the nature reserve so 

much to take their dogs out. Dogs need to exercise and the places and areas they are 

allowed to do so it’s getting smaller every year. It’s already difficult to enjoy a walk up 

there without having cyclists racing round as fast as they can and trying to avoid them 

and also trying to avoid families understandably. At the moment this is possible because 

of how big it is but if you restrict areas it’s going to become much more difficult. 

76.  The Fleetwood Nature reserve proposal is ridiculous. People will ignore anyhow or not 

be aware of it. That is the main part of the reserve. There is never that much wildlife 

there and would be better to insist on lead or on lead when requested. This area has 

been spoiled by too many dog walking companies exercising dogs here often meeting up 

so like a pack of dogs. I rarely go because of this reason. However it is a nice walk 

especially if extended towards the new estate and to Freeport. 

77.  Find it remarkable that dogs are only excluded for part of the year. It should be none in 

my opinion. But either all the year or none of it. 

78.  Please will you include Garstang TC’s resolution from last night’s TC meeting (17/8/20) in 

the consultation exercise 056(2020-21) Wyre Council “ 3 Year Review of Public Spaces 

Protection Orders (PSPOs)” Control of Dogs and Dog Fouling, Cllrs Hynes and Webster 

Resolved: The Town Council approved Cllr Hynes comments: The High Street Riverside 

area is already marked down on the schedule, as a Dogs on lead area, which the TC feel 

is appropriate for this section of Garstang. Many families picnic here and in the summer 

is very popular with youngsters playing along the edge of the river. At the moment, 

many people are not adhering to this and dogs are not on leads and many a times have 

caused chaos amongst happy families enjoying their picnic, running into the river 

knocking children over and also attacking ducks. Signage is desperately needed to 

educate the owners that this a Dogs on lead area. I would suggest 3 signs would be 

needed -1 coming from the Millennium Green, and 2 either side between the carpark 

and duck area. Additionally, once the signs are in place, Garstang Town Council request 

that the signs are enforced and the dog fouling is addressed, by asking the enforcement 

officer to show his presence. 

79.  It is not enforced!!! Extend by all means, but make sure the officers are there to enforce 

the order. 

80.  For much the same reasons as above. The prevention of dogs entering the water is a 

huge concern and an animal welfare issue. Dogs do need some cooling off. Are people 

still going to be allowed to bathe? In twelve years I've not seen a dog hurt a bird in the 

Page 180



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your comments/ concerns below 

pond, but I've seen youths and children, under the supervision of adults, throwing 

stones at ducks. 

81.  The area of dog exclusion in Cleveleys is large. Could this be reduced to allow dog 

walking on lead to the Blackpool Boundary from Victoria Road? But keep dog exclusion 

zone in place to Cafe Cove? This would mean dogs and their owners would need to come 

off the beach at Victoria Road. 

 

  

Page 181



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A5 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

1.  I agree should be available for all. 

2.  Requirement there may be but it is ignored wholesale. Try strimming or mowing these 

areas, it alters ones perspective. 

3.  My observation is that people exercising dogs on playing fields frequently let their dogs 

off their leashes-and in such circumstances, definitely do NOT pick up after their dogs. 

Is it fair that whoever then uses the field for a game or other activity should have to 

contend with the subsequent fouling. 

4.  A dog walking space should not be in areas where regular activity takes place by our 

young people. It is not always possible to pick up all traces of dog poo plus dogs will 

also urinate in these spaces making them unhygienic for any kind of sport. 

5.  I can certainly see why dogs should be allowed when the pitches aren't in use, but 

again, people are the problem. There are still those that don't pick up after their dog, 

and if someone fell into this during a match it could be devastating. 

6.  My observation is that people exercising dogs on playing fields frequently let their dogs 

off their leashes-and in such circumstances, definitely do NOT pick up after their dogs. 

Is it fair that whoever then uses the field for a game or other activity should have to 

contend with the subsequent fouling. 

7.  As the council well knows, there is no existing enforcement of exclusion zones nor of 

fouling. A lot of dog owners simply ignore these orders and will do so on sports pitches, 

where it is often impossible to see dog waste and where more children will be exposed 

to it. 

8.  There are plenty of places to exercise our dogs other than on sports pitches. 

9.  Have visible enforcement officers out checking that dog owners abide by the bylaws. 

10.  Again an irresponsible few never tidy up, dogs can not read, and children will break 

rules and need protection from unruly dogs, poor dog owners, if they take advantage 

of these sports areas when not in season or usage. 

11.  Too many people failing to pick up dog poo, example Thornton rugby pitch is 

repeatedly soiled. 

12.  It is what is left behind that matters not whether or not the areas are in use. They 

should be in the inclusion zone. 

13.  The marked sports pitches near me are never enforced and there are plenty of dogs 

being walked on them during the times or organised activity, so allowing them when 

no organised activity taking place could muddy the waters. 

Page 182



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

14.  There is no issue in dogs being exercised when the sports pitches are not in use. 

15.  There is no reason why responsible dog owners shouldn’t be allowed to use unfenced 

spaces when not in use. There should be punishment of some sort for irresponsible 

dog owners though as they spoil it for others. 

16.  If you allow dogs to be exercised on a pitch this will increase the problem, as they will 

be exercised regardless of whether there is an organised event or not. 

17.  More multi-purpose bins will be needed. The South Strand entrance bin (very small) at 

King Georges playing fields in Fleetwood, is regularly overflowing. We regularly pick up 

litter there - left around the pitch perimeter area. Broadwater entrance has a large bin, 

one of those on either side of field would help. 

18.  I think dogs should continue to be off limits whether fenced or not as unfortunately 

there are a minority that allow their dogs to foul and don’t pick up after them. 

19.  Providing people remove faeces I see no problem probably less risk of contagion than 

from footballers spit. 

20.  Dogs need off lead exercise every day. 

21.  People may pick up after their dog but some faeces will still remain and there is the 

possibility of worms from untreated dogs. Children then roll on the grass that has been 

used for urine as well. Allowing dogs on even when owners pick up encourages other 

less responsible owners to also allow their dogs to foul the area. 

22.  As long as the owners clean up after their dogs I see no reason for them to be 

exercised on marked sports pitches when not in use. 

23.  More enforcement is needed and good publication of fines issued. 

24.  Hambleton have an enclosed area for the exercising of dogs, this works really well & 

am sure could be replicated in Poulton, Thornton & Fleetwood. I agree that 

unfortunately some dog owners and disreputable dog walkers have spoilt it for the 

majority of sensible owners However there must be a workable solution, whether it be 

a fenced off area or certain times of the day where dogs can be off lead. A blanket 

restriction will be unworkable and will only move any problems to other areas. 

25.  Residual mess is a hazard and not all dog walkers pick up. 

26.  Our dogs love going there they are all behaved and they play and come back when 

called. 

27.  If the current restrictions are not enforced then why would these changes be? Dog poo 

in areas where children play is unacceptable. 

Page 183



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

28.  Dog faeces carries disease and worm eggs even when picked up residue can remain in 

grass this is a public health hazard. Children would like to exercise and play in these 

areas but cannot do so safely if dogs are allowed to roam free. 

29.  Allowing dogs to use marked areas when organised activities are not taking place does 

not remove the hazard of excrements both urine and faeces being left on pitches that 

are to be used for sport at a later date. 

30.  Logical amendment in line with most LAs. 

31.  As long as you’re cleaning up after your dog and being responsible with it, I feel you 

should be able to exercise your animal in all open spaces. 

32.  This sounds great. 

33.  Yes, common sense. 

34.  All residents pay for these spaces and should be allowed to use them responsibly. 

35.  Yes I agree with this and I think most dog walkers do. 

36.  I think in certain areas it would be better to install CCTV to police the fact that only one 

or two individuals do not collect their dogs waste. It seems very 'big brother' to stop 

the majority of individuals who abide by the rules from exercising their dogs; which 

sometimes if not exercised enough could become a danger to children/families and 

others. 

37.  Dog mess is a mess at all times. When children go there it is a danger to their and all 

our health. 

38.  I totally understand about the need to have dogs on a lead in certain areas, however, I 

have not got a large garden and my dogs love been able to run free. My local area 

(Winmarleigh hall) was fantastic for this as my children could play in the park and I 

could play with the dogs in an enclosed safe area. But now unfortunately due to 

certain people who let their dogs foul and just leave it (mainly an elderly gentleman 

with a chocolate Labrador, who I’ve had words with many times about this) we can no 

longer let our dogs off the lead which I’m so upset about. Responsible dog owners 

need somewhere where they can exercise their dogs but also where it is safe to do so 

please resolve this issue, do not punish all dogs just because there is some 

irresponsible people out there. 

39.  Should not be allowed on at all. Not fair on kids wanting to use them if dogs are 

running on them. 

40.  Yes I agree with this and I think most dog walkers do. 

Page 184



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

41.  Dogs should be excluded from sport fields at all times. Some owners will not remove 

faeces. While unused sports pitches often provide valuable feeding and roosting areas 

for many birds. Dogs prevent such use by birds. 

42.  Litter bins need to be provided and notices stressing they are sports areas. 

43.  As a responsible dog owner I would clear up after my dogs and ensure they are 

wormed regularly as prescribed by their vet. 

44.  I think responsible dog owner should be able to use Sports pitches when they’re not in 

use as we are fast running out of areas to exercise our dogs due to all the new homes 

being built 

45.  It is hard to find places to exercise dogs off lead, so it is important that there are not 

too many restrictions. However when a place like this is being used for an event dogs 

should be on leads. 

46.  It is a shame people are not respectful to others and leave foul behind. 

47.  I never walk my dog over a marked pitch anyway as even if you pick up after your dog 

there could still be residue left. I walk around the outside of the pitch and if there were 

a match on, I would go elsewhere. 

48.  Dogs should only be exercised off the lead in fenced areas. 

49.  Dogs should be excluded at all times. Many dog owners do not pick up after their dogs 

leaving the faeces for authorised users of the pitches to tread in and / or contaminate 

their skin and clothing. 

50.  Not all Dog owners pick up which makes the open green unusable for everyone. 

51.  It seems wasteful not to use the fields when no organised activity is going on so I think 

it should be available for dog walking. 

52.  I walk my 2 dogs on these grounds every day nearly. I see the same dogs, same families 

and all dogs are loving life, enjoying their walk. It’s very rare I see any dogs on leads on 

there! If this comes into place it will ruin a public social happy face for families and the 

dogs are not going to enjoy their walks when walking along their owners. My 2 dogs 

are very behaved. In 3 years of going to the nature reserve I’ve never seen a dog 

misbehave. I personally think it shouldn’t be frowned upon at all and if I’m honest if 

you’re not happy with it then don’t go on there. Dogs have nowhere they run and play, 

beaches, no. Parks? No. Please don’t ruin this beautiful place. 

53.  Very welcome change and one which I had planned to suggest. 

Page 185



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

54.  There is lots of large green space in Fleetwood such as the pitch and putt by the kite 

shop. This area is a dog exclusion zone, however most of the year it isn't used. And it's 

rarely used early in the morning, it would be an ideal place to walk a dog and I would 

much rather this land be available rather than used as an exclusion zone due to the 

occasional golfer on it for three months of the year. 

55.  Lots of people don’t pick it up so dogs shouldn’t be on there. 

56.  I agree to allow dogs on the excluded areas when the pitch isn’t in use as it isn’t being 

used therefore it makes sense to benefit some people, and then when the pitch is in 

use again then make it inaccessible for dogs. It could be an idea to insert temporary 

bins on the pitch when it isn’t in use to encourage dog walkers to pick up dog litter and 

use the bins provided and then removed the bins when the pitch is being used again. 

57.  Clear signage. 

58.  As long as people pickup after their dogs, what’s the problem? 

59.  Many people take their dogs to watch local sporting events and provided they are 

under control, what harm is there? 

60.  Even when owners do pick up after their dogs, the area remains soiled. Pitches cannot 

be cleaned before use for sports. 

61.  See previous comments. Do not think dogs should be allowed on children’s /adults 

playing fields or parks. Some owners are unreliable re picking dog poo up as we well 

know from walking along the sea wall at Knott End!! 

62.  Catterall Parish Council has built more play areas since the last consultation and these 

must be included. Map included. 

63.  As long as the signage is clear 

64.  Need to exercise our dogs. Most do no harm and enjoy off lead time to socialise with 

other dogs. 

65.  It is difficult to tell where a dog has left its mark if it is allowed to run off a lead. 

Furthermore, whether on a lead or not all dog walkers cannot be trusted to pick up 

after their dogs. Sports pitches must be left for whom they are intended, without the 

risk of encountering dog mess which could lead to serious health implications. 

66.  Dogs should not be allowed on sports pitches at any time. 

67.  As long as the signage is clear 

68.  As long as people pick up after I can’t see why this is an issue. 

Page 186



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

69.  Happy to do this. It's irresponsible dog owners who are the problem covering all ages. 

70.  What change? I agree with the policy allowing dogs to be exercised on playing fields 

when they are not in use, and not want this to be changed. 

71.  I welcome this. It permits dog exercising in areas with easier access for limited mobility 

dog owners. 

72.  Let’s utilise land when not in use. 

73.  It seems fair that when an activity is not in place the area can be used to exercise dogs 

as long as the owners pick up after their dogs. It would also be useful to encourage an 

informal "code" whereby should people come on to use say a football field for a 

kickabout any dog owners exercising their dogs would voluntarily relinquish the field 

and move to another area of the park. This is mainly what happens in North Drive Park. 

Because of the campaigning that was done in 2009 for this area (supported by Cllr Kay) 

it's almost become custom and practice that most (not all) dogs do this and move to 

the smaller area adjacent. I would like to see this continue and the above order seems 

to include this and be the most sensible option. 

74.  Signs needed, dogs only to be exercised on pitches when not in use. Don’t forget dog 

walkers are rate payers too. 

75.  I feel that sports areas should be dog exclusion zones at all times. 

76.  I feel dogs should be excluded from sports pitches. 

77.  Sadly owners cannot be relied upon to follow the rules. Clear simple rule - no dogs. 

78.  I think the pitches should be dog free at any time as there are irresponsible dog owners 

and it is likely before any match, a match official or parent of the players would have to 

search the pitch to check it was foul free and they should have to as it is often young 

people who use these pitches. 

79.  The vast pitch and putt areas running from the Mount to the boating lake are very 

under used and would provide ideal dog exercising space. Maybe consider one side of 

it is turned over to dog walkers permanently? More education and bins for the few 

that still can't be bothered to pick the dog mess up. 

80.  So long as owners are responsible in picking up after their dog, there is no harm in the 

dogs using the open space for exercise when organised sport is not taking place. This is 

especially apparent in the winter months when little sport takes place however dogs 

still need to be exercised. 

81.  Marked sports pitches must be out of bounds to dogs at all times. 

Page 187



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

82.  I agree with the proposed change because I live directly opposite a sports field and I do 

not own a dog but sometimes care for my daughters and my opposite field while 

widely used by dog walkers to my knowledge is poo free. There is a bin which is 

emptied daily by WBC. 

83.  Not everyone picks up after their dogs, I don't see why responsible people who play 

sports should be inconvenienced by dog mess left by the ignorant few. 

84.  Of course if there are pitches in use then dogs should not be allowed on them but 

otherwise it’s a shame that the fields can’t be enjoyed by everyone. Target the dog 

owners that do not pick up after their dogs instead of banning everyone else from 

using them. Again there is limited places we can exercise dogs so to allow owners to 

use the pitches while not in use would be a help and a positive step to show dog 

owners that you are not anti-dog in Wyre. 

85.  I think sports pitches should be kept free of dogs. 

86.  NO! Dogs should not be allowed on these pitches at any time. Not all owners clear up. 

It doesn't matter how many warnings you give these people, they just ignore them. 

How disgusting is to turn up for a game of football only to find dog faeces on the pitch! 

87.  It would be preferable for dogs to be kept on leads at all times. It's OK having signs up, 

but dogs running loose who go in longer grass cannot always be seen and the owner 

doesn't pick up. If they are on a lead - could be extending - then they are under control. 

88.  Will those areas be examined prior to each usage? 

89.  To enable dog walkers to exercise in these large spaces. However the enforcement on 

dog fouling would need to be strict to ensure the pitches are not fouled. Could the 

dogs be required to go on lead on request? 

 

  

Page 188



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A6 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

1.  The beaches are deserted by everyone other than dog walkers outside of the summer 

season. 

2.  I don’t have a problem with dogs being exercising on the beaches during winter when 

people are not sitting on the beach or bathing. 

3.  Clear signage is required especially over the bridge between the 2 boating lakes in 

Fleetwood stating no swimming at any time. A visitor from Manchester has already had 

a very nasty accident jumping from the concrete pipe into the sea which has left him 

eating through a straw. Myself (Cllr Fairbanks) and Cllr George have both checked this 

area and noted no signage was there at all warning people not to swim in that area of 

the beach. 

4.  I cannot understand the reasons behind banning dogs from the main stretch of Cleveleys 

beach. I have never come across a problem with regards to dogs on the beach, even with 

my two preschool children in tow. I haven’t come across dog muck either. The only 

problems I have come across have been concerning humans, namely rubbish and 

antisocial behaviour. Dogs aren't the problem, people are. 

5.  I don’t have a problem with dogs being exercising on the beaches during winter when 

people are not sitting on the beach or bathing. 

6.  The current ban is ignored. A year-round ban would remove any ambivalence. 

7.  Only really dog walkers out of season. 

8.  The period is already too long. 

9.  Hardly any tourists in winter. Locals should have priority and in bad weather it's empty 

apart from those of us who are dedicated. 

10.  The beaches certainly in Fleetwood where I live are very quiet in the winter, why not let 

people on with their dogs? They do no harm and gives a wider area to exercise. 

11.  Enforce against the 2% of idiots who don’t clean up after their dogs, not the 98% of dogs 

who don’t understand or deserve to be published. 

12.  During the season makes sense as it is busier but not during the winter months when 

bathing isn't taking place. 

13.  A great deal of investment has taken place over the last few years, with the result we 

now have a clean beach and starting to get safe bathing water. Extending and enforcing 

the ban on dogs will only enhance the cleanliness of the beach and get dog owners use 

to avoiding the parts of the beach that are prohibited to dogs. 

Page 189



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

14.  Once again I find uncontrollable dogs coming into my personal space frightening, so do 

others I surmise. If any mess is deposited it seems to be left behind. 

15.  It's a small area of what is a long stretch. The exclusion should apply all year. 

16.  There is reduced beach use in winter months and hence people can exercise their dogs 

closer to where they live in a safe manner. 

17.  No reason why we can’t exercise our dogs in these areas during the off season months. 

18.  There are fewer people about making use of the beach in the winter so I don't feel it 

should be applied all year round. 

19.  No because there’s too many places we can’t take our dogs as it is. I can’t physically do 

two dog walks per day and have 5 dogs. Dogs need to exercise or it causes bigger 

problems! Humans are more disgusting, fine them not innocent dog owners trying to 

walk their dogs on the beaches. 

20.  Although I rarely see if llt enforced. 

21.  I live on the Promenade at Rossall and feel it is of benefit for my dog to be able to go on 

the beach for walks when it's off season and not many people around. 

22.  Absolutely not. There are very few fields and no wooded areas at all due to the area we 

live in, there is no evidence to support a year round ban, the quality of water is not 

affected, in fact it is impossible to test for dig faeces, given the amount of run off from 

farms and waste pumped into the sea, dog waste is minuscule. 

23.  If the bathing beaches are not being used for such a purpose during the winter months, 

it is unreasonable to prevent dog walkers from using them. 

24.  Seasonal is quite enough. 

25.  People need place to exercise their dogs. 

26.  Families can often be seen playing in the sand even in winter. 

27.  Only in summer. 

28.  Out of season these beaches are deserted and dog walkers are entitled to use and enjoy 

the space like everyone else. 

Page 190



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

29.  If this is applied all year round then the amount of places to take your dog to exercises is 

beyond limited. It is unfair on those people who don’t have cars but still want to care for 

their pet properly and ensure they get the exercise required. Having a dog is a great help 

with human mental wellbeing and restricting where you can take them will result in 

more lazy people not getting out with their animals or animals being disregarded and 

neglected. It is unfair. 

30.  People don't use the beach all year round for recreation, so why shouldn't the dogs be 

able to go on in winter?!! 

31.  It would appear unfair to ban this all year round, when in the autumn and winter months 

the only people who frequent this area are dog walkers in the main. 

32.  These areas should be extended we need more dog free areas for children to play safely. 

33.  Beaches largely deserted outside the summer season. 

34.  Most dog walkers leave less mess on beaches than the public & fishermen, yet dog 

walkers are the group that is penalized. We should promote Wyre as dog friendly in 

order to bring in tourism, not drive dog owners away. 

35.  Again - dogs should not be banned from anywhere. They are family members and should 

be treated like this. 

36.  I actually think fishermen are far more of a nuisance than dogs. If you have a well 

behaved dog they will stay away from other if you are a responsible owner and keep 

your dog in your eye site all the time. 

37.  Not at all! It’s unfair! 

38.  Responsible dog owners should be allowed to exercise their dogs at least during certain 

periods. 

39.  The beach is a large area in the summer I can understand there is more families etc but 

in the off season there is no need at all to exclude dogs. 

40.  Children do not generally play on the beach in winter. 

41.  We are already restricted to where we are allowed to exercise our dogs we feel as locals 

we should be able to exercise them on our local beaches at least out of season. 

Page 191



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

42.  Many families choose to take their children and dogs to the beach to enjoy family time. 

You risk excluding many families by imposing this ban. We already can't enjoy the beach 

like others can during the warmer summer months, there is no reason to take the winter 

months from us too. In my experience dog owners leave pretty much zero waste whilst 

families with small children leave food wrappers, nappies, and other waste behind them 

on the beach. I'd actually argue they are a danger to any dogs and would much rather 

they litterers be banned than dog owners. 

43.  I don't agree with the ban at all for dogs on beaches. If you look at the number of people 

who walk dogs in the areas it would be better if dogs are walked on beaches rather than 

promenades. Most responsible dog owners pick up after their dog, more needs to be 

done about irresponsible owners, more wardens on patrol. 

44.  Locals and tourists leave more litter in a day then any dog can in its lifetime! Dirty 

nappies, food, cans, bottles etc! 

45.  Shorebirds are harassed by dogs along the entire Wyre coastline. There is an important 

roost site on the beach at Rossall Point and Ringed Plovers attempt to nest here. A 

section on beach 300 yardds each side of the Rossall Tower should be designated dog 

free year round. My experience here is that the bird flock is disturbed an average of 

every 15 minutes by dogs. 

46.  Both are quiet out of season. 

47.  I should remain seasonal as the beaches are deserted in late autumn/ winter and early 

spring. 

48.  Dog owners do need spaces to exercise their dogs and in the winter months it seems 

reasonable to allow them on the beach. 

49.  There are nesting birds in the shingle at Rossall and VERY rare plants including sea kale 

and yellow horned poppy in this area. Plus the biological database habitat species of 

honeycomb worm on the grounds. These are should be top priority if we are to protect 

our biodiversity. 

Page 192



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

50.  It has clearly been proven that people are the issue leaving rubbish on the beaches and 

not the dogs. During covid the state the general public have left our proms and beaches 

is disgusting. Beaches are a great sensory play area for dogs and good for their health. 

I’m happy that during the summer months perhaps keep them on lead during prime 

hours 12-4 maybe. But when the beaches are quiet early morning and late afternoon 

they should be allowed to use the beaches provided any mess is picked up. Beaches are 

public spaces and should be allowed to be used as desired. Having a small child and a 

dog (dogs are also for life) it is increasing hard to find places we can go out together as 

dogs are not allowed in parks. It is unfair to leave the dog at home or alternatively our 

child miss opportunities of using public spaces. Maybe look at investing into dogs in the 

community rather than constantly taking away facilities and dining. We would happily 

pay £1 an hour to use an area which is fun and enjoyable for all our family. 

51.  I regularly walk to the beach around the Observation Tower area, this area is often used 

by nesting seabirds and would benefit from limited access at certain times of the year as 

the dogs are off lead and disturbing the young birds. Also the flocks of Waders that 

winter here are constantly under attack from out of control dogs, in fact one individual 

who has two "Pointer" Dogs and uses the beach here most days actually encourages her 

dogs to chase the grounded flocks all along the shoreline! 

52.  As I said previously it is hard to find suitable places to walk dogs off lead, also some 

owners may go very early or at night and the restrictions would still affect them. Dogs as 

well should not be penalised for some owners not picking up their poo and other 

humans on the beach seem to leave a lot of rubbish behind too. 

53.  Plenty of other areas to walk a dog. Some areas should always be kept safe and dog free. 

54.  Only when people are using it. I disagree with dogs being allowed to go near young 

children. Many people can't control their dogs. 

55.  I fully support the ban during the summer but see no need for this during the winter 

months. The beach is probably used by more dog walkers than non-dog walkers in the 

winter. 

56.  Yes, but ONLY so that it is easier followed. I have often visited the beach with my dog 

later in the evenings and taken him on the beach without seeing the signs until leaving. If 

I knew they were permanently banned, it would not confuse me and other owners. 

There should perhaps be signage to show that “this beach” cannot be used and it should 

detail the nearest beach that dogs can be walked on. This would guide me and other 

owners to a beach that is safe to walk our dogs. 

57.  If people are not bathing, I don’t see why the dogs can't enjoy the space. However, as 

long as owners pick up the foul. 

Page 193



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

58.  There is simply no need and where do you want responsible dog owners to exercise their 

dogs? 

59.  The beaches are mainly used by dog walkers once the summer season is over. I 

understand limiting the areas dogs can go on during the summer months though. Sadly 

it is people/fishermen who leave most of the rubbish on our beaches not dogs. 

60.  Dogs aren’t the problem, people are. People leave litter, fishermen leave hooks and 

wire. 

61.  There is no need out of season when the beaches are deserted apart from dog walkers 

and horse riders. 

62.  But there should still be a policing of the area. 

63.  The beach is mainly used by dog walkers out of season so it is overly restrictive to apply 

the ban all year round. The beach would hardly be used if that was the case. 

64.  There should be areas where people don’t have to put up with dogs. 

65.  It is a beauty spot that people enjoy, why can’t our pets enjoy it as well? 

66.  Absolutely not!!! The evidence is clear that dogs are not the main cause of issues on the 

beach relating to litter and mess. The state of the beaches in warmer days is an absolute 

disgrace with the amount of rubbish that is left behind. The bins are often overflowing 

which needs addressing. 

67.  There is more rubbish left on the beach by visitors than dog walkers. We need 

somewhere to exercise our dogs. 

68.  I walk my dogs on the beach most days, I have no problem in not walking them on the 

small portion of the beach where they are not allowed. Some people do not like dogs 

and there should be an area where they can go and use the beaches without fear of 

being molested by dogs, any responsible dog owner should agree with this - being a 

"responsible dog owner" is more than just picking up your dog's poo, it is also about 

good interaction with other people. 

69.  I feel owners should be able to responsibly take their dogs on beaches for part of each 

day perhaps with a restriction between 10:00 to 18:00 on some beaches April to the end 

of September. Owners & dogs need to exercise freely for optimum health. 

70.  Why for goodness sake? There is no-one on the beaches during the winter so exercising 

dogs anywhere just isn't an issue! Besides, during the summer, humans leave more 

waste and rubbish on the beach or near by than any dog! 

71.  When people aren’t bathing there’s no point in restriction. 

Page 194



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

72.  The beaches are rarely used for bathing anyway, and whilst I think it’s appropriate to 

have an area where families can be undisturbed by dogs during the summer months, the 

area wouldn't be used in the winter months, so seems pointless to exclude dogs year 

round. 

73.  Dog excrement is a pollutant all year round. 

74.  These areas are important wintering areas for waders, and this will help to reduce 

disturbance particularly at high tide when they are roosting. What some people don't 

realise is that at high tide these birds cannot feed because their feeding areas are 

covered by the tide, and therefore they are forced to roost over the high tide period. If 

these birds are disturbed whilst roosting this forces them to fly and use up valuable fat 

reserves, and this can be the difference between surviving or not surviving the winter. 

75.  It shouldn’t apply at any time as most dogs and owners are more responsible than gangs 

of teenagers and some day trippers who leave litter everywhere 

76.  Why would you want to bath in the colder months?? England hardly has weather to 

spend a day at the beach to bath and swim. If you was to provide an area like a dogs 

park on the beach that would resolve issues. Dogs love to feel the cold wet sand on their 

feet and the run in the sea. A dog is no different to letting a child play and swim on the 

beach. 

77.  It would be far cheaper to provide a box with poo bags. 

78.  There is not an need for an all year ban when people are not using the beach during the 

colder months for bathing. 

79.  The beaches are poorly utilised even during peak periods. Limiting access out of season 

does not make any sense at all. 

80.  Absolutely ridiculous idea!! We are a nation of animal lovers and it is ludicrous to 

suggest an all year ban. What are families supposed to do if they have a dog...leave it at 

home or worse a hot car!!! 

81.  It is very important that dog owners have access to beaches for exercise for dogs and 

owners. The current ban period is a lengthy one and dogs are only allowed in these 

areas at times of the year when the weather is often so inclement you cannot go to the 

beach anyway. I think the current seasonal ban is more than sufficient. 

82.  It's dead 6 months of the year. Why not allow local dog walkers to enjoy their town’s 

beauty spots. 

83.  Unreliable dog owners. 

Page 195



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

84.  The beaches in question are rarely used in the winter months and as long as dog owners 

pick up after their dogs I see no reason to extend these restrictions. There is far more 

litter and mess left by holidaymakers using the beach in the summer months - including 

human excrement!! 

85.  Why when only locals use it to exercise our dogs? They enjoy off lead time to socialise 

with other dogs. 

86.  Absolutely ridiculous!!!! 

87.  Absolutely not. I already don't agree with banning dogs in summer - it would be 

completely unreasonable to ban them all year round, even when people won't be 

bathing. 

88.  The beaches are only ever used when the sun is shinning, we walk our dogs 365 days a 

year and I feel the dogs have just as much right on the beach. The biggest problem that 

really needs addressing is irresponsible owners that don’t pick up after the dogs, and yes 

that is still a lot and I get so mad ? because it gives us responsible owners a bad name. 

89.  The bathing beaches are empty during the winter months so dogs should be allowed on 

them. 

90.  No, remain seasonal. 

91.  Simple rule. People are not following the current restrictions. 

92.  Out of season the bathing use is minimal. 

93.  Banning dogs from the beaches all year round is simply wrong. In the winter months the 

beaches are not used by anyone apart from people who are exercising their dogs, 

therefore what is the harm in the dogs enjoying the open space and socialising? There is 

no harm. During the winter months dogs should have access to all beaches to play and 

exercise. 

94.  In the winter there are far fewer children using the beach, so I guess it's less of a 

problem. 

95.  Beaches out of season are often quiet and provide excellent exercise areas for dogs. 

Wind and rain may deter bathers but rarely deter dog walkers. 

96.  I think the Council have the current banned period about right. Enforcement is the 

requirement. 

97.  These beaches are normally deserted from October to April except for mainly 

responsible dog walkers. Why penalise them. 

98.  People should be allowed to walk their dogs on the beach when it is quiet, provided they 

keep their dog on a lead if there are other people on the beach. 

Page 196



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

99.  Even during the winter children still go on the beach either from school to do a project 

or of the weather is fine they will go on the beach to play after school 

100.  My granddaughter is frightened of dogs and when last on the beach a large uncontrolled 

dog came charging towards her and nearly knocked her over, as usual with dog owners 

they assumed everybody likes dogs and said it was very friendly and only wanted to play. 

101.  Dogs need exercise and the short section of Fleetwood beach where they are allowed is 

pretty poor for running them with a ball etc. there's only a short section of sand when 

the tide is out and this is often occupied by kite flyers and sand buggies, also families 

setting up for the day when there are ample open spaces on the other side of the beach, 

some sort of notice advising that it is a dog friendly section may be helpful. Opening up 

the other part of the beach out of season is welcomed for a decent walk and exercising 

area, the dog mess does seem to be minimal on the beach. 

102.  Only necessary when very busy during holiday season. 

103.  I walked my dogs on these beaches for at least 30 years and have no objection to avoid 

humans in holiday season and there are very few of them about for the rest of the year 

apart from other dog walkers and anglers braving the elements...so what is the 

problem? No need to change this in my opinion. 

104.  The beach is not used for sitting on during this time, therefore could be walked. 

105.  Most walkers in these areas do so responsibly ... the enforcement at others times would 

cost money, whilst removing council Enforcement officers from far more urgent 

employment and therefore any extra times of the ban expensive as well as unnecessary . 

106.  I think all the beaches on the Fylde Coast should be permanently dog and horse free. 

107.  In winter there is nobody on the beaches apart from dog walkers. Why shouldn’t dog 

owners use all the space to exercise their dogs without causing any problems to anyone 

when there are already so little places we can go? Even in the summer months dogs 

should be allowed on the beach but kept on the lead. This would bring in a lot more 

families to the area that own dogs and therefore bring in a lot more income because at 

the moment families with dogs stay away because of the restrictions. I wish Wyre could 

be more like Cornwall and Cumbria where dogs are allowed in more areas under control 

because it would create a lot more revenue for the area and allow people to enjoy the 

coastline that we have. Of course target those that break the rules but please don’t 

target everyone. Humans leave a lot more mess on the beaches and the nature reserve 

than any dog walker I have ever known. 

Page 197



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

108.  No way! Realistically how many people actually swim in the sea here? It’s far too 

dangerous most of the year. The beach at Marine Hall has gone awful, very pebbly and 

both areas (Cleveleys) have areas of sinking mud. Please do not penalise responsible dog 

walkers by banning dogs on these beaches out of season. Come on who is going to go 

bathing Oct-Mar/April? It’s usually blowing a gale down on the beach and its only us dog 

walkers who are venturing out. 

109.  Find it remarkable that dogs are only excluded for part of the year. It should be none in 

my opinion. But either all the year or none of it. 

110.  To enable people to use the beach with the dogs however the dog should be on lead to 

ensure they are under control. 

 

  

Page 198



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A7 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

1.  There are rarely any families on the beach outside of those times. Tend to be dog walkers 

only. 

2.  As most people don’t even observe the dog ban anyway, I doubt they’d observe the time 

restrictions either. Once again-yes, it needs to be enforced! 

3.  These areas must be provided with suitable life guards during the above times with clear 

signage warning people not to swim outside of the above dates/times. 

4.  I cannot understand the reasons behind banning dogs from the main stretch of Cleveleys 

beach. I have never come across a problem with regards to dogs on the beach, even with 

my two preschool children in tow. I haven’t come across dog muck either. The only 

problems I have come across have been concerning humans, namely rubbish and 

antisocial behaviour. Dogs aren't the problem, people are. 

 

5.  All year application needed. 

6.  Time limits as indicated would be welcomed. 

7.  I think it’s good to have specific areas as there are people who can’t control their dogs, 

not good for families on the beach with small children. 

8.  A time frame would be better but this may cause confusion for some. You would also be 

relying on them being responsible dog owners before 10am visiting the beach and 

picking up after their dog. A blanket ban does work best for the season to avoid 

confusion and excuses. 

9.  It's a small area of what is a long stretch. The exclusion should apply all year. 

10.  This would seem a fair compromise. 

11.  We could then enjoy the evening weather in the summer months in those places. 

12.  Holiday makers are usually using the beach during the day, no need for the ban very 

early morn or later evening. 

13.  Yes as it’s nice to have some areas that are dog free. 

14.  Think that's a great idea. 

15.  The beaches are empty in the early mornings and evenings so dog walkers aren't 

bothering anyone walking at that time. 

16.  Not enough space or places to take 5 dogs as it is. 

Page 199



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

17.  As long as a dog is on lead in the summer season I don’t feel it is a problem. 

18.  No beach ban is necessary seasonal or otherwise, look how much waste is left by humans 

in comparison. 

19.  It is unlikely that the bathing beaches will be used for this purpose during the out of 

season period. 

20.  It would be fair to all. 

21.  I don’t think there should be a ban at all as long as people exercising their dogs are 

responsible. 

22.  Depending on weather the beaches aren't used anyway, so why can't dog walkers enjoy 

them responsibly. 

23.  See previous comment regarding human littering. 

24.  If this is applied all year round then the amount of places to take your dog to exercises is 

beyond limited. It is unfair on those people who don’t have cars but still want to care for 

their pet properly and ensure they get the exercise required. Having a dog is a great help 

with human mental wellbeing and restricting where you can take them will result in 

more lazy people not getting out with their animals or animals being disregarded and 

neglected. It is unfair. 

25.  Compromise. 

26.  I agree that the ban should be for the whole season in totality and not allow dogs in 

those areas during this time. Families still frequent the beach in to the evening so it 

would be unfair to allow dogs on there in the evening or early morning. 

27.  Sensible change. 

28.  We need to bring dog walkers into the area, so this is better than a full ban. 

29.  Before you actually implement this and I actually think you will you should of been 

monitoring the amount of people actually on the beaches at these times. I am guessing in 

good weather and weekend more people would use it from 12pm. 

30.  This would be a perfect compromise. 

31.  As long as fouling is enforced no need to ban at quiet times. 

32.  Yes that seems a much fairer option. 

33.  Why would the council put a time limit on the use of beaches do they not realise some 

people work or are not able to walk their dog at a specific time. 

Page 200



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

34.  Many dog owners (myself included) take our dogs to the beach at 8am to avoid crowds 

and other people and let the dogs run properly and happily. I don't want big crowds 

while my dogs run with their friends any more than these crowds don't want dogs on the 

beach during the day. 

35.  That is a good solution so that everyone should be allowed to enjoy the space all the 

time. 

36.  See answer above! When the council start to fine and patrol the beaches to ban uncaring 

people then I will agree with this. 

37.  Some owners will always allow their dogs to foul and leave it. Also see above regarding 

disturbance to wildlife. 

38.  Some lazy folk don't poop scoop. 

39.  It should be permanent all year round. 

40.  Remove the ban or monitor the beaches first I think the busy human times is usually 12-

4/6. 

41.  Allows people to walk dogs early and at night. This would be a good time to be 

monitored too to ensure people are picking up dog poo. 

42.  Ok with the two bathing beaches but can’t see the logic with 10.00-2000. 

43.  Plenty of other areas to walk a dog. Some areas should always be kept safe and dog free. 

44.  As long as people are picking up their poo. Most people have left the beach by then. 

45.  I support the ban during the summer months. There is a risk of dog fouling if the beaches 

are open to dogs early in the morning before people start to use them for recreational 

and bathing purposes. 

46.  This partly contradicts my above comment however I know that myself and many other 

dog owners do walk our dogs either early morning or later evening which is outside these 

times as these are safer times to walk your dog in summer. I think this would encourage 

owners to wait until later on to walk their dogs which would be helpful for the dogs 

health. 

47.  This seems reasonable to me. 

48.  It should be scrapped altogether. 

49.  Again beach only being used by dog walkers and horse riders. 

Page 201



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

50.  As long as dog walkers pick up dog poo I think they could be allowed to use the bathing 

beaches before 10 and after 20.00 in the summer. Non dog walkers tend to use the 

beach between 10 and 20.00 and I think it is reasonable to make it dog free at these 

times in the summer months as long as we have other safe dog walking areas available 

all year round at all times. 

51.  There’s confusion with the public and visitors, keeping it the same all the time would 

stop this. 

52.  I agree that a time restriction during the ban - if it actually needs to be in place at all 

however 10am till 6pm seems more reasonable and is adopted by other councils down 

south. 

53.  I walk my dogs on the beach most days, I have no problem in not walking them on the 

small portion of the beach where they are not allowed. Some people do not like dogs and 

there should be an area where they can go and use the beaches without fear of being 

molested by dogs, any responsible dog owner should agree with this - being a 

"responsible dog owner" is more than just picking up your dog's poo, it is also about 

good interaction with other people. 

54.  Whilst I don't necessarily agree with this beach ban - hardly anyone uses the beaches to 

sit on these days, it is probably reasonable just in case people do. 

55.  No point. 

56.  I would be happy for the ban to be extended to early in the year to include spring 

time/Easter holidays. I.E beginning/mid March. Most people walking their dogs early in 

the morning (pre 10am) are responsible dog walkers who pick up after them and have 

their animals under control. 

57.  The timing makes no difference. Dog excrement is a pollutant that is not time restricted. 

58.  It shouldn’t apply at any time as most dogs and owners are more responsible than gangs 

of teenagers and some day trippers who leave litter everywhere. 

59.  It shouldn’t apply at any time as most dogs and owners are more responsible than gangs 

of teenagers and some day trippers who leave litter everywhere. 

60.  Most dog walkers/owners take their dogs before and after work which would work well 

with these timings. 

61.  This seems the most reasonable compromise. I would support this but think the timings 

should be 10.00 - 1800 as most holidaymakers go for their evening meal after 6pm and it 

would still give dog owners a chance to go after 6pm for an evening stroll in decent 

weather. I personally would not want to go after 8pm as I would not feel safe with the 

type of people often around at that time. I would go at 6-7pm though. 

Page 202



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

62.  No need for out of season restrictions at all. 

63.  It should be an all year ban. 

64.  If dogs must be banned in this period allowing early/late use us better than nothing. 

65.  In my opinion the beach is big enough for all to enjoy. Some people use beach all year 

round anyway and not seen them punished in any way this year. 

66.  At least we then get a chance to use it. 

67.  This is a good idea. Many early morning dog walkers have to walk past the beach to take 

their dog past the ban zone. People without dogs don't generally tend to be on the beach 

that early... 

68.  Just leave the ban in place during that period so people don’t confuse it. 

69.  There are few if any families on the beach earlier or later, it's called getting ready to go 

out in the morning and eating sleeping in the evening. 

70.  Too confusing - simply keep to dates. 

71.  As most families are off the beach by 17:00, I think the dog ban should be between 10:00 

and 18:00 only. 

72.  Can understand that. 

73.  Again the same as my above comment. It is vital dogs receive proper care and exercise. 

This involves having open spaces in order for them to run and play. 

74.  Because children use these beaches. 

75.  Many dog walkers exercise their dogs early and late. 

76.  No limitation. It's no use turning up to use the Marine Beach only to find the early 

morning dog turds. Better enforcement, more fines please. Keep our public areas clean! 

77.  It should stay as it is. People know the rules. Why change them? 

78.  People who want to walk their dogs on the beach can easily do so early mornings or early 

evenings. 

79.  I think that it should run from 1st April to 30th October. 

80.  Permanent ban. 

81.  Yes, this would be helpful, especially as would be a rarity to see dog wardens out at those 

times of the day it would be welcomed by those that live towards the far end of the 

beach, Please make it more obvious who the authorised officers are with some form of 

visibility. 

Page 203



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please provide comments - Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

82.  This would allow dogs to be walked when it is cooler. 

83.  Better just have a ban in this time period. 

84.  It works...why change. 

85.  No. Dogs I can be walked on the numerous grass areas we have. 

86.  There is no guarantee that dog mess would be washed away overnight. Due to covid-19 I 

have begun taking my children out earlier in the day so that we meet fewer people, 

typically this means we leave the house at 8am and so this change would have negative 

impact for us. 

87.  In winter there is nobody on the beaches apart from dog walkers. Why shouldn’t dog 

owners use all the space to exercise their dogs without causing any problems to anyone 

when there are already so little places we can go? Even in the summer months dogs 

should be allowed on the beach but kept on the lead. This would bring in a lot more 

families to the area that own dogs and therefore bring in a lot more income because at 

the moment families with dogs stay away because of the restrictions. I wish Wyre could 

be more like Cornwall and Cumbria where dogs are allowed in more areas under control 

because it would create a lot more revenue for the area and allow people to enjoy the 

coastline that we have. Of course target those that break the rules but please don’t 

target everyone. Humans leave a lot more mess on the beaches and the nature reserve 

than any dog walker I have ever known. 

88.  How about until 6.30PM? In Jersey they allow dogs on beaches all year round (and I have 

to say the beaches are far nicer and cleaner than ours). Between the hours of 1.30-18.30 

they are allowed on leads only. As a holiday maker there several times this is great. 

Means we can sit on the beach with our family (yes I have two small children) and our 

family pets. I'd walk them prior to 10.30 and let them have a good run. This could work 

here too. Let’s face it, it’s not the dogs that make the mess! Its irresponsible humans who 

don't pick up after them. I walked my dogs during lockdown and noticed how clean the 

sea and beaches were. As soon as it was lifted, the beaches are left littered with rubbish, 

bbq left overs, cans, bottles.... 

89.  Either all or nothing. 

90.  Dependent upon the tide bathers could be using the beach at the early morning and later 

evening times especially as this is a quieter time. 

 

  

Page 204



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A8 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

1.  Limit should be reduced to 2. Try facing 8 Jack Russell terriers whilst out walking and think 

of a suitable riposte to the dog owners comment that " it’s OK they won't bite! 

2.  How many dogs is each person restricted too? 

3.  There should definitely be a limit as to how many dogs people can take on, for safety and 

control purposes. 

4.  I agree with this for the safety of other dogs, owners and families. 

5.  The order should just have dogs under control. Five well behaved dogs are still safer than 

one dog being walked that perhaps one dog that isn't as well behaved. 

6.  This doesn't seem to make much sense. There should be far more specific dog exceeding 

areas in the district and dog loos put into parks and other high use areas. 

7.  Some 'professional' dog walkers in the Wyre area tend to congregate, leading to many 

dogs running off lead at any one time. These are not all 'under control’ at all. At the 

Nature Park they are often in the water with no regard to breeding birds at all, or the 

ground nesting birds. Can areas be fences off at all to let dogs run in a more 'secure' area. 

Do the council not have land that professional walkers could hire at certain times, so long 

as they fulfil certain criteria? 

8.  I think the 4 dog per person should be extended to cover the entire borough. As a 

professional walker and trainer I only ever walk 4 dogs together as its better for the dogs 

and much nicer for the public. The public often comment and state they wished all dog 

walkers would limit numbers to 4. I, myself own 5 dogs and only walk them all together 

when on my private land that is secure and off limits to the public or out in public when 

myself and partner are together so its 5 between the 2 of us. I live in the Ribble Valley 

where the 4 dog rule applies everywhere and it works brilliantly. I work as a walker across 

Wyre and have experienced dog walkers out with packs of dogs. 

9.  I can control my five better than most people control their one. All the incidents I see are 

from someone having just one dog charging around the place. 

10.  If people follow rules and guidelines and can control the dogs in their care don't see it 

being an issue. I see people with several dogs which are better behaved than single dogs. 

11.  My dog has a walker and I feel that if you limit the dogs to 4, she will lose much of her 

business. The dogs are very we behaved together and are all small. 

12.  Too restricted, as someone who takes part in dog sports, I know numerous households 

with many dogs. 

Page 205



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

13.  Caution must be excised here. It has the potential to limit the earnings and capacity for 

dog walkers to use the area. These people are mostly self-employed and have already 

suffered a significant loss due to the current pandemic. Assuming they are responsible and 

have the dogs under control, the limit could be extended. There also needs to be some 

clarity: could two walkers exercise 8 dogs, for example? 

14.  It should be restricted to no more than two dogs. It must be very difficult to control more 

and indeed more importantly to clean up after them. 

15.  Several people own multiple dogs others are earning a living walking dogs and supplying a 

necessary service which has been invaluable to many especially under Covid restrictions 

the shielded vulnerable and not forgetting the key workers. 

16.  Multiple dog owners are usually more experienced and have better control of their dogs. I 

know people in the dog sports community who very easily walk 10 at once. Numbers are 

not a way to improve responsible dog ownership. Plus people who already have multiple 

dogs might physically not be able to split walks, the extra time required might be an issue 

and you then risk issues with those dogs left behind. 

17.  As already stated dog owners seem to allow their dogs free reign and if they don't stay 

together then they can't possibly watch to see where they are fouling. 

18.  4 should be max per person to accommodate dog walkers. 

19.  Nobody can control more than 4 dogs whether they are yours or you are a dog walker and 

I agree with that rule. 

20.  It would seem to me a question more of what type, size and nature of the dogs. As well as 

the attitude of the person escorting the dogs, this last point being the most important. 

21.  My dog walker does an amazing job with all of the dogs in her care. With these restrictions 

put into place, her business would be put in jeopardy (at a time when people are 

struggling financially and we should be doing everything possible to support small 

businesses). Without a dog walker, my dogs would be alone in the house for hours on end 

whilst I go to work, again is neglectful and unfair- if you put this into place, it will hugely 

impact on dogs like my own being cared for by dog walkers. 

22.  I know many people who have multiple dogs who cannot take multiple trips to exercise 

their dogs. Plus it may cause distress for some to be left alone in this circumstance. It 

would also affect dog walker and their business. 

23.  We have a dog walker and it would not be fair on her to impose these restrictions we 

should be helping these small business. 

24.  I have 5 dogs. Where am I supposed to exercise them if they are banned from 

everywhere? People make the mess and litter everywhere not dogs. 

Page 206



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

25.  The number of dogs someone has doesn’t appear to correlate with their ability to control 

their animals. 

26.  No more than two dogs, both on leads in any public area. 

27.  A person has to be able to be in control of dogs in a public place or we have potentially 

hazardous scenarios. If a dog decides to lurch and is a member of a large “pack” of dogs, 

albeit on leads, one person may be unable to control the situation. 

28.  Dog walkers are a big nuisance & get around the 4 dog rule by taking a friend with them. 

I've often seen more than 10 dogs running around out of control with ropes tied to their 

collars. When the dog walker has to chase after one dog, the others are out of control. 

Dog walkers should not let dogs run free in public places. I have an assistance dog & he's 

been bothered lots of times, even attacked by dogs not controlled by their professional 

walkers. It stops me going to places they frequent. 

29.  This is lots of people business and also what if someone owns more than this? Two trips? 

No. 

30.  Yes I actually think you can only safely manage to walk 2 dogs per person. 

31.  The number of dogs is not an indicator of responsibility, multi dog homes are more likely 

to be engaged with training or dog activities. Other orders already cover dogs out of 

control. 

32.  Someone with five small dogs who are gentle and cause no problems regularly walks them 

at Fleetwood nature reserve. They would be unfairly adversely affected when a single dog 

can cause issues. The fact that there is a plan to require dogs to be put on lead if 

requested is in itself enough. 

33.  No more than 4 dogs with one person is reasonable. 

34.  Four each is too many. Maximum should be two. 

35.  I know a responsible dog owner who has five small dogs they are well behaved, why 

should they be penalised because one or two irresponsible dog owners who don't have 

control of one dog. 

36.  If you have more than one dog then you know your dogs and they know you! What is the 

difference between one person with four dogs behaving and having a nice time and 

someone having 5 children out of control leaving litter everywhere and making so much 

noise it’s making everyone around them unhappy are you going to tell them they can only 

have 2 children with them? I think not. My dog is my child and is better behaved then 

most children and adults I know. 

Page 207



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

37.  I do think professional dog owners now come in pairs so that they are allowed to exercise 

8 dogs in total and I do feel this is inappropriate. Maybe restrict this to no more than 4 

dogs per group! 

38.  Have you noticed that the no dog signs are always vandalised and that one person cannot 

control so many dogs that they are unfamiliar with. 

39.  I think in terms of controlling dogs on the beach, a maximum of two dogs free of the lead, 

but if dogs are on a lead with owners then three dogs. 

40.  There should be a restriction. Dogs can be very dangerous. 

41.  There should be no more than 4 dogs per person. Sometimes I feel that 4 is too many. 

Personally I don't think one person can fully supervise more than two dogs at a time. 

42.  Should be reduced to three. 

43.  I think that 2 dogs should be the limit. My dog was recently attacked nearby my home 

(Wyre Council were a brilliant help) and the owner had 2 dogs on leads and 1 dog off the 

lead which attacked my dog. He was unable to grasp the lead on the third dog due to not 

having enough hands. I feel that this situation may have been slightly different should 

there have only been 2 dogs. Dogs can pull a lot and even the strength of 1 dog is enough 

to be uncontrolled by an adult during a stressful incident. 

44.  I think it is a reasonable restriction. One person with 4 dogs already sounds hard work. 

45.  Providing the person is in control of their dogs then the number is not an issue. Stop 

playing big brother and trust people to act responsibly. 

46.  I understand some professional dog walkers do exercise more than 4 dogs at a time and 

are more than capable of controlling their charges. Maybe ask them to obtain a licence to 

exercise 4 or more with some sort of test to show they are proficient. That said, some 

members of the public own more than 4 dogs as pets and would ideally like to exercise 

them all at the same time. At the end of the day it only take one rogue dog to cause 

trouble to not sure what the rationale behind 4 comes from. 

47.  Should be limited to 3 dogs. 

48.  I think 4 dogs is too many. I have watched walkers with 4, and very often they can't watch 

them all properly or talking to other walkers and the dogs are fouling unnoticed. 

49.  Should be limited to how many can be exercised as they can not safely be controlled. 

Page 208



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

50.  In the main I think a maximum of 4 is fine. However there are some dog walkers who have 

excellent control over 5 or 6 small dogs and some who don't. Perhaps individuals could 

apply for a licence to take out more and if they can justify how they will keep control and 

pick up poo then in exceptional cases this might be granted. 

51.  No one can control 6 dogs at a time or manage to pick up that amount of excrement 

whilst holding onto all those animals. No one should be walking more than 2 dogs. 

52.  I would like to know what the statistics are in terms of the reported incidents involving 

groups of dogs as a pose to individual dogs. As a professional dog walker, we are often 

frowned upon for having a group of dogs however I can honestly say that in my 3 years of 

walking dogs my groups of dogs have never once caused an issue. For me, the issue lies 

with individual dog owners who have no control over their dogs or have no recall. The 

nature reserve I believe is saturated currently due to the fact that it is the only place in 

Wyre where more than 4 dogs can be walked. There are many pet dog owners who have 

multi dog households and this places a huge restriction on them being able to exercise 

their dogs together. When out walking, my groups of dogs are not a 'pack,' they do not 

hold this mentality, they are not wolves in the wild. They are a group of dogs who have 

become friends and will happily play with other dogs. I believe the wider issue relates to 

laws that are already in place, that are not adhered to, this being that dogs should be 

under control at all times. I appreciate that the question is asked as to how can 1 person 

control 6 dogs. My answer to that is training. All of my dogs will return to me on the cue of 

just 1 word and this is because they have been trained. I don't believe there is a need for a 

further restriction on the amount of dogs that can be walked by one person as there is 

already a clear law in place that all dogs must be kept under control at all times. I believe 

that it would be far more beneficial to have measures in place to address the issue of dogs 

who are not under control by way of fines, anti social behaviour orders and requirements 

to undertake relevant training with the dogs to address the specific issue rather than 

penalising those who are responsible. The majority of issues I have encountered have 

related to individual dog owners, those who's dogs have no recall and will approach any 

dog despite them being on lead, those who allow aggressive dogs off lead and have no 

regard for the safety of others. I genuinely believe that by easing the restrictions of the 

number of dogs walked, that this will enable the nature reserve to become less saturated 

and by imposing appropriate orders on irresponsible dog owners the real issues will be 

addressed. The majority of other local councils do not feel the need for a 4 dog limit and 

this has been successfully managed. 

53.  Should be less "professional" dog walkers often exercise in groups larger than are allowed 

at the moment, they are sometimes not familiar with the animals they are with the dogs 

are often not properly in control and it is difficult for the walkers to see a) where all the 

dogs are pooing b) pick up said poo whilst trying to control several dogs. The result is that 

poo gets left, giving dog owners a bad name. 

Page 209



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

54.  I have 9 dogs and have had that number since before this came into effect. They are my 

own pet dogs and I make sure I always pick up after them. If I meet anyone on a walk I 

keep out of their way or put them on the lead if I cannot get off the path and I do not let 

them off anywhere where they are not meant to be. There are few enough places anyway 

to let dogs off the lead in the local area any now you are proposing to restrict them 

further. I was hoping this would not be extended so I can start walking my dogs together. I 

understand not allowing dog walkers to not walk large groups of dogs but it does penalise 

people who have a large number of pet dogs as well. I have my dogs as I do sports with 

them as my hobby so it is a pain to have to do 3 walks when I could do 1. 

55.  Should only be applied to 'commercial' dog walkers. 

56.  Nobody can safely have charge of several dogs! How on earth can you pick up dog mess 

while holding on to several dogs! 

57.  Most of these dog walkers are insured to walk 6 dogs per person why impose more 

restrictions, if these are made to lower this they will have to have more people working 

with them which I would imagine most can’t afford to pay others. 

58.  I feel the majority of concern about dogs' behaviour using stems from dog walkers having 

too many dogs off the lead at the same time. 

59.  I feel person should be able to exercise as many dogs as they can control. Dog wardens 

are there to ensure that dogs are under control and may sanction people who are unable 

to manage their dogs. 

60.  One person 4 dogs seems reasonable although I know some able bodied people would be 

quite capable of handling more. My concerns are around commercial dog walkers with 

vans who often have 8 or 9 dogs. I have seen at Fleetwood Marsh a Blackpool dog walking 

van with 9 dogs managed only by one adult and one child! When 9 dogs come at my two 

and me on my walking stick it can be intimidating even if they are being friendly. If they 

are not friendly and one person is trying to control them it is a nightmare. 

61.  Dog walking companies often have multiple dogs and I have never seen that as a problem. 

62.  Never seen more than 4 dogs being walked....and I am in my 60s!!!! 

63.  I feel that three dogs per person any more you are in the realm of a pack, also only if they 

are all opened by that person. I have a few run-ins with a dog walker in Fleetwood who 

walks a number of dogs with not a lot of control, ALL OFF LEAD and when asked to put 

them on lead because they are attacking my dog she becomes very aggressive and 

abusive. So much so that I no longer go to Jamison Road because of her. 

64.  I don’t believe that ANYONE should walk more than 4 dogs at once. And that professional 

dog walkers should only walk on private land as they do not know the dogs they are 

walking well enough. 

Page 210



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

65.  I intend to have 2/3 dogs which is manageable, I have encountered dog walkers with 

excess of 8 dogs which I found intimidating and could be dangerous for families/young 

children. 

66.  I feel the council is discriminating against dog owners. If the council wishes to regulate 

professional dog walkers, something I wholeheartedly agree with, then this is not the way 

to do this. 

67.  Given people are walking more, a reduction in the number of dogs should be applied. 

Also, the number of dogs in one party. I came across 4 people with 13 dogs walking on a 

pavement. 3 dogs per person, 2 dogs per person in party size 2 or more. 

68.  I think 4 is too many for one person. 

69.  4 is very strict compared to other places I must admit. Professional Dog walkers have a 

business to run, or please provide an area for them? 

70.  Reduce the number from 4 to 2. 

71.  I think that a maximum of two dogs per person is quite enough. 

72.  Maximum of 2 dogs per person. 

73.  Can any person other than those trained to do so really keep more than two dogs under 

proper safe control? I feel this would be very unusual even considering a mixture of dogs 

on and off leads so that no more than two are off at any one time. 

74.  I think 2 dogs per person is adequate. The problems arise when businesses looking after 

dogs take the whole lot out in large numbers. 

75.  It's a good idea. 

Page 211



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

76.  As a professional dog walker I am insured to walk six dogs at one time. From years of 

experience I know I can control six dogs a lot better than one person walking just one dog 

as I have seen many times that person is too busy on the phone or talking to someone 

else while their dog is running off into the distance and fouling without the owner either 

noticing or refusing to walk over and pick up after it. These are the people that should be 

given fines, especially the weekend walkers. The head ranger from Lancashire county 

council has seen me at Fleetwood nature reserve several times in charge of six dogs and 

every time they have been under control and I have picked up after each and every one of 

them. This is very easy to do because they are kept under control. When one dog fouls I’ll 

pick up and allow it off the lead and so on until all six are off lead - you know your dogs 

and which ones, first so to say it’s impossible to pick up after 6 simply isn’t true. I have 

offered for a council member to join me on a walk to see exactly how this is done and how 

under control the dogs are. If insurance companies deem it safe for one person to walk six 

dogs how can a council or one man decide it isn’t? Many of the dogs I walk belong to 

elderly or disabled people who physically cannot walk their dogs. If this new rule of four 

dogs is brought in there is a very strong possibility that I may have to close my business 

because there isn’t enough hours in the day to fit in another walk. The thought of having 

to tell my clients that I cannot walk their dog anymore after years of doing so it’s 

unthinkable. If this were to happen then more people would start opening up dog walking 

business thinking it’s an easy job which it isn’t and as I have witnessed especially since 

lockdown these people are not insured so any dog fights or accidents that may happen on 

the walks will not be covered. Also there are people who own five dogs who have limited 

mobility and simply cannot do more than one walk a day. How are they meant to manage 

walking their dogs if they cannot take them all together? If dogs are left at home this will 

create psychological problems for the dogs and could lead to lots of rehoming and 

depression in owners. Blackpool Council tried to introduce a four dog max rule in 2018. 

After discussions with them and letters from vets and other animal agencies regarding a 

dog’s health and well being if walks were taken away from them plus the benefits of 

owning a dog to people already suffering with issues they saw fit to not introduce the rule. 

I hope Wyre and Lancashire Council can see the issues raised and decide against it too. 

77.  Not really - 4 is enough for anyone. 

78.  Either all or nothing. 

79.  Dependent upon the tide bathers could be using the beach at the early morning and later 

evening times especially as this is a quieter time. 

 

  

Page 212



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A9 

 Please detail your concerns below - Please detail your concerns below. 

1.  There needs to be an authorised person or persons monitoring dog fouling as there seems 

to be a huge problem with people not picking up after their animals. 

2.  All responsible dog owners should never walk their dog without poop bags! Simple. 

3.  What if I go out with my dogs and pick up after them but then lose my bags or run out and 

one of them had eaten a dodgy burger and gets caught short? Instead of going out with 

fines go out with poo bags! 

4.  It might be a case where by a dog owner has just exhausted his supply of soil bags and is 

making their way home, to replenish supplies, for another walk. 

5.  Yes as sometimes it would appear unfair if you had just used your last bag for disposal. If 

you can demonstrate that you have done this (by showing the empty roll in the holder) 

then it should be accepted that you are not irresponsible. I appreciate however, this could 

always be open to abuse. 

6.  There is an increasing incidence of dog fouling around our area, sadly a minority but 

increasing number, of owners choose not to pick up. 

7.  Although you come out with enough bags sometimes you can be caught short. 

8.  Yes as a dog owner you need to take responsibility for you actions and your dog because 

they cannot pick up themselves! 

9.  All dog owners should carry poo bags and pick up. And the rangers should enforce it which 

they don’t 

10.  Slightly - I think you should be allowed a warning before a fine. 

11.  I completely agree with this!! All dog owners I know have poo bags in every place possible 

- the car, every jacket pocket, in every bag. There has been plenty of times where my dog 

has been to the toilet early on in the walk and then done it another 2/3 times during a 

longer walk so it could always happen. This enforcement should make people think twice 

about packing enough poo bags when making a journey with a dog. 

12.  Whilst the majority of responsible dog owners carry poo bags, occasionally they might 

forget. The authorised officer should provide a bag. 

13.  Doggie bags and more bins (regularly emptied) should be supplied on all parks. Picking up 

should be encouraged at the time but leeway given (or a bag provided) for genuine cases. 

Enforcement/fines should only be applied if owner is non co-operative or abusive. Dog 

owners provide a (mostly) friendly atmosphere to an area and typically do not throw 

around beer bottles (sometimes broken), plastic bottles and sweep/sandwich wrappers on 

Page 213



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

the ground rather than a bin (and many even pick up these items after they have been 

disposed of by others especially when they can prove dangerous to animals and wildlife). 

14.  Great idea. Enforce it properly. 

15.  I always prefer to have several poo bags on me during walkies but once or twice, the 

weather, the wild wind has caught me out and ripped them from my grasp...so I hope I 

never get in the position to be fined and would be offended if an officer didn't believe my 

explanation...this situation. 

 

  

Page 214



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 
A10 

 Please tell us why not 

1.  Everything else is increasing, therefore this should too. There is absolutely no reason 

why somebody shouldn't be a responsible dog owner. I'm not sure what the percentage 

increases there have been to services and costs etc, but an increase to the fine, falling in 

line with other increases, cannot be argued against. 

2.  It's too much. 

3.  I think it should be higher as not enough people respect it. 

4.  Too expensive and outside agency workers are too quick to fine innocent people. 

5.  Needs to be higher and rigorously enforced. 

6.  Should not be such a high figure. 

7.  Raise it but let dogs have access all year round. 

8.  The current rules do not appear to deter; perhaps a penalty increase (to fund additional 

enforcement officers?) would help. 

9.  Increase it to make it punitive. 

10.  Even the most well behaved dog will occasionally wander off when they see a bush or 

another dog they want to sniff or play with. Currently Cleveleys and Fleetwood do not 

offer a dog walking only park, and it is unfair to subject them to travelling out of their 

own postcode area and potentially paying to rent fields. The beach and nature reserve 

are a home to these dogs and their owners. They should not be charged £100 for a dog 

not knowing where this human-enforced boundary begins and ends. For them they have 

always been allowed to run where they like, they may not understand that this has now 

changed. 

11.  Far too low. 

12.  It should be much more as a deterrent. 

13.  Should be higher. It’s absolutely disgusting the amount of dog dirt left on foot paths. 

14.  Not a big enough find it does not deter a certain percentage of dog owners. 

15.  Far too much might be ok in affluent Poulton but certainly not Fleetwood it’s enough to 

cripple families. 

16.  I do feel like £100 is too much, especially if it was an accident. Perhaps a strong 

warning/small fine for the first offence and then a larger fine for second offences and 

onwards. 

17.  It’s too much £50 is plenty. 

Page 215



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please tell us why not 

18.  Think it should be 10 pounds people are struggling for money these days 

19.  I agree to the fixed penalty but the officers should ask people first. Lots of comments by 

people that they are followed by the company you use, that they deceive people and 

they should also be asked to pick up poo or rubbish before being fined. Aggressive and 

threatening behaviour from these individuals isn’t acceptable. 

20.  Too high. Should be reduced. 

21.  Increase the fine and enforce it. 

22.  It should be increased and more officers about to enforce the penalty. The footpaths 

around Trunnah road, Lawsons Road, Stanah are all covered in dog faeces. 

23.  Should be much higher. 

24.  If dog owners are given a fixed penalty then so should those who choose to exercise 

their horses on the beach and anywhere. It’s still pop and needs to be picked up. 

25.  I feel it should be reduced to an affordable amount. The fixed penalty should be to deter 

and not as a revenue stream 

26.  For persistent offenders yes but not for an oversight. 

27.  It's too expensive. I think £75 is still a deterrent the main thing is that officers enforce it. 

28.  First warning should be given. Names taken letter sent. 

29.  The fine should be higher ie £500 

30.  If as I stated earlier these changes are not sufficiently communicated and there are no 

notices up at the nature reserve for instance, people could come out owing several 

hundred pounds in fines through no fault of their own. Owning a dog is not cheap 

anyway with food, vets and insurance. People are used to bringing their dogs so just 

putting up a notice on the board would not be sufficient. There needs to be large notices 

throughout advising these changes so that people cannot miss them. 

31.  Again a licence to print money...people can make mistakes...let's be tolerant and live and 

let live. Obviously for serial offenders yes. 

32.  I believe £25 would be fairer unless again recipient was being offensive. If non-pick up 

was evident within a 30 minute window then further fines could be legislated. 

33.  I hope your officers have enough common sense to judge who is a genuine poo bag 

carrying dog owner compared to the few who don't give a damn... 

34.  Think it should be higher. 

Page 216



Appendix 1 - Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the offence relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in 

control of a dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin? 
 

 Please tell us why not 

35.  Too high. Again as a regular dog walker who does clean up after my two I am saddened 

by the amount of dog mess left on the beaches, paths etc. The enforcement officers 

need to go out first thing in the morning/last thing evening. Since they have started I 

think I have only ever seem then 2/3 times! Once in Fleetwood Park and once at the 

Sunken Car park. 

36.  Excessive amount. Should be a warning first and then increase for re-offenses. 

37.  It should be higher to take into account the costs of managing the orders and to 

encourage owners to take the penalty seriously. 

 

Page 217



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

 
 

Dog control – Wyre Public spaces Protection Order consultation 
2020 
 

1. First please tell us if: (please select one answer only) 

 

 You currently own or care for a dog  

 You operate a business, care for/walk other people’s dogs. You might also 

own dogs 
 

 

 You have recently owned or cared for a dog (in the past year  

 You have previously owned or cared for a dog at some point  

 You have never owned or cared for a dog  

  

2. If you currently own a dog/s, how many do you own? 

 

 

   

For more details on each element of the Order, you can view the Public Space 

Protection Orders (PSPO’s) on the council website or you can request a copy via 01253 

891000 if there isn’t one included with this questionnaire 

 

  

3 Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the offence 
relating to dogs fouling on land, and, the requirements of anyone in control of a 

dog/s to pick up the poo and put it in a bin?(please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

 

 

3a If you selected Yes please details your concerns below 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 218

https://www.wyre.gov.uk/downloads/file/4291/pspo_dogs_order_2017
https://www.wyre.gov.uk/downloads/file/4291/pspo_dogs_order_2017
https://www.wyre.gov.uk/downloads/file/4291/pspo_dogs_order_2017


Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

 

4. Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order in 
relation to the requirement to put dogs on leads by direction from an 

authorised officer?   (please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

4a If you selected Yes please detail your concerns below: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

5. Do you have you any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the 

order regarding the requirement to have dogs on leads in certain areas? 

(please select one answer) 

 
 Yes         No    

 

  

5a If you selected Yes please detail your concerns below 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1
 D

o
g co

n
tro

l - W
yre's P

u
b

lic Sp
ace P

ro
te

ctio
n

 O
rd

er 

co
n

su
ltatio

n
 2

0
2

0
 

  

1
 D

o
g co

n
tro

l - W
yre's P

u
b

lic Sp
ace P

ro
te

ctio
n

 O
rd

er 

co
n

su
ltatio

n
 2

0
2

0
 

  

Page 219



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

Following the last round of consultation, dogs were allowed in the council 

cemeteries, with a requirement to be on a lead at all times. 

 
These are not formal exercise areas, but have recently appeared to be used as 

such, with an increase in reports of owners not picking up after their dog, causing 

distress to visitors and complaints. 

  

6. Should dogs be banned from the cemeteries? (please select one answer) 
 

 Yes         No    

 

  

6a If you selected Yes please detail your concerns below 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

7. 

 

Do you have any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the order in 
relation to dog exclusion areas? 

 

Yes                                                                                        No  

 

7a If you selected Yes please detail your concerns below 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

Page 220



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

Marked sports pitches, currently fall under the exclusion, however, many of these 

sites are not in use all of the time. When they are not being used for organised 

activity, unfenced pitches are reportedly being used for exercising dogs. 

 
The practice of other authorities is that the exclusion of dogs on unfenced marked 
pitches applies only when an organised activity is taking place. 
 

8. Do you agree with this proposed change? There will still be a requirement 

for people to pick up after their dogs and further signage will make this 

clear.   (please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 
 

8 a Please provide any comments/reasons below. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
To comment on the following two questions, please refer to the Cleveleys and 
Fleetwood bathing beach areas which should accompany this questionnaire. 

 
9. Do you think the ban on the two bathing beaches (approx 1.4km in total) 

should be applied all year round? (please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

9a Please provide any comments/reasons below. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1
 D

o
g co

n
tro

l - W
yre's P

u
b

lic Sp
ace P

ro
te

ctio
n

 O
rd

er 

co
n

su
ltatio

n
 2

0
2

0
 

  

  

Page 221



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

10. Do you think the ban on the two bathing beaches should remain 

seasonal (1 May to 30 September) but be limited to 10:00-20:00? 

(please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

10a Please provide any comments/reasons below. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

11. Have you any comments or concerns regarding the extension of the 

order that restricts the number of dogs one person can exercise at a 

time in certain areas? (please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

11a Please detail any comments/concerns below. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

Page 222



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

12. Do you have comments or concerns regarding the extension of 

the order, where it is an offence to not have the means to pick 

up after the dog under your control when asked by an 

authorised officer?  (please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

12a Please detail your concerns below. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

13. Do you agree with the level of the Fixed Penalty for non-compliance 

remaining at £100?  (please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

  

13a Please tell us why not 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

Page 223



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

Following numerous complaints of dogs out of control on Fleetwood Nature 

Park, Jameson Road, and due to the negative effect on wildlife, Lancashire 

County Council have requested the following: 
 
 

14. Map 001: Proposed area for dog exclusion 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14. That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the map 001 

(above) at all times 

 

 b) Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
(please select one answer) 
 

 Yes         No    

 

 b) Please provide comments 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 224



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

15. Map 002: Proposed area for dog on lead at all 

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15. That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (see Map 002 above). 

 
 a) Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

(please select one answer) 

 
 Yes         No    

 

  

 b) Please provide comments 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

  

Page 225



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

16. Map 003: Proposed area for maximum number of 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

16. That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person is applied 

across the whole site (see Map 003 above). 

 
 (a) Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

(please select one answer) 

 
 Yes         No    

 

 (b) Please provide comments 

  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 226



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  
 

17. Map 004/005: Proposed area for failure to pick up dog faeces and proposed 

area for means for pick up 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17. That there will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have the means to pick 

foul across that whole site (map 004 /005 above). 

 

a) Do you agree with the proposed dog control measures at the nature 
park? (please select one answer) 

 
 Yes         No    

 

 a) Please provide comments 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

1
 D

o
g co

n
tro

l - W
yre's P

u
b

lic Sp
ace P

ro
te

ctio
n

 O
rd

er 

co
n

su
ltatio

n
 2

0
2

0
 

  

Page 227



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

18. Map 006: Proposed area for dogs on a lead at the request of an authorised 

officer 

 

 
 
19. That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006 

above). 

 
 a) Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

(please select one answer) 

 

 Yes         No    

 

 b) Please provide comments 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Page 228



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

About you 

To make sure we better understand the views of people using council services in Wyre, we 

would like to know a few details about you. This will help us know whether concerns and 

priorities differ between different groups of people. 

 
Please note this information will only be used for statistical purposes to see how views 

differ. No information will be released that would allow the identification of any individual 

 
This question must be completed. 
Have you completed this questionnaire on behalf of: (please select one answer) 
 

 A community group .  

   

 A parish / town council  

   

 Yourself   

  

 A business  

 

 Other  

 

Other: please say who you have responded on behalf of  

 

 

 

 

 

Please tell us your postcode. This will help us to identify which areas of the borough are 

having the most issues. 

 

 
 

If you are happy for us to contact you in future, please enter the rest of your contact details 
below. 

 
Your name 

 

 

 
 

Contact number 

 

 

 

 

Contact email 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 229



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

Postal address if you don’t have email access. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gender 

 

 Male   

   

 Female  

  

 Prefer not to say  

 
 

Age group 

 

 16-24  

  

 25-34  

   

 35-44  

   

 45-54  

   

 55-64  

   

 65-74  

   

 75+  

   

Do you consider yourself to have a long term illness or disability that limits 

your daily activities? 

(please select one answer) 

 

 Yes     No      Prefer not to say        

 

  

 Thank you for your time.              

  

 
Please return this survey to Wyre Council                                    :  
            
Civic Centre                               Marine Hall,    Garstang TIC 
Breck Road             OR             The Esplanade        OR                  Unit 1, Cherestanc Sq.                      
Poulton-Le-Fylde                       Fleetwood                                       Garstang 
Lancashire                                 Lancashire     Lancashire 
FY6 7PU                                    FY7 6HF    PR3 1EF 

   

 

Page 230



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

 

CATTERALL PARISH COUNCIL 
 

Gillian Benson, 

Clerk to the Parish Council, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

07 August 2020 

 

Ruth Hunter, 

Head of Public Realm and Environmental Sustainability, 

Wyre Council  

Civic Centre, 

Poulton 

 

  

Page 231



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

  

Page 232



Appendix 16 – Survey Questionnaire (hard copy, no filter rules)  

Wyre Council – 3 Year Review of Public Spaces Protection Orders - Control of Dogs 

and Dog Fouling 

 

Dear Ruth, 

 

Please refer to the attached map. 

 

The Queen Elizabeth II Playing Field, Catterall belongs to the Parish Council, who fully 

support the present Dogs must be on leads at all times for users. 

 

Catterall Parish Council has recently implemented a number of improvements to the playing 

field namely; 

Wheeled Play Area, 

Older Children’s Play Area, 

Reading / Quiet Area, 

Picnic Area, 

Since the previous PSPOs were confirmed. 

The football pitch also needs inclusion.  Local teams who hire the pitch are having to scour 

the pitch for dog fouling before every match to protect their young players.  Indeed it needs 

clearing twice for the marking out and the games. 

 

The Parish Council ask that these areas are now included in the no dogs at any time 

legislation for the protection and cleanliness of those younger visitors and parents using 

these areas. 

 

 

The Parish Council thanks you for your assistance in this matter 

 

Yours Sincerely, 

 

Gillian Benson 

Clerk to the Parish Council  

 
 

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



Dog control Public Space Protection Order Summary Report 2020 

Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve 
Following numerous complaints of dogs out of control on Fleetwood Nature Park, Jameson Road, and due 

to the negative effect on wildlife, Lancashire County Council requested the following questions to be 

added to the consultation. Please see Section 1 for methodology and background. 

 

Respondents were asked… 
 
That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the map 001 at all times. 
Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

 
59.46 % (n=110) of respondents did not agree with the 

proposed measure. All respondents were invited to 

comment on the proposal and 119 people did (61.03%). 

The responses that supported the proposal were mainly 

based around the protection of wildlife, with some 

referring to issues pertaining to dog walkers. 

The majority of comments were generally against the 

proposal to exclude dogs from the area, suggesting that 

responsible owners would be penalised due to a minority of those with no control over their dogs. 

There were comments around the lack of open spaces that dogs have to run, and how the health 

and wellbeing of dogs and their owners would be affected if this were to be an exclusion area. Some 

suggested that if evidence was generated that wildlife has been affected by dogs then, for example, 

would an ‘on lead’ or seasonal order be an option.  The lagoons were often referred to as a place 

that dogs can cool off. The full list of comments can be found in appendix 11. 

 As a major dog walking area- especially during summer months when beaches are not 
permitted, where else do you expect people to go? The ponds can be used for dogs to cool 
off. Completely unnecessary. We should be dog friendly. 

 Why should they be excluded from the water? I have never been to Fleetwood and observed 
any out of control dog, the only thing I have seen is lots of people and dogs having a nice 
time at a beautiful place. It will be really sad if I can’t take my dogs as they love it there and 
so do I. 

 It’s completely unfair to responsible dog owners. The areas we can walk our dogs are getter 
fewer and fewer. Why don’t you do something about the out of control dogs instead. 
Address the problem, don’t penalise everyone else instead. 

 This imposes restrictions on people with reduced mobility. Rather make this an on leads area 

 No the owners I have seen are responsible. They are no more of a danger to other wildlife 
than the foxes that are seen on the site of an evening  

 I understand the need to protect wildlife but how about the lagoon to the left of the bridge 
being dog free and the right side have a date restriction. 

 Wildlife is under increasing pressure from housing and pollution. Any measures to assist it - 
this is, after all, primarily a nature reserve, not a dog-exercise park - is to be desired. 

 Except the area should be expanded to include the entire site. Skylarks formerly nested in 
the long grass in the north and east sections but now they cannot owing to relentless 

41%
59%

Yes

No

Page 235



distance from dogs. The eastern pool is badly disturbed by dogs, today (27-07-20) a dog 
owner was throwing sticks and balls into the water for two dogs causing serious disturbance 
to the birds on there. At the very least dogs should be excluded from all the ponds and their 
banks. Flightless waterbird young are at serious risk from dogs. Ground nesting birds cannot 
breed where dogs run free 

 No dogs should be allowed in the water but signage regarding the reasons why and 
information about the bird species will be required to explain why 

 I am not sure from the description whether dog owners would be able to utilise the curved 
North Eastern path which leads to the bridge. If this bridge and path is in the exclusion zone I 
do not agree. Alternatively, I am happy if it is exclusion is within the boundary as these areas 
should be able to be safe for nesting birds, but the path still available to dog walkers. 

 If it causing damage to the wild life, it is a good idea to exclude dogs from some areas 

 
Respondents were asked… 

That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do you agree with the 

proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

Similar to the previous question, there was a higher 

percentage of respondents (n=107, 58.79%) that 

were against the proposal to have dogs on leads in 

the areas marked on the map. 

96 respondents went on to leave comments. Just 

under half of these respondents were against the 

proposal and, as is a common thread running across a 

number of responses, the responsible dog owners 

found it restrictive and unfair to them. A number of 

comments questioned how it would be enforced, and especially if dogs had crossed the boundary by 

mistake. Around a third of the comments were in support of the proposal and there were a number 

of those that suggested various options, for example a seasonal order, or having a fenced off areas 

for dogs off lead to go. 

The full list of comments can be viewed in appendix 12. 

 This is one of the very few places in Fleetwood where dogs can run off lead. Obviously dogs 
should be well behaved and under control like they should be everywhere. 

 As in my previous comments I do not think there is a need to put all dogs on a lead all the 
time. If the guidance is clearly posted about keeping dogs under control and disposing of all 
poo and there is an enforcement officer doing spot checks and a clear complaints procedure 
for the public, then leave it as it is. 

 The little bit near the bridge is the only accessible bit to the pond for dogs where they can 
swim and cool down, forcing owners to walk past the pond with the dog on the lead is 
torture for a warm dog that’s just been on a walk and just wants a drink and cool down but 
thinks it’s being punished by being pulled away on a lead. 

 At least some of the grassland in the northern and eastern sections should be fenced to 
exclude dogs to allow skylarks to nest here again. 

 Dogs should be kept on a lead through the entire reserve during breeding seasons for birds 
that live on the reserve. 

41%
59%

Yes

No

Page 236



 The council should have the courage to make the whole of Fleetwood Marsh a dog exclusion 
zone. 

 I have no problem with dogs being on lead on the bridge across the pond/lagoon but don't 
understand why they would be on lead on the path which goes round. 

 If they are on a lead they will not disturb the wildlife 

 Should there be an issue over safety to the dog or owner then I would have no objection to 
being asked to put dogs on a lead. 

 This area of the site suffers disproportionately from dog issues, especially "mess" and dogs 
interfering with other visitors (jumping up, aggressive behaviour etc) and being on a lead 
would help resolve this. 

 
Respondents were asked… 

That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person is applied across the whole 

site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

The majority of respondents (n=120, 64.52%) agreed 

that there should be a maximum of 4 dogs under the 

control of one person across the whole site. 

Of the 79 people that left a comment, more than half 

of them were in support of having a maximum of 4 

dogs per person, and in most cases they indicated 

four was too many. Two was a popular number, 

where a number was stated. Some of those that 

agreed with the maximum of 4 or suggested less than 4 also made reference to dog walker 

businesses, and the observation that some dog walkers have a lack of ability to control the number 

of dogs they take out.  

Of those that commented and were against the measure, many of them were professional dog 

walkers explaining their commitment to their responsibilities and their ability to walk four or more 

dogs.  Others that suggested it was about control and not the numbers of dogs that was the issue. 

A full list of the comments can be viewed in appendix 13.  

 This still allows professional dog walkers to access Fleetwood Marsh; it is impossible to pick 
up after dogs if attempting at the same time to control up to four of them. 

 I agree too many dog walkers just letting numerous dogs run riot. You can’t possibly keep an 
eye on that many dogs at once. I had two dogs and found it difficult when they went 
different ways. 

 This should be reduced to 2 dogs, not only so that they can keep track of where their dogs 
are fouling but also from a social point of view. I have frequently had out of control dogs 
jumping up, with owners too far away to control. I would say that since lockdown it has 
improved with the worst behaved dogs no longer coming to the reserve. 

 In the main I think a maximum of 4 is fine. However there are some dog walkers who have 
excellent control over 5 or 6 small dogs and some who don't. Perhaps individuals could apply 
for a licence to take out more and if they can justify how they will keep control and pick up 
poo then in exceptional cases this might be granted. 

 Professional Dog walkers earn a living off taking dogs for a walk at this reserve, most 

65%

35%
Yes

No

Page 237



professional dog walkers know the behaviours of each dog they walk and are sensible and 
responsible enough to look after them and make sure they behave. It isn’t fair to limit 
somebodies business just because the minority of people are poor at their job and cannot 
control the dogs. 

 As long as all dogs are under control, the number of dogs should not matter. 
 

Respondents were asked… 

That there will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have the means to pick foul across that 

whole site (map 004 /005). Do you agree with the proposed dog control measures at the nature 

park? 

Almost all (n=183, 97.86%) of the respondents 

agreed that people should pick up, and have the 

means to pick up dog foul across the site. 

39 people left comments on this proposal. Many of 

these corroborated the need to have such a 

measure and many suggested that this should 

apply everywhere not just on the Nature Reserve. 

People also mentioned the need for more bins in the area, and the potential to have bags provided 

on site, for example, via a vending machine. Also the need to ensure enforcement was raised. 

A full list of the comments can be viewed in appendix 14. 

 Disgusting that people do not pick up poo. Not fair on sensible dog owners who get the 
blame. 

 But install a dog poo bag vending machine and a dog loo area. Give people a chance 1st 
before banning or fining 

 This is the control that is key. Support it without reservation. 

 This should be compulsary anywhere! 

 Please enforce. You can have as many deterrents as you want, but if you don't enforce, they 
are worthless. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98%

2%

Yes

No

Page 238



Respondents were asked… 

That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006). Do you agree with 

the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 

76.34% (n=142) respondents agreed with the proposed 

measure for a dog to be put on a lead when instructed 

to do so, by an authorised officer in the identified area. 

66 comments were generated regarding this measure. 

The majority were in support and for a variety of 

reasons. The main agreement supporting this measure 

is that there must be a valid reason for the request e.g. 

due to an aggressive dog, or out of control dog.  

Other respondents that supported the measure, did so on the premise that some of the other 

restrictions were not actioned across the site. Whereas others supported it in entirety or further 

supported it alongside other measures such as dogs on leads in all areas. 

 A number of comments alluded to respondents never having seen enforcement, or a visible 

authorised officer on the site.  

There were very few comments that were against this measure mostly those that were spoke of 

freedom to roam off lead or called for off lead designated and fenced areas. 

 I think an authorised officer could have the right to instruct any badly behaved dog to be put 
on a lead anywhere as long as the request was reasonable. 

 I agree if said dog is being aggressive or causing a nuisance 

 Dog on lead instruction should cover the entire area 

 Certainly if dogs/a dog is out of control or disturbing wild life 

 I believe dogs should be allowed off the lead on the whole area but that this rule should also 
apply. 

 Maybe instead of completing banning dogs from around the lagoons and having dogs on 
leads in certain areas make the whole reserve as "instruct a dog to be put on a lead" 

 I agree but I have never seen an authorised officer on the site and I doubt if a number of dog 
owners will obey the signs unless officers are present on the site. 

 Seems totally pointless and irrevelant to have a small area of the marsh under this 'control' 
and it is the area of the marsh where dogs can wander safely. 

 Dogs should be allowed to walk as they are now and the and not be penalised because of a 
few careless owners. 

 
 

76%

24%

Yes

No

Page 239



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

1.  This would seem to be punishing all for the sins of the few. 

2.  I have a friend that lives close by to this area and I’ve walked there with her. Out of 
control dogs are a menace and my friend has definitely noticed the effect on wildlife in 
the area-and definitely spoil our walks frequently. 

3.  The wildlife live there and it is an important ecosystem. They have a right to live in 
peace! 

4.  Wildlife is under increasing pressure from housing and pollution. Any measures to assist 
it - this is, after all, primarily a nature reserve, not a dog-exercise park - is to be desired. 

5.  Responsible owners are being penalised. 

6.  I live on Harbour Village and the way to control this is to have a smaller limit on how 
many dogs a person can walk at any one time or they are to be kept on a lead. It’s a 
lovely area for dog walking and from experience the dogs who are not controlled are 
majority owned by people who do not live on the Harbour Village estate! 

7.  Dogs don’t have to be excluded they can be on a lead, why punish all the responsible 
owners because of a few idiots. 

8.  It shouldn't be an exclusion zone but rather an enforced dogs on leads area. Humans 
visiting have more of a negative impact on wildlife there. We have only recently 
discovered this place and it would be a real shame to lose it for responsible dog owners 
who keep their dogs on a lead. 

9.  It is a sad fact that dog owners seem unable to understand that someone like me does 
not share their affection for their particular pet. 

10.  Dogs enjoy running and with sensible owners, dogs can be exercised in a sensible 
manner. 

11.  During peak months in the summer this is understandable, but no need for it to be all 
year. 

12.  There is very little places to walk our dogs, all our fields are being dug up and turned into 
housing estates. Maybe make the reserve on-lead only but not ban dogs completely 
from there? Madness. There are lots of responsible owners who use this reserve to 
exercise their dogs and it will be a shame if they can’t anymore. 

13.  If wildlife it's serious being affected by dogs and shit owners then yes. 

14.  How many complainants have there been? 

15.  This seems like a rather automatic reaction to solve a problem, and in my opinion it will 
not always be adhered to. This is a direct result of walkers not acting responsibly, and in 
such cases they should receive fines. Why should other owners and their dogs have to 
suffer? 

16.  We the dog owning rate payers of Wyre are as entitled to enjoy the facilities of the 
reserve I personally go there every day winter and summer rain or shine I am 72 this is 
not only for my dog but for my personal health and wellbeing. 

17.  Don’t understand why they need to be excluded. 

18.  I could understand making it on lead, but not an exclusion zone. 

19.  This would be very beneficial to wild life and would be an excellent move. 

Page 240



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

20.  Too restrictive. 

21.  I agree dogs be kept away from the water, but the area is to wide & should it go ahead 
then you may as well ban dogs altogether. 

22.  Most dogs love the water and need access to it. Especially during the hot months. Taking 
this right away is not only selfish but also purring dogs health /lives at risk!! 

23.  They are not sufficiently extensive. 

24.  As a major dog walking area- especially during summer months when beaches are not 
permitted, where else do you expect people to go? The ponds can be used for dogs to 
cool off. Completely unnecessary. We should be dog friendly. 

25.  My dog walker does an amazing job with all of the dogs in her care. With these 
restrictions put into place, her business would be put in jeopardy (at a time when people 
are struggling financially and we should be doing everything possible to support small 
businesses). Without a dog walker, my dogs would be alone in the house for hours on 
end whilst I go to work, again is neglectful and unfair- if you put this into place, it will 
hugely impact on dogs like my own being cared for by dog walkers. 

26.  I think people disturbing wildlife and causing pollution is more of an issue than some 
dogs in a man made 'wildlife' area. 

27.  Dogs are part of nature and should be allowed to exercise. 

28.  The reserve is for all. Dogs enjoy playing in the water. Also it will put dogs at risk of they 
are not allowed to cool off on a hot day. 

29.  Completely unnecessary control which will impact badly on the many responsible dog 
owners. As a minimum, the boundary on the Harbour Village side should be moved to 
the other side of the fence so that the path can also be used by dog walkers. 

30.  Until Wyre council provides an alternate freshwater place for dogs to swim in hot 
weather, I strongly oppose this. This lagoon is like catnip to dogs, so will be difficult to 
stop dogs running in unless it's fenced off. Instead of constantly banning dogs to solve 
problems, why not be proactive in providing fenced areas for dogs under control to 
socialise. 

31.  If under control fine maybe should a maximum amount of dogs in lagoons at once? 

32.  Badly behaved dogs and owners mean that well behaved dogs and owners lose out! 

33.  I've been there today with my dog and I see no reason why this would be restricted. 

34.  No shouldn’t penalise all. Use other orders to penalise guilty parties. If we as a society 
start punishing entire groups for the actions of a few then very soon there will little that 
we are allowed to do. 

35.  I’ve seen more people doing damage to the wildlife throwing stones at the ducks etc 
than I ever have dogs so why not ban people!? 

36.  Dogs need to swim for exercise and to keep cool. 

37.  The map above doesn’t include the pebbled approach pond to the right of the bridge as 
entered from the car park so yes. That’s reasonable. 

Page 241



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

38.  Dogs should be allowed to walk as they are now and the and not be penalised because 
of a few careless owners. 

39.  In 10 years of visiting this area I have never found an out of control dog. I have in fact 
found many out of control children who could easily be taken to the beach where there 
is already a dog ban in place. We pay our council tax just the same as those who do not 
own dogs and they do not get to prioritise every piece of land where dogs currently 
enjoy their walks for themselves and their own fear or prejudice. 

40.  There are very few places to walk dogs off lead especially in the summer months, as far 
as I can see there are as many birds as usual so I can't see why that cannot continue. It is 
an area with few to no bikes to traverse round and especially in the week few or no 
children just people and dogs. 

41.  Except the area should be expanded to include the entire site. Skylarks formerly nested 
in the long grass in the north and east sections but now they cannot owing to relentless 
distance from dogs. The eastern pool is badly disturbed by dogs, today (27-07-20) a dog 
owner was throwing sticks and balls into the water for two dogs causing serious 
disturbance to the birds on there. At the very least dogs should be excluded from all the 
ponds and their banks. Flightless waterbird young are at serious risk from dogs. Ground 
nesting birds cannot breed where dogs run free. 

42.  No dogs should be allowed in the water but signage regarding the reasons why and 
information about the bird species will be required to explain why. 

43.  I would like the authority to consider having seasonal lead orders, for example like the 
beach at Cleveleys this could be applied to Fleetwood Marsh which would protect the 
newly hatched birds and those adults/children who are brought by parents/ carers to 
feed the ducklings etc if they are nervous of dogs. 

44.  Why should they be excluded from the water? I have never been to Fleetwood and 
observed any out of control dog, the only thing I have seen is lots of people and dogs 
having a nice time at a beautiful place. It will be really sad if I can’t take my dogs as they 
love it there and so do I. 

45.  I am not sure from the description whether dog owners would be able to utilise the 
curved North Eastern path which leads to the bridge. If this bridge and path is in the 
exclusion zone I do not agree. Alternatively, I am happy if it is exclusion is within the 
boundary as these areas should be able to be safe for nesting birds, but the path still 
available to dog walkers. 

46.  In addition to the marked area I think that dogs should be excluded from the other half 
of the lagoon and also from the marsh at the side of the river. 

47.  It’s a nature reserve no explanation needed 

48.  As we can’t go on the beaches we walk around here a lot with our dog on lead 

Page 242



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

49.  I think it’ s unfair that because a small number of people can’t control their dogs that 
other people are being punished 

50.  Dogs should perhaps be on lead around the lagoons as it will stop families with dogs 
being able to see and feed the wildlife if they are banned completely. Again punishing all 
owners due to some bad ones. We have already stopped our dog from going in the 
ponds due to the current signage. 

51.  to restrictive not practicable to enforce. the path from leading in from Windward ave is 
nowhere near any ponds, most people that visit the area are dog walkers very few 
ornithologist are to be seen please don't spoil the enjoyment for many to satisfy a few 
twitchers 

52.  this will provide a safe area for children to play 

53.  Especially if there has been complaints 

54.  Dogs need to be able to have the chance to cool off, particularly on hot days. 

55.  I often walk at Fleetwood Marsh with our sons dogs and I have never seen dogs in the 
marked exclusion area. 

56.  I think dogs should be excluded from the whole of the Nature Reserve as they are a 
threat to ground nesting birds and water fowl. 

57.  There are a tiny minority of dogs who are out of control and this should not affect the 
ability to those whose dogs are well behaved enjoying a walk with them. If any dog 
upsets the wildlife then action should be taken against their owners obviously. 

58.  I can’t say I agree with this as I have visited this area lots of times and witnessed more 
well behaved dogs than not. Dogs love a swim, especially in warm weather and with the 
exclusion of beaches, this is a good alternative. This is not a place to take young children 
to play and therefore is a suitable place for a dog to be. 

59.  If it causing damage to the wild life, it is a good idea to exclude dogs from some areas 

60.  There is simply no need and where do you want responsible dog owners to exercise their 
dogs? I am firmly against dog exclusion areas as this prevents them from playing, 
socialising and learning how to behave with other dogs and new people. There is no 
justification for having dog exclusion areas just like there would be no excuse for having 
child exclusion areas. We do not live in an authoritarian state so please let people enjoy 
our open spaces with their dogs and stop this big brother nonsense. Don’t forget for 
some people a dog may be their best friend and only company so why prohibit them 
from an open area for no real reason. 

Page 243



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

61.  I have been walking my dogs here for years and can honestly say I have never come 
across an out of control dog. What exactly does that mean? It is aggressive? It's recall is 
rubbish? There was an incident where a dog walker was injured by her friend's dog 
running into her but this was an accident. I walk at this place once a day, seven days a 
week. The area has obviously become busier since the houses were built and since 
COVID lockdown allowed you to exercise 1 hour per day only. Since then lots more 
cyclists and non dog owners now use the reserve. It used to be nigh on deserted apart 
from dog walkers. 

62.  people should take responsibility for their dogs, however the dogs like to swim and have 
freedom 

63.  It’s completely unfair to responsible dog owners. The areas we can walk our dogs are 
getter fewer and fewer. Why don’t you do something about the out of control dogs 
instead. Address the problem, don’t penalise everyone else instead. 

64.  This is a great place for families to visit including their dogs. Most owners responsible 
and respect what the Nature Reserve has to offer and all those visiting. Perhaps spot 
visits by warden control as an extension of those controlling the beach area. 

65.  Currently the nature reserve is off limits because of the number of dogs left to run free 
there. This control is therefore a good one 

66.  The nature park works well as it currently operates although I am not opposed to having 
an enforcement officer doing spot checks ensuring that the current regulations work 
especially at weekends and at the times there have been complaints. Many dog walkers 
use the marsh regularly and keep their dogs under control and dispose of poo properly. 
You only have to look at the full poo bins to see that. I come twice a day because it is a 
safe area to let my dogs off the lead. It is a social place too as the regular dog walkers 
say hello to each other and the dogs enjoy playing. I try to go at quiet times but I always 
put my dogs on a lead if they might cause a problem. For instance if there are families 
enjoying a picnic. However many families bring their dogs with them too. I don't find 
that the dogs interfere with the wildlife. The ducks, geese and swans have all been 
producing offspring year on year and swim quite happily on the 3 various ponds. I feel 
very strongly that Fleetwood Marsh should remain as it is because a large proportion of 
Wyre residents are dog owners and I believe are the main users of the area. Some 
consideration to their needs should be given. I don't think more non dog walkers would 
visit if you restricted the dog walking because there are no toilet or catering facilities. 

67.  That’s fine as long as it’s properly marked and there is an alternative walk for dogs 

Page 244



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

68.  Dogs love to swim in the ponds and it is also a cooking method as dogs struggle to cool 
down due to not being able to sweat like us. Like I say dogs have limited lives as it is why 
should we limit it even more and take the one thing away from them that they look 
forward to and make them feel like they’re being punished. 

69.  As previously mentioned I believe that the nature reserve is saturated due to the rest of 
wyre having a 4 dog limit. The nature reserve is not somewhere I frequent as a dog 
walker, however I do take my own dog there outside of work times and not at any point 
have I witnessed any issues with dogs causing distress to the wildlife in the lagoons. I 
would say given the fact the wildlife remains and returns there, this would be sufficient 
evidence to corroborate this. The dogs often paddle by the edges, the edges are not 
where the birds are. I do agree that throwing balls into the water for dogs to fetch would 
not be appropriate as this encourages them to be further into the lagoon however I do 
not see what issue dogs paddling at the edges is causing anybody. It is an enjoyable sight 
to see and something many families enjoy with their dogs on a warm day. 

70.  Dogs have been walked on this area for years.....long before the houses were built. They 
have gone in the pond without disturbing the wild life there. You should place a ban on 
people going there and leaving their rubbish and gas canisters. 

71.  I'm lucky to have a well behaved dog and purposely like to go to Fleetwood Marsh so he 
can have a good run around off lead. 

72.  Dogs need somewhere that they can have a run, most people who walk their dogs at the 
Reserve are responsible dog owners who have gone out of their way and taken the 
trouble to an area where they can do this without troubling other people. If necessary to 
restrict then restrict the number of dogs per person to two and or sell an annual pass to 
allow people to exercise their dogs off lead there 

73.  There will be hardly any space left to walk your dog! And it further reduces the spaces in 
the Fleetwood area where dogs and can walked. 

74.  Dogs frequently disturb waterfowl 

75.  Dogs should be on leads at all times 

76.  This is our resource, that is local people. My dogs love a dip in the lagoon and do not 
interfere with the birds in any way. I’ve never seen any dogs chasing birds or acting 
badly. If you did introduce this then sensible people like us would be penalised as 
thoughtless people who allow their dogs to run riot would still do it anyway. The area is 
a well-used resource for responsible dog walkers. If you withdraw this facility it’ll 
potentially end up not being used and that’s a waste. 

77.  I regularly take my dogs here to exercise as it's one of the few places safe for both my 
dogs and children to run and play. 

Page 245



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

78.  I agree with dogs being controlled better on a nature reserve, however I don't think dogs 
should be excluded entirely, there is few green spaces in the area for dogs to be walked. 

79.  Dogs should not be allowed full stop at Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park. Professional dog 
walkers are a big part of the problem. 

80.  If the nature park is to remain a nature park then these areas must be protected at all 
costs from dogs running wild. The threat to ground nesting birds is a serious one and 
should not be taken lightly. The same applies to the waterfowl that are present there 
which are no doubt put under stress when the dogs swim about in the 'new' lagoon. 

81.  I have been involved in monitoring bird populations at Fleetwood Marsh Nature Park 
since the Nature Park was formally created in 2005, and on the site since 1984, when it 
was the site of the former Fleetwood Power Station. Since the official formation of the 
Nature Park in 2005 the existing two larger lagoons, within the red dotted line, have 
always been designated as no access areas because of the breeding and wintering birds 
that are found in these areas, and the need to protect them from disturbance. The two 
larger lagoons are fenced to prevent access, with a padlocked gated access to the 
eastern most of these two lagoons. This is to allow access for myself, and other 
members of Fylde Ringing Group, to carry out monitoring and surveying under the 
auspices of the British Trust for Ornithology (BTO) ringing scheme. It is imperative that 
dogs remain excluded from this fenced area surrounding the two larger lagoons, to 
protect the birds that utilise these areas. These two lagoons are important breeding 
areas on a County basis for Birds of Conservation Concern (BoCC) red-listed species such 
as Grasshopper Warbler, Song Thrush and Linnet, and also BoCC amber-listed species 
such as Mute Swan, Mallard, Shoveler, Willow Warbler, Dunnock and Reed Bunting. In 
addition to this a number of other wetland/willow scrub species nest in these areas and 
include Cetti’s Warbler (Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981), Reed 
Warbler, Sedge Warbler, Blackcap, Chiffchaff and Garden Warbler. The lagoons are also 
important as a feeding area for migrant species and as a wintering area for a number of 
BoCC red and amber listed species, and species regularly wintering in these areas from 
these two lists include Gadwall, Teal, Garganey, Shoveler, Pochard, Bittern, Kestrel, 
Woodcock, Snipe, Cuckoo, Kingfisher, Skylark, Starling (spectacular roost in autumn and 
winter), Fieldfare, Redwing, Mistle Thrush, Yellow Wagtail and Grey Wagtail. I can 
provide further records for these two areas if need be and my name and email address 
are provided on the second page of the survey. The smaller of the three lagoons, and the 
newest as it was created just before the opening of the Nature Park, is divided by the 
proposed dog exclusion zone with the northern half within the zone and the southern 
half outside it. I would like to see the whole of this lagoon included in the proposed dog 
exclusion zone. The reason for this is disturbance from dogs. Great Crested Grebes 
attempt to nest in the northern half of this lagoon (within the propose dog exclusion 
zone) and are successful in varying degrees. This year they have been successful, but in 
other years they have failed. The southern half of this lagoon, proposed to be outside 
the dog exclusion zone, is used by a number of wildfowl and other wetland species 
including Tufted Duck, Coot, Moorhen, Mallard and Shoveler. These birds are continually 
disturbed by dogs in the water, encouraged to do so by their owners. In addition to this I 

Page 246



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

used to regularly record Common Sandpiper (BoCC amber list) foraging around this 
lagoon during spring and autumn migration as the habitat is perfectly suited for them, 
but due to disturbance I no longer record them here. This lagoon was also very 
important on a County basis for two species of Ordonata; Black-tailed Skimmer and Red-
veined Darter. Black-tailed skimmer, which after first colonising the site is now rarely 
seen. A friend and colleague of mine who monitors invertebrates at the site has only 
seen 4 in the last eight years, and the constant daytime disturbance from dogs is clearly 
something they cannot tolerate. The same applies equally to the rare migrant Red-
veined Darter which occasionally turns up but does not stay to breed. The presence of 
dogs using the lagoon as a play area must also have a damaging effect on some of the 
aquatic larvae. 

82.  Offenders should be dealt with 

83.  In the summer months dogs need somewhere to cool off 

84.  Only if they are prepared to ban people also, plus to stop dogs cooling off in the summer 
a fence would have to be erected. 

85.  I agree, provided it is possible to go across the bridge. 

86.  This imposes restrictions on people with reduced mobility. Rather make this an on leads 
area 

87.  Live and let live...this area is enjoyed by people and animals 

88.  I don't think dogs should be excluded from the lagoon area as this excludes the owner 
who if they are like me and have a walking difficulty would walk round the path rather 
than the uneven grassed area. This is therefore more discriminatory to the 
disabled/semi-disabled. I would prefer this order to be on lead rather than exclusion for 
this reason. 

89.  If as I stated earlier these changes are not sufficiently communicated and there are no 
notices up at the nature reserve for instance, people could come out owing several 
hundred pounds in fines through no fault of their own. Owning a dog is not cheap 
anyway with food, vets and insurance. People are used to bringing their dogs so just 
putting up a notice on the board would not be sufficient. There needs to be large notices 
throughout advising these changes so that people cannot miss them 

90.  To exclude dogs would be to exclude responsible dog owners too and would take away a 
beautiful area which can be enjoyed by owners and their dogs to exercise safely 

91.  My only concern here is large number of dog walkers and large number of dogs running 
around out of control. For this reason I rarely go. 

92.  Again absolutely ridiculous. If a dog gets hot from running they are obviously going to 
head for the water. If anything it's the wildlife that are a threat to the dogs 

Page 247



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

93.  I believe a dog warden should be on duty to encourage compliance with current rules. 
Maybe a coffee/tea van could be provided also which could finance a dog warden in the 
area whilst also keeping an eye on activities and ban only those with dangerous dogs 
and people disregarding current regulations. 

94.  Why should responsible owners be punished because of a few or one selfish person ( 
who is actually using the area for her business) 

95.  This is one of the few areas locally where dogs can run free. 

96.  Due to the level of out of control dogs there - dog walkers just turn up and open van 
doors and flood the place with off lead dogs running around - I personally don’t walk 
there anymore as I feel so unsafe there. So for me it should be dogs on leads at all times 
there. 

97.  I understand the need to protect wildlife but how about the lagoon to the left of the 
bridge being dog free and the right side have a date restriction. 

98.  I feel that there is not enough lagoon area which dogs may access. Perhaps half and half 
would be fairer. I feel that dog owners are being unfairly targeted what about families 
and children? There should be rules regarding the leaving of litter and endangering 
wildlife (children have been seen throwing rocks at the birdlife.) Also what efforts are 
being made to control the increasing number of cyclists in the reserve? A speed limit 
would be useful and a method of warning of approach, something I believe is a legal 
requirement. Cyclists should also be restricted to the areas which they may access. 

99.  These areas are designated as wildlife refuges and should be kept that way. 

100.  The area above is already inaccessible to dogs and therefore makes an ideal habitat for 
wildlife 

101.  currently there is just one half a lagoon for dogs to bath and play in. Surely that will stay 
like that? 

102.  from my personal experiences the dogs tend to play amongst themselves and choose to 
leave the wildlife alone. There is no harm to the wildlife the bird species and other 
wildlife are still thriving in the area. In one visit you can see various species which is 
enjoyable for not only the public but also dog owners. It is clear the dogs cause no harm 
to the Wildlife and it is absurd that the council would suggest this. 

103.  Presumably the causeway, and the line marked "path", which are red dotted on the 
map, would not be included in the exclusion area. It would be impractical otherwise. 

104.  It will be much safer if dogs are excluded from this part of the nature park. 

105.  They will not disturb the wildlife if the dogs are banned and as people will not clean up it 
will be a cleaner area 

Page 248



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

106.  Dog exclusion zone should go around all the lagoons. 

107.  I am shocked to read these proposals...all these years I have walked my dogs in this area 
and all I have seen is the increase in sensible caring owners with happy dogs not on their 
leads. So many of them have said how glad they are to have found a place to feel 
comfortable with their dogs...to be honest I feel I found this ... 

108.  Is that not how it is at the moment? 

109.  No the owners I have seen are responsible. They are no more of a danger to other 
wildlife than the foxes that are seen on the site of an evening 

110.  Area not suitable for dogs. Just pleasing the owners. 

111.  However, I feel the exclusion should encompass the whole area of the 3 bodies of water 
that way there can be no argument about boundaries. 

112.  As a professional dog walker I am insured to walk six dogs at one time. From years of 
experience I know I can control six dogs a lot better than one person walking just one 
dog as I have seen many times that person is too busy on the phone or talking to 
someone else while their dog is running off into the distance and fouling without the 
owner either noticing or refusing to walk over and pick up after it. These are the people 
that should be given fines, especially the weekend walkers. The head ranger from 
Lancashire county council has seen me at Fleetwood nature reserve several times in 
charge of six dogs and every time they have been under control and I have picked up 
after each and every one of them. This is very easy to do because they are kept under 
control. When one dog fouls I’ll pick up and allow it off the lead and so on until all six are 
off lead - you know your dogs and which ones first so to say it’s impossible to pick up 
after 6 simply isn’t true. I have offered for a council member to join me on a walk to see 
exactly how this is done and how under control the dogs are. If insurance companies 
deem it safe for one person to walk six dogs how can a council or one man decide it 
isn’t? Many of the dogs I walk belong to elderly or disabled people who physically cannot 
walk their dogs. If this new rule of four dogs is brought in there is a very strong 
possibility that I may have to close my business because there isn’t enough hours in the 
day to fit in another walk. The thought of having to tell my clients that I cannot walk 
their dog anymore after years of doing so it’s unthinkable. If this were to happen then 
more people would start opening up dog walking business thinking it’s an easy job which 
it isn’t and as I have witnessed especially since lockdown these people are not insured so 
any dog fights or accidents that may happen on the walks will not be covered. Also there 
are people who own five dogs who have limited mobility and simply cannot do more 
than one walk a day. How are they meant to manage walking their dogs if they cannot 
take them all together? If dogs are left at home this will create psychological problems 
for the dogs and could lead to lots of rehoming and depression in owners. Blackpool 
Council tried to introduce a four dog max rule in 2018. After discussions with them and 
letters from vets and other animal agencies regarding a dog’s health and wellbeing if 
walks were taken away from them plus the benefits of owning a dog to people already 
suffering with issues they saw fit to not introduce the rule. I hope Wyre and Lancashire 
Council can see the issues raised and decide against it too. 

Page 249



Appendix 11 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal : That dogs will be excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on the 

map 001 at all times. 
 

 Please provide comments 

113.  The proposed exclusion area is large chunk of the reserve. Realistically how are you 
going to enforce this regularly. To me the issue is too many "dog walking companies" 
meeting up and letting the dogs run riot. Only go occasionally but have witnessed these 
walkers standing chatting with packs of dogs all running riot. Again you are proposing to 
penalise the majority of responsible people. 

114.  Yes in principle but suggest that all the water bodies are exclusion zones for the safety of 
the dogs and wildlife using them. So include the area to the right. 

 

Page 250



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

1.  They should be on a lead at all times. 

2.  Yet once more-it has to be enforced to be successful. 

3.  The wildlife live there and it is an important ecosystem. They have a right to live in 
peace! 

4.  Dogs should be excluded from these areas 

5.  Responsible owners being penalised. 

6.  This is excluding a vast majority of users. Dogs running free is in their nature. This 
park is perfect for it. Be interesting to hear how many actual factual complaints 
there have been and why. Proof please. 

7.  If this is the only way to allow dogs to continue to have access with their owners 

8.  Dogs need to be able to be exercised in a safe manner. Walking through this area 
with the dogs safely being off lead gives pleasure to many dogs walkers. 

9.  Dogs need to run and exercise properly otherwise it causes many other problems 
such as behavioural which can result in aggression in dogs. Dogs on leads tend to 
be more aggressive as they feel trapped. The health and well-being of the animal 
has to be thought of in these consultations because as it stands they canâ€™t be let 
off lead anywhere 

10.  How would this be monitored? What would happen if a dog was spooked and ran 
into this zone? 

11.  This is the only practicable close area for me and my dog to exercise in safety 

12.  Responsible dog owner do not need to have their dogs on leads 

13.  Too restrictive, dogs should be able to run free if under control of dog walker or 
responsible owner 

14.  I agree that near the water dogs should be on a lead to protect the wildlife 

15.  If dogs are under control then I see no need for this to be in place. 

16.  They are not sufficiently extensive. 

17.  On the path yes, by the pond no. 

18.  This is one of the only areas that is safe to take dogs in the local area where they 
can get the required amount of exercise and are not at threat or danger from cars 
on the roads. I have two springers and keeping them on a lead is detrimental to 
their health as they need to run for miles and this isn’t possible whilst on a lead. 

19.  Where there may be a larger number of the public I agree to keep dogs on a lead. 

Page 251



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

20.  I absolutely do not agree with this. I think this would be unwholly unfair to 
responsible dog owners. Unfortunately this area is prime for professional dog 
walkers and this is the area that requires restricting. They should not be allowed to 
exercise dogs on this area and should be banned. Families who wish to take a 
family walk with their pet would be penalised for this. Unfortunately it is the 
minority that will spoil this for the majority. This area is popular in spring and 
summer but is definitely not used in Autumn and winter. Maybe consider 
restricting in peak season/breeding season to protect the wildlife, but in 
Autumn/winter to allow off the lead walking then. 

21.  If dogs as under control I see no need for this 

22.  Unnecessary. Defeats the object of the marsh area for dog walkers who are far and 
away the major users. 

23.  You will need to fence off the different areas or dogs will just run between the two 
areas. 

24.  My dog is well controlled off lead. Perhaps restrict times or seasons? 

25.  No makes no sense, why would they need to be on leads in those areas?, what 
happens when just slightly out of those areas and the dog runs back to cool off on 
the lagoon shore? Will you get fined, makes no sense 

26.  It will mean that dogs cannot swim in that part of the pond where there is often no 
birds. In summer it is good to have somewhere for dogs to cool down. 

27.  Why? How can the dogs be allowed in the lagoon but must be on a lead? No need 
for a dogs on lead area 

28.  The water provides comfort cooling for dogs who paddle round the edge. There is 
no evidence of adverse effects to wildlife from this (in this side of the bridge). 
There is anecdotal chatter that dogs may contribute to the pond being dirty. This is 
not the case. I believe this stems from a consultation that took place when 
Fleetwood council canvassed the visitors. The minutes from the resulting meeting 
included One comment about the water being dirty. Somebody suggested that 
stopping dogs swimming may help with that. That there was no substance to the 
reason why. The comment about the water being dirty was actually to do with the 
amount of algae that had grown and the degree to which the water had shrunk 
back due to the hot weather, thereby exacerbating the plant growth around the 
edge. 

Page 252



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

29.  Dogs should be allowed to walk as they are now and the and not be penalised 
because of a few careless owners. 

30.  Many dogs, mine included are well behaved off the lead and happily hop out of the 
car and accompany their owners to the field without the need of leads. 

31.  I think making it leads on / off is confusing 

32.  At least some of the grassland in the northern and eastern sections should be 
fenced to exclude dogs to allow skylarks to nest here again. 

33.  I think the area should be larger . It is a Nature Park and there has been a marked 
reduction in the number of ground nesting birds e.g. skylarks as more dogs are 
exercising there. 

34.  My dogs need walking rain or shine the issue non dog walking adults and children 
using the Marsh has been exacerbate by the nice weather and covid 19, usually on 
wet/ windy days it is only the hardened dogs walkers that you will see on the 
Marsh. My dogs have good recall however it would be difficult to keep them when 
off lead in the boundaries proposed without fencing, the authority could 
considered having a fenced area where children/adults are fully informed that 
there will be dogs off lead. 

35.  Already answered this question 

36.  I am sorry, but I do not agree. When you are excluding dogs from the beach it 
appears to me that it is inappropriate to stop dogs enjoying the pond area for 
swimming, particularly when it is a hot period. Normally the Nature Reserve is 
quiet and I do think they cause any harm for dogs cooling off and enjoying 
themselves. Making this a 'dogs on leads area it again is restrictive to both owners 
and dogs. I do think having more litter bins for dog waste would be a better option. 
If anything the only path where dogs should be on a lead is just the short one which 
crosses the bridge. If restrictions like this are put in place them maybe the 
restrictions should just be at weekends and/or school holidays for example 
between mid-July and September. 

37.  And the numbers be restricted 

38.  The ground nesting birds of Fleetwood Nature Park are also under constant 
pressure as are the wildfowl on the pond with dogs swimming daily, packs of dogs 
off lead can also cause problems only the other day I had two large Husky type 
dogs run over to me growling which can be a bit intimidating. 

Page 253



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

39.  Pointless it’s hardly a big area and can walk your dog on a lead along a road 

40.  One of the best places to allow dogs some freedom and exercise; however if 
something has to be done it is better than nothing. 

41.  I agree there should be some control at the small pond, dogs going in the water 
chasing the wild life 

42.  I think dogs should be on leads unless in a fenced off area 

43.  There are not enough places in Fleetwood where dogs are allowed off the lead. 
How will you fence off the designated area? 

44.  Dogs should be kept on a lead in the car park areas but once on the paths I see no 
need to insist on all dogs being on a lead. If a dog is causing nuisance then they 
should be put back on a lead if the owner is asked. I have never witnessed any 
problems with dogs being off a lead in the marked area. Dog fouling is an 
occasional issue but that is the fault of the owners, not the dogs. 

45.  If dogs cannot be excluded completely from the Nature Park, I think they should be 
kept on leads in all areas of the nature park at all times 

46.  Again most owners are responsible and their dogs under control and causing 
absolutely no harm. There will always be some people who are irresponsible but 
their bad behaviour should not spoil the enjoyment of the majority. 

47.  Tired of dogs coming to jump on my lap without my consent or willingness 

48.  There is simply no need and where do you want responsible dog owners to exercise 
their dogs? I am firmly against dog exclusion areas as this prevents them from 
playing, socialising and learning how to behave with other dogs and new people. 
There is no justification for having dog exclusion areas just like there would be no 
excuse for having child exclusion areas. We do not live in an authoritarian state so 
please let people enjoy our open spaces with their dogs and stop this big brother 
nonsense. Don’t forget for some people a dog may be their best friend and only 
company so why prohibit them from an open area for no real reason. 

Page 254



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

49.  I would agree that dogs are not encouraged to swim in the pond by their owners 
though as this can disturb some species of birds. I think they should be allowed to 
drink from the outer edges as the dogs like to cool down after their walk. But 
throwing balls into the pond and letting dogs swim out to the centre is not needed. 
That said, the wildlife does not seem to mind as they nest away from the busier 
pond area where no one bothers them. . 

50.  More areas needed for dogs to play and run free not less. Please don’t take this 
away from well deserved dogs. 

51.  Absolutely 

52.  As in my previous comments I do not think there is a need to put all dogs on a lead 
all the time. If the guidance is clearly posted about keeping dogs under control and 
disposing of all poo and there is an enforcement officer doing spot checks and a 
clear complaints procedure for the public, then leave it as it is. 

53.  Could actually be most of the area 

54.  No. Dogs require some access to the water off lead. 

55.  The little bit near the bridge is the only accessible bit to the pond for dogs where 
they can swim and cool down, forcing owners to walk past the pond with the dog 
on the lead is torture for a warm dog that’s just been on a walk and just wants a 
drink and cool down but thinks it’s being punished by being pulled away on a lead. 

56.  I don't believe there is a need for dogs to be on lead in any area of the reserve 
other than the car park. 

57.  Dogs walk with their owners on the paths and do not need to be on a lead. 

58.  Dogs need somewhere that they can have a run, most people who walk their dogs 
at the Reserve are responsible dog owners who have gone out of their way and 
taken the trouble to an area where they can do this without troubling other 
people. If necessary to restrict then restrict the number of dogs per person to two 
and or sell an annual pass to allow people to exercise their dogs off lead there 

59.  Dogs need to run & socialise for optimal health with responsible ownership 

60.  Preferable to the first proposal but still not acceptable, the marsh is a safe 
environment for dog walkers and other leisure activities. it should not be 
restricted., 

61.  All areas at all times 

Page 255



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

62.  Disagree. The size of the reserve is part of its attraction and to restrict it is 
unnecessary. 

63.  Dogs should be kept on a lead through the entire reserve during breeding seasons 
for birds that live on the reserve. 

64.  The council should have the courage to make the whole of Fleetwood Marsh a dog 
exclusion zone. 

65.  Dogs should under no circumstances be allowed to enter the lagoon. They put the 
waterfowl at risk and under stress and they also have a damaging effect on the 
aquatic larva that live in there. Because of the constant daytime disturbance a 
former breeding species the Black-tailed Skimmer no longer occurs there. I 
personally would like to see leads being compulsory all over the park. By limiting it 
to Map002 it will mean extra pressure being put on the remaining areas with 
consequences for the flora and fauna that exist there. 

66.  As I have stated previously I monitor bird populations at the site on a regular basis. 
Nearly every time I visit, and I can visit several times per week, I have had dogs 
jump at me in the car park and the area surrounding the new lagoon as shown in 
Map 002. Often this leads to muddy paw marks on my clothes. Even though the 
dog owners usually apologise, I still believe as a user of the site that this isn't 
acceptable. This proposal would also help to reduce the disturbance around the 
southern half of the new lagoon as detailed in map 002, as hopefully if the dogs are 
on a lead it will prevent them from entering and disturbing the biodiversity in the 
lagoon. This might lead to the return of both Black-tailed Skimmer and Red-veined 
Darter. 

67.  Dogs can be controlled whilst off the lead 

68.  Dogs need off lead exercise and training 

69.  But only if fences and signs are erected. 

70.  Dogs should be allowed to run freely over the whole area. It serves no purpose to 
protect wildlife and once let free the dogs are likely to go back over the excluded 
area as dogs do not understand imaginary lines. This is also likely to cause conflict 

71.  Extend this to cover the lagoon area too 

72.  Dogs need exercise off the lead. Never once seen any bother between dogs there 

73.  I have no problem with dogs being on lead on the bridge across the pond/lagoon 
but don't understand why they would be on lead on the path which goes round. 

74.  Please see earlier comments 

Page 256



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

75.  BUT there must also be areas where dogs can be exercised safely off lead please 

76.  If people control their dogs then wouldn't be a problem. It's the large number of 
dog walkers with numerous dogs chatting while dogs out of control and doing what 
they want including fouling everywhere. 

77.  It is supposed to be a nature park to be enjoyed by all and never seen any trouble 
with dogs being off leads 

78.  If dogs and owners are compliant and law abiding, I see no necessity to restrict the 
use of this area. I have rarely visited the area when non dog owners are using The 
Marsh. 

79.  This is one of the very few places in Fleetwood where dogs can run off lead. 
Obviously dogs should be well behaved and under control like they should be 
everywhere. 

80.  Dogs on leads in all places at all times please 

81.  I do not feel that dogs need to be kept on a lead in this area. I feel they may be off 
lead in the area adjacent to the flying area. There is no reason for them to be kept 
on a lead; it is rough grass with no dangers to dogs. Children do not go on this area 
as it is rough and very uneven. 

82.  This area of the site suffers disproportionately from dogs issues, especially "mess" 
and dogs interfering with other visitors (jumping up, aggressive behaviour etc) and 
being on a lead would help resolve this. 

83.  This is an excellent facility for dogs to explore freely and should be allowed to 
remain so 

84.  becomes pointless to enjoy the area and further reduces areas for good dogs to go 

85.  Again as mentioned above. It is vital that dogs receive socialisation through play 
from a young age in order to prevent aggression. This will simply be impossible if all 
dogs are to remain on the lead at all times. This will not only cause upset to the 
dogs but also the owners who will be unable to chat and enjoy watching the dogs 
play which could also impact some people’s mental health. Many of the dog 
owners enjoy the walk and some owners only get to talk to people when walking 
their dog. Why would the council want to take this away from people? 

86.  It is much easier to keep control of the dog/s if they are on a lead. 

Page 257



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

87.  If they are on a lead they will not disturb the wildlife 

88.  That is an unfair restriction for the dogs that like to swim, If for example I let our 
dog off the lead just outside the restriction area he would immediately double back 
and go into the water. We haven't witnessed out of control dogs around this area 
and I would imagine most of the complaints come from residents of the housing 
estate who during lockdown seemed to think the nature reserve was for their 
personal use only and complained on social media if anyone else dared to use it 
(usually viewed from their bedroom windows. Dogs don't make a mess whilst in 
the water so why ban them totally? 

89.  Response was not readable, and therefore was discarded.  
 

90.  Is that area really enforceable... I doubt it ... any Enforcement officer would be 
unable to prove that a dog has trodden over 'the line' or not 

91.  Should there be an issue over safety to the dog or owner then I would have no 
objection to being asked to put dogs on a lead. 

92.  Area not suitable for dogs. Just pleasing the owners. 

93.  The signs suggesting dog ownership is the same level of public nuisance as fly-
tipping is a disgrace. My specific issue is with the Fleetwood nature reserve. I have 
been taking my dogs there for twelve years and have them under control. I've 
rarely seen dogs out of control, certainly fewer times than I've seen youths and 
children out of control. The recent COVID problem has now brought out the lycra 
brigade who treat it as a leg of the Tour de France. In a shared space I see no more 
reason to put a dog on a lead than a young child. Both are capable of making 
sudden movements and it is up to cyclists to be aware and act accordingly. 

94.  Dogs need to be able to exercise. Again if they are chasing wildlife (but to be 
honest there isn't a lot there) it is the irresponsible ones penalising the responsible 
owners. 

95.  See comments above. Why are responsible dog owners paying the price of 
pernicious and draconian measures. If you are to police this, then why not just 
keep existing regulations and fine people who don't pick up dog faeces or have 
dogs out of control. It seems to follow the logic of imposing a curfew because most 
burglaries happen at night. 

Page 258



Appendix 12 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That dogs must be on a lead in certain areas (referred to Map 002). Do 

you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

96.  Yes in principle but extend the dogs on lead area to the saltmarsh to protect 
encourage control of the dogs. Include the water body in exclusion zone. 

 

Page 259



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

1.  2 is enough for anyone, more is antisocial. 

2.  Let's be honest, some people can't even control one dog! 

3.  Solo dog walker could have problems controlling 4 dogs off lead, on lead not an issue. 

4.  It will affect professional dog walkers but some of them are walking upwards of 5, 
without being able to control 

5.  as long as all dogs are under control, the number of dogs should not matter. 

6.  I have five dogs and can’t physically manage two walks a day if I can’t take them out 
altogether. It seems like you’re penalising people instead of targeting the individuals 
who cause the problems. 

7.  As above, if dogs are well behaved and under control there's no requirement for limit 

8.  As stated earlier, caution should be exercised here. 

9.  It should be no more than 2. 

10.  I would say a limit of 6 

11.  This should be reduced to 2 dogs, not only so that they can keep track of where their 
dogs are fouling but also from a social point of view. I have frequently had out of control 
dogs jumping up, with owners too far away to control. I would say that since lockdown it 
has improved with the worst behaved dogs no longer coming to the reserve. 

12.  Again if dogs are under control then there is no problem. I see people who struggle to 
control one dog. Yet the professional dog walkers have multiple dogs and are always in 
control and the dogs are well mannered. 

13.  4 is too many. 

14.  My dog walker does an amazing job with all of the dogs in her care. With these 
restrictions put into place, her business would be put in jeopardy (at a time when people 
are struggling financially and we should be doing everything possible to support small 
businesses). Without a dog walker, my dogs would be alone in the house for hours on 
end whilst I go to work, again is neglectful and unfair- if you put this into place, it will 
hugely impact on dogs like my own being cared for by dog walkers. 

15.  I know many people who have multiple dogs who cannot take multiple trips to exercise 
their dogs. Plus it may cause distress for some to be left alone in this circumstance. It 
would also affect dog walker and their business. 

16.  I believe this would still allow the professional dog walkers access to this area and I 
would prefer if they were banned altogether from this area. Failing that I think it should 
be restricted to 2 dogs per person. 

Page 260



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

17.  I have 5 dogs how can this work ? It’s unfair to leave a dog behind and what about 
people trying to run a dog walking business ? 

18.  If dogs are under control there is no need for a limit on numbers. Most professional dog 
walkers have more control over those groups of dogs than a lot of owners 

19.  No more than two dogs 

20.  I think it's still not enough. Professional walkers should keep their dogs on a lead. In my 
experience, they cannot control 4 dogs all running in different directions. They cause 
such a nuisance. 

21.  Number of dogs is not an indicator of low responsibility 

22.  Someone with five small dogs who are gentle and cause no problems regularly walks 
them at Fleetwood nature reserve. They would be unfairly adversely affected when a 
single dog can cause issues. The fact that there is a plan to require dogs to be put on 
lead if requested is in itself enough. 

23.  Except four is too many, two should be the maximum. 

24.  It isn't necessarily owners walking more than four dogs who aren't responsible I was 
surrounded by four large dogs and felt intimidated, these dogs were all with separate 
owners who were floating the safe distancing rules and basically chatting away to each 
other and not watching their dogs. I had to ask them to call their dogs off. 

25.  Already answered this question 

26.  I think any dog walkers should walk no more than 4 dogs at any time, regardless of how 
many people there are in the group. This would stop the professional dogs walkers from 
coming in pairs with lots of dogs (which I do believe cannot be controlled or their waste 
collected efficiently in these circumstances) which at the moment allows 8 dogs to be 
exercised, which is too many. This would similarly negate many of the other protection 
orders in the proposals, because the owners would be in better control of the dogs with 
them. 

27.  The number of dogs should be limited to two. 

28.  Four is too Many 

29.  I agree too many dog walkers just letting numerous dogs run riot. You can’t possibly 
keep an eye on that many dogs at once. I had two dogs and found it difficult when they 
went different ways. 

30.  4 seems very high. How can you possibly control 4 dogs at once. 

31.  although 4 is still a lot to be in control of 

32.  No one can possibly watch more than a couple of dogs and ensure that they pick up all 
the poo. 

33.  I would prefer the maximum number of dogs to be walked by one person to be two 
dogs. I feel this is mostly a problem caused by those doing dog walking as a business. 

34.  I think it should be a maximum of two dogs 

35.  4 may be too many. Perhaps 3 would be a better number to put off professional dog 
walkers. 

Page 261



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

36.  I think that 2 dogs should be the limit. My dog was recently attacked nearby my home 
(Wyre Council were a brilliant help) and the owner had 2 dogs on leads and 1 dog off the 
lead which attacked my dog. He was unable to grasp the lead on the third dog due to not 
having enough hands. I feel that this situation may have been slightly different should 
there have only been 2 dogs. Dogs can pull a lot and even the strength of 1 dog is 
enough to be uncontrolled by an adult during a stressful incident. 

37.  There is simply no need and where do you want responsible dog owners to exercise their 
dogs? I am firmly against dog exclusion areas as this prevents them from playing, 
socialising and learning how to behave with other dogs and new people. There is no 
justification for having dog exclusion areas just like there would be no excuse for having 
child exclusion areas. We do not live in an authoritarian state so please let people enjoy 
our open spaces with their dogs and stop this big brother nonsense. Don’t forget for 
some people a dog may be their best friend and only company so why prohibit them 
from an open area for no real reason. 

38.  There are already signs up at the nature reserve stating this. 

39.  4 too many. Some walkers have more than 4, but know they won’t get caught. Bedlam 
sometimes with more than 1 dog Walker. 

40.  Still think 4 is too many but better than nothing 

41.  In the main I think a maximum of 4 is fine. However there are some dog walkers who 
have excellent control over 5 or 6 small dogs and some who don't. Perhaps individuals 
could apply for a licence to take out more and if they can justify how they will keep 
control and pick up poo then in exceptional cases this might be granted. 

42.  Looking at these three maps it’s clear the council wants to ban all dogs in an underhand 
way, this is not the way to treat your residents when a huge majority have dogs. 

43.  No one should be walking 4 dogs it should be 2 per person 

44.  Professional Dog walkers earn a living off taking dogs for a walk at this reserve, most 
professional dog walkers know the behaviours of each dog they walk and are sensible 
and responsible enough to look after them and make sure they behave. It isn’t fair to 
limit somebodies business just because the minority of people are poor at their job and 
cannot control the dogs. 

Page 262



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

45.  I believe there have been issues with 1 particular 'professional' dog walker on this site 
who had been irresponsible and has raised a number of complaints. Whilst I appreciate 
that this is disappointing and inappropriate, I do not believe that other responsible dog 
walkers and owners should be penalised due to this. I also believe that a lady was 
seriously injured on this site due to a dog running. This could have occurred anyway that 
dogs are allowed off lead. As previously mentioned, I think it is important to consider the 
actual number of incidents and the statistics relating to groups of dogs rather than 
making assumptions that all issues relate to people walking more than 4 dogs. As a dog 
walker, the safety of the dogs is my priority. My reputation is of the upmost importance 
and I would not at any point want to risk my business by being irresponsible. Can I pick 
up after more than 4 dogs? Yes I absolutely can and do. You get to know each individual 
dogs habits, I can tell you how soon into a walk my dogs will go to the toilet, how many 
times each individual dog is likely to go. I literally have eyes in the back of my head to 
ensure I have all my dogs in sight at all times. My dogs will play together and remain 
close so that they are within close proximity to me. Just because some of us walk groups 
of dogs does not mean we are the ones to blame for the issues. The amount of times I 
have seen 1 person with 1 dog not pick up after themselves usually because that person 
is walking ahead of their dog, not paying attention, on their mobile phones etc. As a dog 
walker I love my local area and I pick up after other people's dogs as well as collect litter 
when I am out. I also will call people out if I see them not picking up after their dog. 
More often than not in my experience, the dog mess is due to individual owners not 
paying attention to their dogs. Professional dog walkers pay constant attention to the 
dogs in their care and are not where the problem lies. 

46.  Maximum 2 would be better 

47.  Dog walking companies often have multiple dogs and I have never seen that as a 
problem 

48.  For commercial dog walkers yes, but one lady who uses the marsh has rescue dogs and 
has nowhere else to walk them. 

49.  I would prefer the maximum to be 3 dogs. 4 can be unmanageable, unless they are small 
sized. 

50.  2dogs at most 

51.  I’m saying yes but I’m not really sure what the question means. If it means there should 
be a maximum of four dogs and one person the yes. If it refers to the area indicated by 
the map, those maps need a degree in civil engineering to interpret! If you had indicated 
the car park area that might have helped. 

52.  Should be no more than two dogs. 

53.  This still allows professional dog walkers to access Fleetwood Marsh; it is impossible to 
pick up after dogs if attempting at the same time to control up to four of them. 

54.  Not being a dog owner I would have thought that four is too many to keep an eye on 
and under control, but maybe it's not. 

Page 263



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

55.  Before going in to more detail in providing comments in reply to this question, I just 
want to reiterate the comments I made in answer to the question concerning dogs being 
excluded from the lagoons and areas marked on map 001, that it is imperative that dogs 
remain excluded from this fenced area surrounding the two larger lagoons, to protect 
the birds that utilise these areas. Therefore, there should be no dogs at all within the 
fenced area surrounding the two larger lagoons. The area outlined in map 003 was a 
former nesting area for the BoCC red-listed Skylark. At least 2/3 pairs used to nest in this 
area, and although they can be heard singing in this area in early Spring, they soon give 
up due to disturbance, and I haven’t known them nest successfully for a number of 
years. This area also used to be attractive to migrant species that require open grassland 
sites as stopovers on both their Spring and Autumn migrations, such as Wheatear, 
Whinchat and White Wagtail (migrant European race of Pied Wagtail). Due to 
disturbance from large numbers of dogs running around in these areas (professional dog 
walking services), these species no longer occur in any numbers and can now only be 
found on the saltmarsh, within the undisturbed model aircraft flying club area and the 
adjacent tip. I welcome any proposals to restrict the number of dogs in this area and 
have them under closer control. 

56.  All very restrictive 

57.  This would replicate what is in place at Stanah. However I have great concerns that this 
will shove the dog walking vans into smaller community areas. What are your plans to 
avoid this? Currently one dog walking van has started turning up at my local park, 
probably in anticipation of this. You really need to licence these vans and limit THEM to 
4 dogs at any one time. Otherwise they will just go elsewhere. Please consider how to 
deal with the commercial dog walkers which will not impact your local residents simply 
trying to access their local areas for daily exercise. WHAT IS NEEDED IS STAFF TO 
ENFORCE THE 4 DOG RULE in areas where they traditionally use, i.e. Fleetwood Marsh 
Nature Park. 

58.  Please see earlier comments 

59.  Although this is too many when not under control and stand chatting to other dog 
walkers not bothered what dogs are doing 

60.  Never seen more than 4 ever 

61.  I believe 4 is fine as long as under control. 

62.  But I think it should be 3 per person 

63.  I think this restriction is aimed at professional dog walkers but penalises dog owners. 

64.  There are people who come to Fleetwood Marsh who bring more than four dogs and 
there are many examples of where they are not under control. It is unfair on the County 
council, and other visitors that this should happen. Fleetwood Marsh deserves to have 
the same, or similar levels of protection other public open spaces have. 

65.  Reduce number per person as stated above 

66.  I think 4 dogs is too many for one person 

67.  quite strict compared to other parts of country 

Page 264



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

68.  It is impossible to responsibly exercise more than 4 dogs at once so I agree with this 
point. 

69.  Reduce to 2 dogs. Main culprits seem to be professional dog walkers. Ensure rules are 
followed and fines handed out. 

70.  I think that 4 dogs under the control of one person is too many. 

71.  No it should be limited to 2 dogs only on leads 

72.  Maximum of 2 dogs per person 

73.  Registered dog walkers do regularly abuse this and we've witnessed several times a dog 
walker letting dogs loose (sometimes still on their leads which is dangerous) and then 
catching up with another walker to make it look like they are both walking the large 
group. 

74.  Will try to comment as said before on my ipad 

75.  The existing fencing and wall already prohibits access to a large proportion of the 
mapped area 

76.  Quite often professional dog walkers use the area for the exercising of dogs, they 
struggle to control when on mass and the dogs can become unruly. The max one person 
should be allowed to exercise is two. 

77.  4 dogs too many for 1 person. 

78.  As a professional dog walker I am insured to walk six dogs at one time. From years of 
experience I know I can control six dogs a lot better than one person walking just one 
dog as I have seen many times that person is too busy on the phone or talking to 
someone else while their dog is running off into the distance and fouling without the 
owner either noticing or refusing to walk over and pick up after it. These are the people 
that should be given fines, especially the weekend walkers. The head ranger from 
Lancashire county council has seen me at Fleetwood nature reserve several times in 
charge of six dogs and every time they have been under control and I have picked up 
after each and every one of them. This is very easy to do because they are kept under 
control. When one dog fouls I’ll pick up and allow it off the lead and so on until all six are 
off lead - you know your dogs and which ones first so to say it’s impossible to pick up 
after 6 simply isn’t true. I have offered for a council member to join me on a walk to see 
exactly how this is done and how under control the dogs are. If insurance companies 
deem it safe for one person to walk six dogs how can a council or one man decide it 
isn’t? Many of the dogs I walk belong to elderly or disabled people who physically cannot 
walk their dogs. If this new rule of four dogs is brought in there is a very strong 
possibility that I may have to close my business because there isn’t enough hours in the 
day to fit in another walk. The thought of having to tell my clients that I cannot walk 
their dog anymore after years of doing so it’s unthinkable. If this were to happen then 

Page 265



Appendix 13 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That a maximum of 4 dogs be walked / under the control of one person 

is applied across the whole site (see Map 003). Do you agree with the proposed 

dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 Please provide comments 

more people would start opening up dog walking business thinking it’s an easy job which 
it isn’t and as I have witnessed especially since lockdown these people are not insured so 
any dog fights or accidents that may happen on the walks will not be covered. Also there 
are people who own five dogs who have limited mobility and simply cannot do more 
than one walk a day. How are they meant to manage walking their dogs if they cannot 
take them all together? If dogs are left at home this will create psychological problems 
for the dogs and could lead to lots of rehoming and depression in owners. Blackpool 
Council tried to introduce a four dog max rule in 2018. After discussions with them and 
letters from vets and other animal agencies regarding a dogs health and well-being if 
walks were taken away from them plus the benefits of owning a dog to people already 
suffering with issues they saw fit to not introduce the rule. I hope Wyre and Lancashire 
Council can see the issues raised and decide against it too. 

79.  It’s a busy site with multiple users and all dogs must be under control. 

 

Page 266



Appendix 14 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That there will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have the 

means to pick foul across that whole site (map 004 /005). Do you agree with the 

proposed dog control measures at the nature park? 
  

 Please provide comments 

1.  But doesn't it apply everywhere? Surely. 

2.  Should be the same everywhere. 

3.  But install a dog poo bag vending machine and a dog loo area. Give people a chance 
1st before banning or fining 

4.  There should be areas totally dog-free so children can safely play. 

5.  I believe this should go further still and extend on to the Harbour Village site as 
people walk from the Marsh on to the village along the estuary to use the play area 
or access the bridge. 

6.  This is the control that is key. Support it without reservation. 

7.  Already answered this question 

8.  Also provide more bins to enable dog owners to dispose of properly rather than just 
one by the car park! This is insufficient. 

9.  Get the rangers to act not just stand by 

10.  Disgusting that people do not pick up poo. Not fair on sensible dog owners who get 
the blame. 

11.  There should be a requirement to pick up after your dog wherever you are. 

12.  Yes as above comments re this enforcement for the whole of Wyre 

13.  Definitely. I am a dog owner, and there is no excuse for not picking up after your 
dog. 

14.  Every dog owner should have this responsibility 

15.  But must be policed to have it work or it is pointless just putting up a sign that will 
do nothing to help behaviours of the owners. They will continue to let dogs of leads 
and leave dog waste all the nature reserve. 

16.  This should be compulsory anywhere! 

Page 267



Appendix 14 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That there will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have the 

means to pick foul across that whole site (map 004 /005). Do you agree with the 

proposed dog control measures at the nature park? 
  

 Please provide comments 

17.  Yes BUT, dog should be excluded from Fleetwood Marsh altogether. 

18.  I'd have thought this goes without saying. 

19.  I totally agree with this proposal as dog foul is a real problem at the Nature Park. 
You may, or may not, be aware that a derogatory nickname applied to the Nature 
Park is “Dog Sh*t Park” In addition to this, it has been noted that the vegetation 
structure of the open areas has changed since the Nature Park opened in 2005, in 
that there has been an increase in more competitive woody/scrubby species e.g. 
Bramble etc. The vegetation within a habitat will change over time based on a 
number of factors including soil conditions, climate, presence or absence of grazing 
animals, usage of the site (foot-fall/disturbance) and management regime etc. 
Successional changes can be a completely normal/natural process, but they can also 
be brought about by other factors. The same friend and colleague that monitors the 
invertebrates at the Nature Park, also monitors the wildflowers and grasses 
occurring at the site. He has noticed an increase in rank vegetation over time, which 
can be a natural process through a lack of grazing animals or management holding 
this succession in check. However, he has commented that the model aircraft flying 
area has proved to be the best area for all the orchid species. The model aircraft 
flying club do mow a runway within their area, but don’t carry out any other 
management to my knowledge, so you would expect a similar rate of change in this 
area from open grassland mosaics to more rank vegetation, and the presence of this 
would suggest that this hasn’t happened, or not at the same rate. It is possible that 
the amount of dog excrement on the site has changed the pH and nutrient status of 
the grassland and influenced the change in the rate of succession of rank vegetation. 
Any requirement to pick up dog foul will improve the environment and enjoyment of 
the site for all users, and may also have a positive biodiversity benefit as well. 

20.  This is the same with people dropping and leaving litter. Not enough bins are 
provided and the access to the areas are from the housing and not just the walkers. 

21.  All dog owners should pick up the dogs mess. 

22.  This is common sense. People must pick up after their dogs. I would comment 
however that there should be a facility to provide people with a means to do so in 
case of an emergency 

23.  Basic common sense 

24.  I support the dog fouling control measure throughout Wyre. 

25.  Should pick up wherever you are. Everyone uses for enjoyment. 

26.  Bags and bins should be provided. 

Page 268



Appendix 14 - Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve.  

Proposal: That there will be a requirement to pick up dog foul, and have the 

means to pick foul across that whole site (map 004 /005). Do you agree with the 

proposed dog control measures at the nature park? 
  

 Please provide comments 

27.  There is no need to add further comment on the issue of picking up - it should just 
happen. 

28.  Could do with a couple more bins 

29.  naturally 

30.  Again dog owners should always clean up after their dogs it is part of being 
responsible 

31.  I assume the adjacent salt marsh has its own rules? 

32.  Please enforce. You can have as many deterrents as you want, but if you don't 
enforce, they are worthless. 

33.  Anyone who is walking their dog should carry dog poo bags with them, so they have 
no excuse to leave the mess behind. 

34.  As in other places that dogs can still exercise, more VISIBLE bins are needed. 

35.  A large section off mapped area already controlled by fences and walls 

36.  Although I wish this measure could be applied to the entire Fylde coast. 

37.  Just target the ones that don’t pick up not everyone else. 

38.  Dog fouling is a huge problem on the site 

 

Page 269



Appendix 15 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve. 

That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006 ). 

Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 

 Please provide comments 

1.  I’d certainly like to see such an officer-anywhere! 

2.  I would if I could go further on all of the above suggestions. 

3.  Absolutely not!!!! You will be cramming far too many dog walkers into one small area 
which will result in more incidents happening! At the moment the nature reserve is big 
enough for people to avoid each other. Like I keep saying where are people like myself 
with five dogs or even more supposed to walk their dogs? It’s not fair to punish everyone 
because of the minority who don’t control their dogs properly. 
 

4.  If dog is causing a nuisance, but must be a valid reason 

5.  Providing the dog is not a danger to the public or other dogs 

6.  They would need to show full identifications 

7.  this should include the whole of the reserve. If an officer thinks a dog is out of control he 
should be able to ask it to be put on a lead anywhere on the reserve. 

8.  This particular area is a safe area for dogs to freely exercise and should be kept as such 

9.  There should be areas totally dog-free where children can safely play. 

10.  If the dog is causing any problems then I don’t have a problem with being asked to put 
them on a lead for a small amount of their walk, however it is unfair to enforce this 
around the entire nature reserve. 

11.  only if the dog is not under control 

12.  I agree if said dog is being aggressive or causing a nuisance 

13.  As the request to put a dog on a lead relates to anti social behaviour it should cover the 
whole of the area. 

14.  However please refer to my previous response about a securely enclosed area for after 
the dogs, which I believe would help avoid future issues at a reasonable cost Of simply 
decent fencing and a gate. In response to this question for example, an officer would be 
able to refer the owner to the off lead area. 
 

15.  Dogs should be allowed to walk as they are now and the and not be penalised because of 
a few careless owners. 

16.  Only with quality reasoning why said dog must be on a lead. 

17.  I have never seen any officer at the park. 

Page 270



Appendix 15 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve. 

That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006 ). 

Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 

 Please provide comments 

18.  Already answered this question 

19.  I see no need to have a designated area where an officer can instruct a dog owner to put 
a dog on a lead. 

20.  I agree but I have never seen an authorised officer on the site and I doubt if a number of 
dog owners will obey the signs unless officers are present on the site. 

21.  What enforcement officer. I have never seen one 

22.  I believe dogs should be allowed off the lead on the whole area but that this rule should 
also apply. 

23.  Agree 

24.  Everyone should comply with the request of an authorised officer who you would 
imagine would have a good reason for making such a request. 

25.  If dogs cannot be excluded from the nature park, I think they should be kept on a lead at 
all times in all areas to prevent disturbance to ground nesting birds and the ducks and 
water fowl. 

26.  I think an authorised officer could have the right to instruct any badly behaved dog to be 
put on a lead anywhere as long as the request was reasonable. 

27.  Specifically if they are a nuisance to others 

28.  There is simply no need and where do you want responsible dog owners to exercise their 
dogs? I am firmly against dog exclusion areas as this prevents them from playing, 
socialising and learning how to behave with other dogs and new people. There is no 
justification for having dog exclusion areas just like there would be no excuse for having 
child exclusion areas. We do not live in an authoritarian state so please let people enjoy 
our open spaces with their dogs and stop this big brother nonsense. Don’t forget for 
some people a dog may be their best friend and only company so why prohibit them 
from an open area for no real reason. 

29.  I would have no problem if someone wanted me to put my dog on a lead if the situation 
required it. It's called being a responsible dog owner. 

30.  Certainly if dogs a dog is out of control or disturbing wild life 

Page 271



Appendix 15 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve. 

That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006 ). 

Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 

 Please provide comments 

31.  I think that an authorised officer should be able to instruct a dog walker to put his/her 
dog on a lead throughout the park not just this area. This is because I think the whole 
park should be open to dogs being off the lead if well behaved and the owner can see, 
pick up and dispose of the poo. 
 

32.  If there is reason for the officer to order a dog to be put on lead then yes, however if the 
dog is causing no harm or not bothering anyone then no. 

33.  I agree that in any area if there is a requirement for safety reasons that it is appropriate 
for a request to be made for dogs to be on lead. 

34.  As I mentioned before our dogs walk on the path with us and do not require to be on a 
lead. None of the dogs I have seen on there stray into the housing estate. 

35.  Providing that the authorised officer has good reason to instruct a dog to be put on a 
lead 

36.  Dog on lead instruction should cover the entire area 

37.  Seems totally pointless and irrelevant to have a small area of the marsh under this 
'control' and it is the area of the marsh where dogs can wander safely. 

38.  Dogs off leads have approached me and jumped up. Owners assure me that the dog is 
'just being friendly' but I have been bitten in the past. Are authorised officers going to 
patrol regularly? 

39.  More supervisors to police the rules 

40.  Will this ever be done? 

41.  Again, this should be an enforced area throughout breeding season for animals on the 
reserve. 

42.  How will this be enforced, especially when dog walkers become non-compliant and 
aggressive? The only solution is to ban dogs from the area. 

43.  Absolutely, there has to be some authority to exercise control when necessary. Having 
said that I have never seen such an officer at the nature park. 

Page 272



Appendix 15 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve. 

That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006 ). 

Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 

 Please provide comments 

44.  I totally agree with this proposal and again I refer you to my answer to question â€˜câ€™ 
regarding a restriction on the number of dogs that can be walked on the site, particularly 
in connection with nesting Skylarks. If a dog(s) is/are causing a disturbance off the lead in 
areas where nesting Skylarks are present, the ability of an authorised officer to instruct a 
dog to be put on a lead could help to reduce disturbance to this red-listed species and 
increase the chances of a successful nesting attempt. 

45.  Provided there is a reasonable need for the request and not just for being there and off 
the lead 

46.  But only if the dog is out of control and not just having some fun. 

47.  Other far more important work to.be done. Let us all just continue to enjoy this area. 
That’s why it is there 

48.  BUT I would like this in conjunction with the on lead over /around the lagoon area 
INSTEAD of total exclusion from the lagoon area. And with the 4 dog maximum this 
needs to apply to the commercial vans. 

49.  Only if necessary for a particular reason and only until that reason has gone 

50.  If there is adequate reason for the dog to be put on a lead, e.g. misbehaving or causing 
nuisance 

51.  Although I rarely go due to the large number of dog walkers with out of control dogs I do 
like to let my dog off lead to enjoy himself and socialise with other dogs. If busy and don't 
feel confident I keep on lead anyway so have more control. 

52.  See all my other comments above...what an extremely huge amount of time it must have 
taken to do this ridiculously long survey....sure there are better things more constructive 
within the borough that need sorting. Someone got a bee in their bonnet over dogs? 
Don't let a few people spoil it for the majority. 

53.  Again I feel they should be on leads at all times 

54.  There have been instances where dogs are out of control and owners are unable to rein 
them in. Enforcement officers should have these powers to protect visitors and the site. 

55.  That area is ideal for dogs to roam freely. They are not near the wildlife. They are not 
near a road. Perfect for dogs. 

56.  I am concerned about certain individual officers who have publicly stated they hate dogs 
in this area. A big concern and bias 

57.  This again is unnecessary. All the dogs want to do is run and play. There is no need for a 
dog to be on the lead unless it has behavioural issues. 

58.  That seems the safest measures. 

Page 273



Appendix 15 – Section 2 Fleetwood Nature Reserve. 

That an authorised officer can instruct a dog to be put on a lead (see Map 006 ). 

Do you agree with the proposed dog control measure at the nature park? 
 

 

 Please provide comments 

59.  Dogs should be on a lead at all times 

60.  As long as it isn't abused and officers are suitably visible and easily identified. 

61.  Assuming this is a dog that is causing trouble with others 

62.  Should there be an issue over safety to the dog or owner then I would have no objection 
to being asked to put dogs on a lead. 

63.  Providing they have good reason 

64.  Maybe instead of completing banning dogs from around the lagoons and having dogs on 
leads in certain areas make the whole reserve as "instruct a dog to be put on a lead" 

65.  In principle yes, but when coupled with the other canophobic measures I can see this 
being abused by some kind of fascistic implementation. I assume there's still some 
semblance of democracy in WBC and that these proposals are to be the subject of a 
council vote. It should be remembered that dog owners are fully enfranchised. I shall be 
contacting my councillor. 
 

66.  Yes in principle but have suggested extension of dogs on lead into the area near the 
saltmarsh. 
 

 
 

Page 274



Appendix 4 
Equality Impact Assessment – Public Spaces Protection Orders (Dog Control) 

 Step 1 – Introductory information  

Title of the policy  

Public Spaces Protection Orders (Dog Control) 

Name of lead officer and others 

undertaking this assessment  

 

Ruth Hunter 

Date EIA started  

12 June 2017 

Date EIA completed  
 

20 September 2017 

Date EIA Reviewed 

Date EIA completed 

28 July 2020 

21 September 2020 

 

 Step 2 – Overview of policy/function being assessed: 

Outline: What is the purpose of this policy? (Specify aims and objectives) 

 

 

These Orders are put in place to inform residents and visitors about dog control and requirements for 

dog owners / keepers in respect of: 

 

 Dog fouling and not clearing up afterwards 

 Dog Fouling – Having Suitable means to pick up and dispose of dog poo 

 Dogs on leads 

 Dogs on leads by Direction 

 Dog exclusion zones 

 Number of dogs exercised by 1 person 

 

 

The Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) replaced the  Dog Control Orders put in place in 2011.  

The requirement for change came in with the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014.  They 

are required to be reviewed every three years or before if a change. 

 

What specific group/s is the policy designed to affect/impact and what is the intended change or 

outcome for them?  

 

The PSPO’s are relevant to all residents and visitors to Wyre and affect anyone who is in control of a 

dog (s) 

People who have a registered disability or mobility issue or other physical disorder affecting their ability 

to pick up dog foul will be exempt from the fouling related Orders. 

People who have a reliance on a trained assistance dog are exempt from the Exclusion Orders. 

Any other impairment not within the exemptions will be dealt with on a case by case basis. 

Which groups have been consulted as part of the creation or review of the policy? 

 

Page 275



 

Parish/Town/Ward Clerks and Councillors 

Dog Organisations – Kennel Club and Dogs Trust 

Borough Councillors 

All residents in Wyre (newspapers / web / social media) 

Friends of Parks Groups 

Grass roots football – local teams via Officers 

YMCA 

 

 Step 3 – What we already know and where there are gaps 

List any existing information/data do you have/monitor about different diverse groups in relation to this 

policy?  Such as in relation to age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 

pregnancy & maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation etc.    

 

Data/information such as: 

 Consultation 

 Previous Equality Impact Assessments 

 Demographic information 

 Anecdotal and other evidence 

Age – older people are often dog owners for company  

 

Anecdotal evidence, a number of elderly residents have struggled to pick up foul yet their dogs are 

their companions and without them would not go out frequently. 

 

Based on national statistics, there are over 8.5 million dogs in the UK and 24% of households have a 

dog.  It is therefore estimated that there is a minimum of 14,250 dogs resident in Wyre, and in addition 

to this there are also people who visit the area with dogs. 

 

Incident recording – Records to identify areas where dog fouling / irresponsible dog ownership / dogs 

out of control is an issue based on reports from residents. 

 

Bi – Annual Life in Wyre Surveys – Customers continue to raise concerns in relation to dog fouling / 

irresponsible dog ownership / dogs out of control as a significant concern within the borough. 

 

Young people / families– should be allowed to play and use green spaces without fear of dogs being 

out of control. 

 

 

 

 Step 4 – Do we need to seek the views of others? If so, who? 

In light of the answers you have given in Step 2, do you need to consult with specific groups to identify 

needs / issues? If not please explain why. 

 

Page 276



The Council has reviewed  the PSPO’s with a further consultation exercise.  Amendments and 

revisions can be added before that time if evidence is received that there is a need for additional 

controls.  The controls must meet the legal test and must be justified. 

 

 Step 5 – Assessing the impact 

In light of any data/consultation/information and your own knowledge and awareness, please identify 

whether the policy has a positive or negative impact on the individuals or community groups (including 

what barriers these individuals or groups may face) who identify with any ‘protected characteristics’ and 

provide an explanation for your decision (please refer to the general duties on the front page). 

 
Comments 

Age 

 

 

Positive – clearer Orders informing residents about dog 

control will have a positive impact on all ages. 

 

Disability 

(Physical, visual, hearing, learning 

disabilities, mental health) 

There are exceptions to the Orders for people who have a 

physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and 

long term adverse effect on the ability to carry out normal day 

to day activities including affecting his mobility, manual 

dexterity, physical coordination or ability to lift, carry or 

otherwise move everyday objects in respect of a dog trained 

by a prescribed charity/ approved body as is considered 

appropriate by the Council.and upon which he relies for 

assistance. 

  

 

There are also exceptions in the Orders for blind people. 

There are also exceptions in the Orders for people requiring 

trained assistance dogs. 

The Order makes it clear to all residents who are exempt 

which adds clarity for all residents. 

 

Those with learning difficulties are not listed under the 
exemptions, and therefore authorised officers will use their 
discretion in such cases. Training to identify difficulties and 
strong team support should help to overcome difficult 
situations. 
 

Any other impairment not listed above will be dealt with on a 

case by case basis. 
 

Gender Reassignment 

(Transgender) 

Positive - neutral 

 

 

 

Race Neutral 

Religion or Belief 

(Includes no belief) 

Neutral 

 

Page 277



Sex 

(Gender) 

 

Neutral 

Sexual Orientation Neutral 

 

Other protected groups (Pregnancy & 

maternity, marriage & civil partnership) 

Neutral 
 

Other socially excluded groups  
(carers, low literacy, priority 

neighbourhoods, health inequalities, rural 

isolation, asylum seeker and refugee 

communities etc.) 

Neutral 

 

 

Where there are potential barriers, negative impacts identified and/ or barriers or impacts are unknown, 
please outline how you propose to minimise all negative impact or discrimination.    
 
Please note:  

a) If you have identified adverse impact or discrimination that is illegal, you are required to take 
action to remedy this immediately. 

b) Additionally, if you have identified adverse impact that is justifiable or legitimate, you will need to 
consider what actions can be taken to mitigate its effect on those groups of people.  

 
No 
 

Summarise your findings and give an overview as to whether the policy will meet Wyre Council’s 
responsibilities in relation to equality and diversity (please refer to the general duties on the front page). 

 
This PSPO continues to  meet Wyre Council’s equality and diversity requirements.The Council will also 
seek to identify areas that dogs are free to walk without restriction and will seek to work with the local 
businesses to identify establishments that welcome dogs- Dog Friendly Wyre Facebook page created to 
help support this 
 
This PSPO will continue to l be publicised on social media, Council’s website, circulated to Town and 
Parish Council’s.  Signage will be updated across the borough to reflect any changes. 
 

 Step 6- Monitoring, evaluation and review  

Are there processes in place to review the findings of this Assessment and make appropriate changes? 
In particular, how will you monitor potential barriers and any positive/ negative impact?  

 
The PSPO’s will be reviewed every 3 years and the EIA will be reviewed at the same time. 
 

How will the recommendations of this assessment be built into wider planning and review processes?  
e.g. policy reviews, annual plans and use of performance management systems.  

 
Consultation with interested groups, stronger understanding of how the Orders can be implemented and 
reviewed and promoted. 
 

 
Step 7- Action Plan 

 

Please include any identified concerns/actions/issues in this action plan: 

Page 278



The issues identified should inform your Service Plan and, if appropriate, your Consultation Plan 

Action 
 

In relation to responses received from the consultation process a number of amendments have been made to the 

Order and there is a commitment to review on going. 

 Step 8- Who needs to know about the outcomes of this assessment and how will 
they be informed? 

 

 Who needs 

to know 
(Please tick) 

How they will be informed 
 

Employees  Published on intranet 

Service users  Published with Cabinet report 

 

Partners and stakeholders 

 

 
 

Published with Cabinet report 

Others 

 

 Published with Cabinet report 

 

 

 

Page 279



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Extension to the Emergency Arrangements resulting from the COVID-19 Coronavirus Pandemic
	2 Review of Consultation and Implementation of a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) for Dog Control
	Appendix A PSPO 2020 including Schedules 1 and 2
	Appendix A Schedule 3 - Dogs on Lead by Direction
	Schedule 3 title page
	Schedule 3 list
	GC1
	GC2
	GC3
	OW1
	OW2A
	OW3
	OW4
	OW5
	OW6
	OW7
	TC1
	TC2
	TC3
	TC4
	TC5
	TC6
	TC7
	TC8
	TC9
	TC10
	TC11
	TC12
	TC13A
	PLF1
	PLF2
	PLF3
	PLF4
	PLF5
	PLF6
	PLF7
	FWD1
	FWD2
	FWD3
	FWD4
	FWD5
	FWD6
	FWD7A
	FWD8
	FWD9A

	Appendix A Schedule 4 - Dogs on Lead
	Schedule 4 title page
	Schedule 4 list
	GC4
	GC5
	GC6
	OW2B
	OW10
	OW11
	OW12
	OW13
	OW14
	OW15
	OW16
	OW17
	TC14
	TC15
	TC16
	TC17
	TC18
	TC19
	PLF8
	PLF9
	PLF10
	PLF11
	PLF12
	PLF13
	PLF14
	FWD10
	FWD11
	FWD12
	FWD13
	FWD14
	FWD15
	FWD16
	FWD17
	FWD18
	FWD19
	FWD20
	FWD9B

	Appendix A Schedule 5 - Dogs Exclusion v2
	Schedule 5 title page
	Schedule 5 list
	GC4
	TC13B
	FWD7B
	OW18
	FWD21
	FWD9C

	Appendix A Schedule 6 - Maximum Number of Dogs
	Schedule 6 title page
	Schedule 6 list
	TC8
	TC12
	TC3
	TC1
	FWD2
	FWD11
	FWD3
	FWD15
	FWD8
	FWD14
	FWD16
	FWD17
	FWD18
	FWD9D
	PLF2
	PLF4
	PLF6
	PLF11
	PLF12
	OW11
	OW5
	OW1
	OW4
	OW6
	OW7
	OW2A
	OW2B

	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D Equality Impact Assessment (PSPO) Dogs Review 2020


